
Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND TRANSFERS
FY2O1O

5/4/2010
AMENDMENTS

BA# ~ Dept. Line Item Increase Decrease Pg #
Al 001 9800 981 9892 Reserves Allocated Reserves $ 32,055

001 1000 521 4020 Gen Admin Bond Issuance Costs $ 32,055
A2 072 2101 981 9892 Reserves Fund 072 Allocated Reserves 20,000 2

072 5770 536 6099 Rec.Mngt. Other Purchased Services $ 20,000
A3 072 2030 981 9892 Reserves Fund 072 Allocated Reserves $ 16,000 2

072 5770 536 6099 Rec.Mngt. Other Purchased Services $ 16,000

TRANSFERS

i —c_) —
-.. C

.~ ~BA# ~ ~ Dept. Line Item Increase Decrease Pg #
Ti 001 1230 523 3001 ITS Office Equip,Furn,& Supp $ 195 20

001 1230 523 4107 ITS Cell Phone Allowance $ 165
001 1230 523 2002 ITS FICA - OASDI $ 10
001 1230 523 2005 ITS Retirement Contribution $ 18
001 1230 523 2007 ITS FICA - Medicare $ 2

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 26

VelasqM
Typewritten Text



Untitled Page Page 1 of I

AU1 OMATED BUDGET ADJUSTMENT TORM

<<Back

1100% 1 I I lP~’~b~t (PDF) file ~j

Budget Adjustment: 21089

Fyr Budget Type 2010 Reg

PBO Category Amendment

Just CommCodeRq

Author: 1 - VELASQUEZ, MELISSA

Court Date. Tuesday, May 42010

Created: 4!26~20l0 11:52:09 AM

Dept: RESERVES

Amount

32,055

32,055

From Account Acct Desc

001-9800-981-9892 ALLOCATED RESERVES

Project Proj Desc

To Account Project Amount

001-1000-521 4020 BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 32,055

32,055

Page 1

Approvals Dept Approved By Date Approved

Originator 1 MELISSA VELASQUEZ 4/26/2010 11:52:16 AM

DepOffice 1 MELISSA VELASQUEZ 4/26/2010 11:52: 18 AM

DepOfficeTo 1 CHERYL BROWN 4/26/2010 11:56:57 AM

1~~

1~

/

I, ‘I
‘a

p
41 fr)

I

I.
https: intranet.co.travis.tx.us/budgetadjustments BafPrint.aspx 4/26/2010

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Budget Adjustment: 21079

Author: 21 -CHAPPELL, ROBERT Created: 4/23/2010 3:18:36 PM

Court Date: Tuesday, May 4 2010 Dept: DISTRICT CLERK

TO ESTABLISH BUDGET FOR COMMISSIONERS COURT APPROVED COURT RECORD
PRESERVATION FUND

Approvals Dept

Originator 21

DepOffice 21

DepOfficeTo 57

Approved By

ROBERT CHAPPELL

ROBERT CHAPPELL

THOMAS ASHBURN

Date Approved

4/23/2010 3:20:10 PM

4/23/2010 3:20:46 PM

4/23/2010 3:39:03 PM

Fyr — Budget Type: 201 0-Reg

PBO Category: Amendment

Just: Other

From Account Acct Desc Project Proj Desc Amount

072-2101-981-9892 ALLOCATED RESERVES 20,000

20,000

To Account Project Amount

072-5770-536-6099 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 20,000

20,000

~7/o

Page 1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Budget Adjustment: 21060

Author: 20- CARTER, OLIVIA Created: 4/22/2010 10:18:21 AM

Court Date: Tuesday, May4 2010 Dept: COUNTY CLERK

to establish budget for Commissioners Court approved Court Record Preservation Fund

From Account Acct Desc Project Proj Desc Amount

072-2030-981-9892 ALLOCATED RESERVES 16,000

16,000

To Account Project Amount

072-5770-536-6099 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 16,000

16,000

Approvals Dept

Originator 20

DepOffice 20

DepOfficeTo 57

Approved By

OLIVIA CARTER

OLIVIA CARTER

THOMAS ASHBURN

Date Approved

4/22/2010 10:39:57 AM

4/22/2010 10:39:58 AM

4/22/2010 10:41:09 AM

Fyr_ Budget Type: 2010-Reg

PBO Category: Amendment

Just: Other

c~2~cJ~s,

Page 1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



f~. TRAVIS COUNTY
RECORDS MANAGEMENT & COMMUNICATION RESOURCES

314 West 11th Street, Suite 110 P0 Box 1748 Austin, TX 78767 Tel: (512) 854-9575 Fax: 854-4560
OF ~

MEMORANDUM

TO: Randy Lott, Budget Analyst Sr.

FROM: Steven W. Broberg, RMCR Director

DATE: April 26, 2010

SUBJECT: Quarterly Transfer For The Court Records Preservation Account (Fund 072)

The transfers detailed below will establish the expense budget for RIvICR in accordance with the plan
approved by Commissioners Court on August 25, 2009. The Court Record Preservation Account (Fund
072) was created by House Bill 3637 and went into effect October 1, 2009. The account is under the
administration of the Commissioners Court and is funded by a fee collected by the County and District
Clerks for each civil case filing. The fee is to be used specifically to digitize and preserve court records
from natural disasters. Since this is a new fund, transfers will occur on a quarterly basis as actual
revenue is collected. RMCR submitted a plan for FY 2010 which was approved by Commissioners
Court August 25, 2009. In accordance with that plan, these funds will pay for District Clerk offsite
storage expenses.

FROM: 072-2101-981-9892 Allocated Reserves $20,000
TO: 072-5770-536-6099 Other Purchased Services

FROM: 072-2030-981-9892 Allocated Reserves $16,000
TO: 072-5770-981-9892 Other Purchased Services

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT
AGENDA REQUEST

Voting Session: Tuesday, August 28, 2009

A. Requestmadeby: Steven Broberg, RNCR Director, 854-9575
(Elected Official/Appointed Offlcia1/Exec~tive ManageilCounty Attorney)

B. Requested topic: CONSIDER AND TAKE
APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW COURT RECORD

PRESERVATION ACCOUNT

C. Approved by:____________________________________
Signature of Commissioner or Judge

IL A. Any backup material to be presented to the court must be
submitted with this Agenda Request (Original and eight copies).

B. Please list all of the agencies or offlcial& names and telephone numbers that might be
affected by: or involved with this request. Send a copy of this Agenda Request and
backup to theni:

Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 854-9188
~malia Rodriguez-Mendoza, District Clerk 854-9457
Susan Spataro, County Auditor 854-9125
Rodney Rhodes; Executive Manager PBO 854-9166
fleece Eckstein, IGRC 854-9754

Ill Required Authonzations Please check if applicable
oD~ ~

Planning and BudRet Office (854-9106) —

v’ Additional funding for any department or for any purpose

______Transfer ofexisting funds within or between any line item_____Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)
Change in your department’s personnel (reorganization, restructuring etc.)

Purchasmnn Office (854-9700)
Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)
Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

5

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY
RECORDS MANAGEMENT & COMMUNICATION RESOURCES
314 West 11th Street, SuIte 110 P0 Box 1748 Austin, TX 78167 Tel: (512) 854-9575 Fax: 8544560

COMMISSIONERS COURT

FROM: STEVEN BROBERG, RMCR DIRECTOR

DATE: TUESDAY, AUGUST 18, 2009

RE: NEW COURT RECORD PRESERVATION FEE AND FUND

ProDosed Motion: Direct staff to establish the Court Records Preservation Account,
include it in the FY 2010 County Budget, and approve the associated $10 fee on certain
civil case filings.

Summary and Staff Recommendation: House Bill 3637 was passed by the 81st session
of the Texas Legislature and goes into effect for the County’s fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2009. Government Code, Subchapter H, Chapter 51, will require that the
clerk of a county court, statutory county court, or district court shall collect a filing fee of
not more than ten dollars in each civil case filed in the court to be used for court record
preservation for the courts in Travis County. The money may be used only to digitize
court records and preserve them from natural disasters. The law also requires that the
Court Record Preservation Account be administered under the direction of the
Commissioners Court.

The County Clerk, District Clerk, PBO and the Records Management and
Communications Resources department have developed a plan to meet the
requirements of the new law and the business needs of the court records custodians.
The basic components and costs of that plan are described in Exhibit 1.

Issues and ODnortunitles: Passage of any legislation mandating new fees and funds
raises the issue of reducing the General Fund by an offsetting amount. While new
revenue sources seem to offer the opportunity to reduce the property tax, funding the
plan described in Exhibit i is preferable for two reasons: (1.) The legislative intent was
clearly to establish dedicated new revenue for digitization of court records and
preservation of those records from natural disasters, not tax relief. (2.) The demand for
modem records management services cannot be met by the resources available.

TO:

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Fiscal lmDact: Pending certification of revenue by the County Auditor, the Court Record
Preservation Account could make about $164,500 available for the improved records
management services in FY 2010. The Auditor’s revenue certification follows the
Court’s action to establish the fund and set the fee.

Required Authorizations: County Auditor, PBO

Exhibits:
1. Court Record Preservation Account plan
2. Byrne grant funding for RMCR projects

cc: John Hille, Assistant County Attorney

Page 2

f-i

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Exhibit 1

FY 2010 Court Records Preservation Plan
Description Amount

Digitization of microfilmed District Court records: The microfilmed
Civil and Criminal minutes maintained by the District Clerk are
converted into electronic images. $39,619
Offsite storage of District Court records: Paper records
maintained by the District Clerk are stored by Iron Mountain, the
State of Texas contract vendor. $56,000
Microfilm exDunctlons & non-disclosures: Court records
maintained on microfilm are edited to remove information when
a judge issues the appropriate order. $6,474
38% Reserve $62,500

Court Records Preservation Account Total - FY 2010 $164,500

Plan Contingency: 5taffln~ Federal Grant. On May 29th, 2009, the Commissioners Court
voted to apply for federal stimulus grant funding. One deliverable in the proposal is
digitization of certain County and District Attorney paper records. As that application
moves through the process, the Capitol Area Council of Governments (CapCOG)
indicates that final approval of funding for this initiative is likely — but for equipment
only, with the staffing component deleted. If the Commissioners Court approves the
budget plan for the new Court Record Preservation Account, this will shift the expenses
listed in the table above, freeing up money from other funds (already approved in the
FY 2010 Preliminary Budget). That expense shift will be enough to hire two temporary
Imaging Technicians (Pay Grade 11) to operate the stimulus-funded scanning
equipment for ten months; that cost will be $61,698.

Plan Contingency: Reducing Offsite Stora~e Volume, If for some reason the Texas
Governors office does not ratify the CapCOG recommendation, Travis County will not
receive the federal stimulus grant funding to purchase the equipment. In that case, the
General Fund money freed up by establishment of the new Court Record Preservation
Account can be applied to the destruction of paper records stored offsite. RMCR has
identified up to twenty thousand cubic feet of records stored offsite that have met their
retention requirements. The elected and appointed officials who are the custodians of
these records are completing the state-mandated process to authorize records
destruction. Financial constraints have slowed progress on this initiative, because it
costs more to destroy offsite records than it does to store them for a year.

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Exhibit 2

Amount~ ProJect Name Project Description Requested Plan B Cuts CAPCOG Cuts Final Change

Electronic Document Cutting TemporaryTravis County Records Imaging Supervisor
Management Option #1 Scanning for County and $293,603.00 $97,763.00 $0.00 $195,840.00 and Technicians.

District Attorney 33.30% ~jt

Travis County Records VHS Tapes to Digital $7775900 $0.00 $77,759.00 $0.00 Project request zeroed
Management Option #2 Conversion out by CapOOG.

Byrne Projects Plan B & CapCOG Worksheet

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



MINUTES OF MEETING AUGUST 25, 2009

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ COURT

On Tuesday, the 25th day of August 2009, the Commissioners’ Court convened the
Voting Session at 9:14 AM in the Commissioners’ Courtroom, 1st Floor of the Ned
Granger Administration Building, 314 West ll~~ Street, Austin, Texas. Dana
DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was represented by Deputy Gillian Porter.

The Commissioners Court recessed the Voting Session at 12:23 PM.

The Commissioners Court, meeting as the Travis County Bee Cave Road District #1
(Galleria), convened at 1:40 PM and adjourned at 1:41 PM.

The Commissioners Court, meeting as the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation,
convened at 1:41 PM and adjourned at 1:45 PM.

The Commissioners Court, meeting as the Northwest Travis County Road District #3
(Golden Triangle), convened at 1:46 PM and adjourned at 1:46 PM.

The Commissioners Court reconvened the Voting Session at 1:46 PM.

The Commissioners Court retired to Executive Session at 2:19 PM.

The Commissioners Court reconvened the Voting Session at 4:46 PM.

The Commissioners Court adjourned the Voting Session at 4:49 PM.

(0

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 1 of 9

Travis County Commissioners Court

Voting Session Agenda
Tuesday, August 25, 2009

NOTE: The web page version of the Court’s Agenda below
does not constitute an official version of the Court’s agenda Agenda Backup
and cannot be relied on for official purposes. The Official 104 MB~
version can be found in the pdf version above. This web
page version is derived from a manual conversion of the Provision of the backup materials
official document of record for the convenience of the user. is still in the testing phase.
Travis County has posted this notice and agenda in good
faith, in compliance with Government Code section
551.056. Please note that, in the event of a technical
problem beyond the county’s control that prevents the
county from posting here or that results in an erroneous Work Session ~~da
posting, notice of this meeting and agenda posted at the
courthouse remains valid..

Video files of commissioners court meetings are available online. (Requires RealOne Player
Version 6.0 or later.)

Travis County Administration Building, 314 W. 11th St.
Commissioners Courtroom, 1st Floor
Austin, Texas 78701
Voting Sessions begin at 9:00 AM unless otherwise noted.

It is the practice of the Travis County Commissioners Court to allow the public to testify before
the Commissioners Court on any item listed on this agenda, whether it is posted formally as a
public hearing or not.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. RECEIVE COMMENTS REGARDING A PLAT FOR RECORDING IN PRECINCT THREE: REVISED
PLAT OF LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK B, ANGEL BAY SUBDIVISION (2 TOTAL LOTS).
(COMMISSIONER HUBER) (ACTION ITEM #23)
Video
Text

2. RECEIVE COMMENTS REGARDING A PLAT FOR RECORDING IN PRECINCT THREE:
SCHUKNECHT SUBDIVISION, A RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 3, 4 AND 5, BLOCK A OF THE EXA
PRESLAR SUBDIVISION, 4 TOTAL LOTS. (COMMISSIONER HUBER)
Video
Text

3. RECEIVE COMMENTS REGARDING REQUESTS TO AUTHORIZE THE FILING OF
INSTRUMENTS TO ABANDON A 0.248 ACRE PORTION OF THE MANSFIELD DAM COURT RIGHT
OF WAY. (COMMISSIONER HUBER) (ACTION ITEM #24)
Video
Text

4. RECEIVE COMMENTS REGARDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2010 DISTRICT CLERK’S RECORDS
MANAGEMENT PLAN. (ACTION ITEM #31)
Video
Text

CITIZENS COMMUNICATION

http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26I~0 10

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 2 of 9

Video
Text

CONSENT ITEMS
Video
Text

(SEE LIST OF CONSENT ITEMS)

SPECIAL ITEMS

5. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING THE PROHIBITION OF OUTDOOR
BURNING IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF TRAVIS COUNTY.
Video
Text

RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

6. APPROVE PROCLAMATION DECLARING TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2009 AS “NATIONAL
MINORITY DONOR AWARENESS DAY.” (JUDGE BISCOE)
Video
Text

PLANNING AND BUDGET DEPT. ITEMS

7. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON BUDGET AMENDMENTS, TRANSFERS AND
DISCUSSION ITEMS.
Added to consent.

8. REVIEW AND APPROVE REQUESTS REGARDING GRANT PROPOSALS, APPLICATIONS,
CONTRACTS AND PERMISSIONS TO CONTINUE:
Added to consent.

A. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S DIVISION OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE
HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM FOR AN ADDITIONAL SWAT RESPONSE VEHICLE IN
THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT;

B. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S DIVISION OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE
HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM FOR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL DECONTAMINATION
EQUIPMENT IN THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT;

C. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S DIVISION OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE
HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM FOR A MAINTENANCE CONTRACT ON HAZARDOUS
MATERIAL DETECTION EQUIPMENT IN THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT;

D. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S DIVISION OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE
HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM FOR A MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR CHEMICAL
AGENT DETECTION EQUIPMENT IN THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT;

E. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S DIVISION OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE
HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM FOR AIR MONITORING EQUIPMENT IN THE
EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT;

F. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE HOMELAND
SECURITY PROGRAM FOR ADDITIONAL TRAINING FOR THE HAZMAT TEAM IN THE
EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT;

G. NEW GRANT APPLICATION TO THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
THROUGH CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS FOR THE STATE HOMELAND
SECURITY PROGRAM FOR A VARIETY OF EXPIRABLE AND DISPOSAL GOODS FOR THE

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissionerscoupjagencjas/2009/08/vs090825.asp 4/26/2010

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 3 of 9

HAZMAT TEAM IN THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT;
H. GRANT APPLICATION TO THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR FOR HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES AND VETERANS SERVICES DEPARTMENT TO CONTINUE TO RECEIVE GRANT
RESOURCES FOR A STAND DOWN EVENT FOR HOMELESS VETERANS TO ENHANCE
EM PLOYM ENT AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES AND PROMOTE SELF-SUSTAINMENT;

I. APPROVE GRANT CONTRACT WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF TEXAS
FOR INFORMATION AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT TO BE REIMBURSED
FOR COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH TRAVIS COUNTY’S CONTINUING PARTICIPATION IN
THE STATEWIDE AUTOMATED VICTIM NOTIFICATION SERVICE; AND

J. AMENDMENT TO THE GRANT CONTRACT WITH THE OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR
JUVENILE PROBATION TO PROMOTE COMPLIANCE WITH TRAVIS COUNTY COURT
ORDERS REGARDING CHILD ACCESS AND VISITATION. THE AMENDMENT EXTENDS THE
GRANT TERM UNTIL AUGUST 31, 2010, PROVIDES RESOURCES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010
AND ADJUSTS THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2009.

9. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2010 INDIRECT
COST RATES.
Added to consent.

ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS ITEMS

10. REVIEW AND APPROVE THE IMMEDIATE RELEASE OF REIMBURSEMENT PAYMENT TO
UNITED HEALTH CARE FOR CLAIMS PAID FOR PARTICIPANTS IN THE TRAVIS COUNTY
EMPLOYEE HEALTH CARE FUND FOR PAYMENT OF $516,025.43 FOR THE PERIOD OF AUGUST
7 TO 13, 2009.
Added to consent.

11. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:
Added to consent.

A. PROPOSED ROUTINE PERSONNEL AMENDMENTS; AND
B. NON-ROUTINE REQUEST FROM TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR VARIANCES TO

TRAVIS COUNTY CODE SECTION 10.03002, GENERAL OVERVIEW FOR DETERMINING
PAY POLICY, FOR SALARY ADJUSTMENTS.

12. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST TO ESTABLISH THE COURT
RECORDS PRESERVATION ACCOUNT, INCLUDE IT IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2010 COUNTY BUDGET
AND COLLECT A $10 FILING FEE ON CERTAIN CIVIL CASE FILINGS AS REQUIRED BY HOUSE
BILL 3637 ENACTED BY THE 81ST LEGISLATURE REGULAR SESSION.
Added to consent.

13. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON 116 JOB DESCRIPTIONS IN 10 JOB
FAMILIES THAT WERE AFFECTED BY THE CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION THREE-YEAR
STRATEGIC PLAN JOB ANALYSIS PROJECTS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRAVIS COUNTY CODE
SECTION 10.080, JOB DESCRIPTIONS.
Video
Text

JUSTICE AND PUBLIC SAFETY ITEMS

14. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN TEXAS MILITARY FORCES AND TRAVIS COUNTY REGARDING A SECURE LANDING
ZONE AT CAMP MABRY FOR STAR FLIGHT AIRCRAFT.
Added to consent.

15. RECEIVE UPDATE ON THE JOINT APPLICATION FOR THE HOMELESS PREVENTION AND
RAPID RE-HOUSING PROGRAM GRANT.
Video
Text

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/conmiissioners court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/201 C

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 4 of 9

PURCHASING OFFICE ITEMS

16. APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR IMPERIAL VALLEY
DRIVE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, IFB NO. B090276-LP, TO THE LOW BIDDER, SMITH
CONTRACTING COMPANY, INC.
Added to consent

17. APPROVE MODIFICATION NO. 3 TO CONTRACT NO. PSO8O113RE, ENCOMPASS MEDICAL
MANAGEMENT, FOR EVALUATION SERVICES.
Added to consent

18. APPROVE MODIFICATION NO. 1, AN ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT NO. 09T00199OJ, FROM
CORPORATE EXPRESS TO STAPLES ADVANTAGE.
Pulled from the agenda.

19. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
WITH THE COUNCIL ON SEX OFFENDER TREATMENT TO HOUSE SEX OFFENDERS AT THE
TRAVIS COUNTY DEL VALLE CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX.
Added to consent.

20. CONTRACT MODIFICATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT 696-PD-O-1-L-L0306 M-009
BETWEEN THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND TRAVIS COUNTY FOR THE
HOUSING OF RELEASEES AT THE TRAVIS COUNTY DEL VALLE CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX.
Video
Text

21. APPROVE TWELVE-MONTH EXTENSION (MODIFICATION NO. 6) TO CONTRACT NO.
03T00288OJ, APPRISS, INC., FOR THE TEXAS VINE SERVICES AGREEMENT.
Video
Text

22. APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR ELECTRONIC MEDICAL RECORDS AND PHARMACY
INFORMATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, RFP NO. P080266-SW, TO THE MOST QUALIFIED
RESPONDENT, SIMPLICITY HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS.
Video
Text

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPT. ITEMS

23. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING A PLAT FOR RECORDING IN
PRECINCT THREE: REVISED PLAT OF LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK B, ANGEL BAY SUBDIVISION (2
TOTAL LOTS). (COMMISSIONER HUBER)
Added to consent.

24. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING A REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE THE
FILING OF AN INSTRUMENT TO ABANDON A 0.248 ACRE PORTION OF THE MANSFIELD DAM
COURT RIGHT OF WAY. (COMMISSIONER HUBER)
Added to consent.

25. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE APPOINTMENT OF DAVID SHORE,
TRAVIS COUNTY GIS PROGRAM COORDINATOR, TO THE CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF
GOVERN M ENT’S GEOGRAPHIC IN FORMATION SYSTEM PLANNING COUNCIL.
Added to consent.

26. RECEIVE BRIEFING FROM STAFF ON THE LOW-INCOME VEHICLE REPAIR AND
REPLACEMENT PROGRAM.
Video
Text

http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/comniissioners court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/201 C

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 5 of 9

27. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING REQUESTS:
Postponed

A. CALL DOWN FUNDS FOR CERTAIN STREETS BOUNDING THE FOLLOWING
SUBDIVISIONS IN AREAS NOW ANNEXED BY THE CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE:
SPRINGBROOK COMMERCIAL LOT 1, SPRINGBROOK COMMERCIAL LOT 2 AND
SPRINGBROOK GLEN; AND

B. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE FOR THE TRANSFER OF
BOUNDARY STREET FISCAL FOR ROADS ANNEXED BY THE CITY OF PFLUGERVILLE.
(COMMISSIONER ECKHARDT)

28. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST TO PURCHASE TWO TORO
GROUNDMASTER MOWERS FOR RIGHT OF WAY MAINTENANCE FROM PROFESSIONAL TURF
PRODUCTS THROUGH BUY BOARD COOPERATIVE PURCHASING.
Video
Text

29. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING RESOLUTION ADOPTING HOUSE
BILL 2833, RELATING TO CERTAIN BUILDING CODE STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO THE
UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF CERTAIN COUNTIES; PROVIDING A PENALTY, ENACTED BY THE
81ST LEGISLATURE REGULAR SESSION, AND A DESCRIPTION OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN.
Postponed.

OTHER ITEMS

30. APPROVE PAYMENT OF CLAIMS AND AUTHORIZE COUNTY TREASURER TO INVEST COUNTY
FUNDS.
Added to consent.

31. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2010
DISTRICT CLERK’S RECORDS MANAGEMENT PLAN.
Added to consent.

32. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON INTERIM CHARGES FOR THE 81ST TEXAS
LEGISLATURE, INCLUDING:
Postponed.

A. SUGGESTED TOPICS FOR SUCH CHARGES, AND
B. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PROPOSING SUCH CHARGES TO THE APPROPRIATE MEMBERS

OF THE LEGISLATURE.

33. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST TO MAKE CHANGES TO THE
HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT OPEN ENROLLMENT PROCEDURE TO
ADDRESS EQUITY ISSUES IN THE AFFIDAVIT REQUIREMENT FOR COVERAGE OF SIGNIFICANT
OTHERS/DOMESTIC PARTNER, SPONSORED DEPENDENT OR CHILD OF DOMESTIC PARTNER.
(COMMISSIONER ECKHARDT)
Video
Text

34. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:
Postponed.

A. RECEIVE BRIEFING ON RECOMMENDATION FROM THE PARKING SUBCOMMITTEE
REGARDING PARKING ADMINISTRATOR POSITION;

B. REQUEST TO APPOINT MEMBERS OF NEW PARKING COMMITTEE;
C. CHARGE NEW PARKING COMMITTEE TO REVISE CURRENT PARKING POLICY, DEVELOP

AND ADMINISTER PARKING GRIEVANCE PROCESS, AND IMPLEMENT CERTAIN
RECOMMENDATIONS MADE IN THE PARKING COMMITTEE REPORT. (COMMISSIONER

http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners_court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/2010

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 6 of 9

ECKHARDT)

35. RECEIVE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORTS FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2009.
Added to consent

36. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ITEMS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 2009
TRAVIS COUNTY COMBINED CHARITIES CAMPAIGN INCLUDING THE APPROVAL OF RECIPIENT
FEDERATIONS AND CHARITIES FOR USE IN THIS YEAR’S CAMPAIGN.
Postponed.

37. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST FOR TRAVIS COUNTY TO PAY
FOR INTERPRETER USED IN THE CONSOLIDATED HEARINGS OF TEXAS ALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGE COMMISSION (TABC) V. MERCED AND GRACIELA BENITEZ AND TABC V. LOS
COMALES, INC.
Video
Text

38. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING:
Video
Text

A. THE HIRING PROCESSES AND SCHEDULE TO FILL THE FOLLOWING POSITIONS:

1. CERTAIN POSITIONS IN THE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT;

2. DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT; AND

3. EXECUTIVE MANAGER, ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS; AND

B. INTERIM ASSIGNMENTS AND RELATED ACTIONS, AS APPROPRIATE.

EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS
Video
Text

Note 1 Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney
Note 2 Gov’t Code Ann 55 1.072, Real Property
Note 3 Gov’t Code Ann 55 1.074, Personnel Matters

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are
issues that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court
announces that the item will be considered during Executive Session.

39. RECEIVE LEGAL BRIEFING FROM COUNTY ATTORNEY AND OUTSIDE COUNSEL, RENEA
HICKS, ESQ. AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING THE MATTER OF NORTHWEST
AUSTIN M.U.D. V. HOLDER IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES. 1
Postponed.

40. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE COMMISSIONERS COURT’S POLICY
REGARDING THE USE OF EMINENT DOMAIN FOR THE ACQUISITION OF OPEN SPACE, PARK,
AND/OR RECREATIONAL USE LAND AND ADOPT AMENDMENTS AND REVISIONS TO SUCH
POLICY AS NEEDED. (COMMISSIONER DAVIS) 1

41. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING:

A. AN OFFER TO SELL APPROXIMATELY 25 ACRES OF UNDEVELOPED LAND LOCATED
SOUTH OF BURLESON ROAD AND EAST OF U.S. 183 SOUTH IN PRECINCT FOUR, FOR

http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/comniissioners court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/201 C

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 7 of 9

INCLUSION IN THE ONION CREEK OPEN SPACE PARKLAND - 2005 BOND PROJECT; AND
B. REQUEST THE COUNTY AUDITOR TO ISSUE A CHECK FOR $15,664 TO HERITAGE TITLE

COMPANY OF AUSTIN UPON FULL EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT AND FULL AUDIT OF
THE CLAIM AND THE COUNTY TREASURER TO RELEASE THE CHECK TO THE VENDOR.
(COMMISSIONER GOMEZ) 1 AND 2

42. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING AN AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT AN
OFFER FROM CARMA EASTON, INC. TO CONVEY APPROXIMATELY THREE ACRES OF FEE TITLE
INTEREST AND EASEMENT RIGHTS (PARCEL #1 AND 1E) TO TRAVIS COUNTY IN EXCHANGE
FOR 2,820 SQUARE FEET OF UNUSED, EXCESS RIGHT OF WAY (PARCEL #2), FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF THE 2001 BOND PROGRAM, MCKINNEY FALLS PARKWAY IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT, LOCATED IN PRECINCT FOUR. (COMMISSIONER GOMEZ) 1 AND 2

43. RECEIVE BRIEFING AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON ISSUES RELATED TO MANCHACA
COMMUNITY CENTER LOCATED AT 1310 FM 1626. (COMMISSIONER HUBER) 1
Pulled from the agenda.

AT 2:30 P.M. OR UPON ADJOURNMENT OR RECESS OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT

44. CONDUCT HEARING AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON APPEAL FROM JUNE 17, 2009
TRAVIS COUNTY GRIEVANCE PANEL DECISION IN NANCY DIMAS V. JUSTICE OF THE PEACE,
PRECINCT 5, PURSUANT TO TRAVIS COUNTY CODE SECTION 9.257(K). 1 AND 3

CONSENT ITEMS
Video
Text

Cl. RECEIVE BIDS FROM COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT.

C2. APPROVE COMMISSIONERS COURT MINUTES FOR VOTING SESSIONS OF AUGUST 4 AND
11, 2009.

C3. APPROVE SETTING OF A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF SEPTEMBER 8, 2009 TO RECEIVE
COMMENTS REGARDING A PROPOSED STREET NAME ASSIGNMENT FOR A PRIVATE EASEMENT
TO BE KNOWN AS “HOUND DOG TRAIL” OFF FM 969, EAST OF STATE HIGHWAY 130 IN
PRECINCT ONE. (COMMISSIONER DAVIS)

ADDED ITEMS

Al. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON A REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE TO
INSTALL THE SUPPLY AND RETURN LINE WITHIN PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS AT 15212
GENERAL WILUAMSON DRIVE. (COMMISSIONER HUBER)
Video
Text

A2. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING THIRD AMENDMENT TO
PURCHASE CONTRACT WITH GRASON VOLENTE INVESTMENTS, LTD. FOR BALCONES
CANYONLANDS PRESERVE LAND. (THIS ITEM MAY BE DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE SESSION
PURSUANT TO GOV’T CODE ANN. 551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY, AND GOV’T
CODE ANN. 55 1.072, REAL PROPERTY)
Video
Text

A3. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING FINAL PAYMENT (RETAINAGE)
TO UNISM DEVELOPMENT CO. INC., A SUBCONTRACTOR OF FAULKNERUSA, FOR WORK
PERFORMED ON THE TRAVIS COUNTY CORRECTIONAL COMPLEX ADDITIONS AND
ALTERATIONS PROJECT.
Video
Text

http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/201 (

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 8 of 9

ADJOURN

AGENDA
NORTHWEST TRAVIS COUNTY ROAD DISTRICT NO. 3 (GOLDEN TRIANGLE)
VOTING SESSION

TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2009, AT 1:30 P.M. OR
UPON ADJOURNMENT OR RECESS OF COMMISSIONERS COURT
Video
Text

1. APPROVE PAYMENT OF CLAIMS AND AUTHORIZE COUNTY TREASURER TO INVEST ROAD
DISTRICT FUNDS.

ADJOURN

AGENDA
TRAVIS COUNTY BEE CAVE ROAD DISTRICT NO. I. (GALLERIA)
VOTING SESSION

TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2009, AT 1:30 P.M. OR
UPON ADJOURNMENT OR RECESS OF COMMISSIONERS COURT
Video
Text

1. APPROVE PAYMENT OF CLAIMS AND AUTHORIZE COUNTY TREASURER TO INVEST ROAD
DISTRICT FUNDS.

ADJOURN

AGENDA
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION
VOTING SESSION

TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2009, AT 1:30 P.M. OR
UPON ADJOURNMENT OR RECESS OF COMMISSIONERS COURT
Video
Text

1. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST TO APPROVE A PLAN TO FUND A
NEW POSITION FOR AN ADMINISTRATOR FOR FEDERAL GRANTS AND CONTRACTS.

2. CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON REQUEST TO EXECUTE A SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT FOR A HOME BUYER WHO WANTS TO REFINANCE THEIR FIRST LIEN MORTGAGE.

ADJOURN

TEXAS CONFERENCE OF URBAN COUNTIES (CUC) LUNCHEON

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2009, AT 12:00 NOON
SHERATON HOTEL
701 EAST 11TH STREET, AUSTIN, TEXAS

A QUORUM OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT MAY ATTEND

AGENDA

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners eourt]agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/201 C

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Commissioners Court, Tuesday, August 25, 2009 Page 9 of 9

WORK SESSION

THURSDAY, AUGUST 27, 2009, AT 1:30 P~M.
314 W. 11TH STREET, COMMISSIONERS COURTROOM, 1ST FLOOR
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701

1. DISCUSS IMPACT OF THE 81ST LEGISLATURE ON TRAVIS COUNTY.
Video

2. DISCUSS TRAVIS COUNTY NORTH CAMPUS MASTER PLAN.
Video

3. DISCUSS TRAVIS COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 34, VEHICLE/HEAVY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
POLICY, ESPECIALLY THE CURRENT IMPACT ON CONSTABLES OFFICES.
Video

ADJOURN

Backup Materials Pilot Project

Travis County has begun providing backup materials for Commissioners Court meetings as a
pilot project. Backup materials may not contain all revisions or additions and may not be

available for all meetings.

Last Modified: Thursday, August 27, 2009 8:03 PM

Your comments and suggestions are always welcome, or you may contact the Webmaster directly.

Travis County provides this World Wide Web (WWW) site information and services “as is” without warranty of any kind, either express or implied. Travis County does not
warrant the accuracy, authority, completeness, usefulness, timeliness, or fitness for any particular purpose of the WWW site information or services. Travis County and
its officials and employees shall not be liable for any loss or injury caused in whole or in part by its negligence, contingencies beyond its control, or errors or omissions in
the WWW site information or services.

\~2\
http ://www.co.travis.tx.us/eonimissioners court/agendas/2009/08/vs090825 .asp 4/26/201 (

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Budget Adjustment: 21043

Fyr_ Budget Type: 2010-Reg

PBO Category: Transfer

Just: CommCodeRq

Created: 4/20/2010 4:13:18 PM

Dept: INFORMATION & TELECOMMUNI

Date Approved

4/20/2010 4:13:33 PM

4/20/2010 4:39:36 PM

Author: 12- MACIK, NICHOLAS

Court Date: Tuesday, May 42010

Cell Phone Allowance Slot No. 116

From Account Acct Desc Project Proj Desc Amount

001-1230-523-3001 OFFICE EQUIP,FURN, & SUPP 195

195

To Account Project Amount

001-1230-523-4107 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 165

001-1230-523-2002 FICA TAX - OASDI 10

001-1230-523-2005 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 18

001-1230-523-2007 FICA TAX - MEDICARE 2

195

Approvals Dept Approved By

Originator

DepOffice

12 NICHOLAS MACIK

12 NICHOLAS MACIK

Page 1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Rev. 11-13-2008

Travis County Monthly Cellular Service Allowance
REQUEST FORM

Pursuant to Travis County Code, Chapter 39, Wireless Communications Policy, I am
submitting this request for additions (A) or changes (C) of monthly cellular service
allowances within my Office/Department.

~ //effe~i~e date1

NOTE: All requests for new month y allowances or increases to previously approved
monthly allowances must first go through PBO, then be processed through the Auditor’s
Office. Along with this request form, a budget transfer sheet must be completed for a transfer
of funds into line items 2002 (6.2%), 2005 (9.64%), 2006 (1.95 POPS positions), 2007 (1.45%), and
the remaining into 4107. Unless the allowance is for a limited time, the budget transfer used
to fund the allowance can only be made on an annualized permanent basis.

Reviewed by PBO

Approved by Commissioner’s Court

Processed by Auditor’s Office

Date

signature and date

Return a copy to: Chuck Brotherton, Emergency & Wireless Communications Manager
Travis County Emergency Services
Phone 854-4895
Fax 854-4786
Email Charcs. Brotherion(àso.travis.txus

A cellular service monthly allowance is requested for $10/mo $20/mo $30/mo
(A_or_C,_Employee_ID_#,_position_title_and_slot_number):

A, 623833, Network Engineer I
‘~s~._~-b’ecre~L

F F F

r~ F F

F F F

F F F

r r
Comments:

~

q:j;~ 110
sign~itt1re and da~e/ -

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Allocated Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9892)

Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$6,639,865 Beginning Balance

$6,170 TNR 10/13/09 Canceled Purchase Orders
($2,132) Cons. Pct. 1 10/7/09 Accruals
$26,483 Various Dept 9/25/09 Canceled Purchase Orders
$1,388 TNR 10/23/09 Canceled Purchase Orders

($2,578,800) TNR 10/28/09 Reimbursement Resolution for Vehicles
($250,000) TNR 11/17/09 Comprehensive Plan

($93,003) Sheriff 1 1/24/09 SWAP
($516,000) Juvenile Probation 12/1/09 Family Preservation Contract

($16,000) Facilities 12/22/09 Reimbursement Resolution - Real Estate
($325,000) Facilities 12/22/09 Reimbursement Resolution - Real Estate

($25,000) TNR 3/23/10 Envision Central Texas
($20,000) Facilities 3/23/10 Due Diligence Inspections

($250,000) Facilities 3/30/10 Ernest Money for 700 Lavaca Bldg
($485,009) Facilities 3/30/10 Construction/FFE/ITS/moves for HHS Lease

($1 1,177) Facilities 3/30/10 New HHS lease for one month
($43,497) Purchasing 4/6/10 FTE - Purchasing Agent IV
($1,200) Purchasing 4/6/10 FTE - Office Equip, Furn & Supp

($29,771) PBO 4/13/10 Reimbursement Resolution - Broaddus Mod.6
$11,375 HHS 4/16/10 Canceled Purchase Orders

($93,565) County Attorney 4/27/10 New Atty. & Legal Secretary/Land Use Issues
($42,907) General Adminstration 4/27/10 WaIler Creek TIF

$99,688 Various Dept. 4/22/2010 Canceled Purchase Orders
$2,001,908 Current Balance

Possible Future Expenses Against Allocated Reserve Previously Identified:
Amount Explanation

($25,000) Grant Match MHPD
($26,185) Grant Match Second Chance
($20,000) Hazmat
($28,748) Armored Car Service
($25,000) Records Storage
($25,000) Postage

($600,189) Election Runoff
($60,000) Deaf Services Temporary Interpreters

($158,855) Family Drug Treatment Grant
($100,000) Court Appointed Attorney Fees
($300,000) Court Appointed Attorney Fees-Capital Cases
($150,000) County Court-at-Law #8 Court Appointed Atty Fees
($184,266) Drug Court Grant - Special Populations
($12,877) Overtime for FACTS Training/Implementation
($8,268) Overtime for FACTS Training/Implementation
($7,300) Miscellaneous Recurring Expenses-Operating

($1,731,688) Total Possible Future Expenses (Earmarks)
$270,220 Remaining Allocated Reserve Balance After Possible Future Expenditures

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Capital Acquisition Resources Account Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9891)

Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$454,223 Beginning Balance
($11,205) Sheriff 11/24/09 SWAP

($2,215) Facilities 12/22/09 Real Estate
($29,995) TNR 12/22/09 Sidewalk Maintenance Program
($13,395) TNR 1/8/10 Motorcycle Replacement
($2,403) ITS 4/6/10 Office Equip, Furn & Supp - Purchasing FTE

($357) ITS 4/6/10 Educ,Com, Eq & Supp - Purchasing FTE

$394,653 Current Reserve Balance

Possible Future Expenses Against CAR Identified During the FY09 Budget Process:
Amount Explanation

($95,500) Failing Vehicles

($95,500) Total Possible Future Expenses (Earmarks)
$299,153 Remaining CAR Balance After Possible Future Expenditures

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Emergency Reserve Status (00 1-9800-981-9814)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$4,950,000 Beginning Balance

$4,950,000 Current Reserve Balance

Fuel & Utility Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9819)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation
$1,000,000 Beginning Balance

$1,000,000 Current Reserve Balance

Juvenile Justice TYC (001-9800-981-9829)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$250,000 Beginning Balance

$250,000 Current Reserve Balance

Future Grant Requirements Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9837)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$500,000 Beginning Balance

$500,000 Current Reserve Balance

Smart Bldg. FacilIty Maintenance Reserve Status (001-9800-981-9838)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$43,092 Beginning Balance

$43,092 Current Reserve Balance

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Unallocated Reserve Status (00 1-9800-981-9898)
Amount Dept Transferred Into Date Explanation

$43,812,685 Beginning Balance
($2,161,824) ITS 12/15/09 Reimbursement Resolution-Computer

Equip.
($50,000) Tax 12/15/09 Reimbursement Resolution - Web

Browser Software
($2,264,000) Facilities 12/15/09 Reimbursement Resolution -

AHU/HVAC upgrades at Gault and
EOB

($7,189,337) EMS 2/23/10 Reimbursement Resolution -

purchase & completion of new SF
aircraft and 2 aircraft contracts

($735,000) Facilities 4/6/10 Reimbursement Resolution - Airport
Blvd. Property Purchase

$31,412,524 Current Reserve Balance

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for:

05-04-10

I. A. Request made by: Planning & Budget Office

Review and approve requests regarding grant proposals, applications, contracts, and
permissions to continue, and take other appropriate actions:

a) Annual application to the Office of Attorney General for the Juvenile
Probation Department to continue the Access and Visitation — Cooperative
Parent Program to promote compliance with court orders regarding child
access and visitation, and;

b) Annual application to the State of Texas — Auto Burglary and Theft
Prevention Authority (ABTPA) for the Sheriff’s Office to continue Sheriff’s
Combined Auto Theft Task Force (SCATTF) Program to reduce auto theft
rates in the 15 county task force area.

Approved by: ___________________________________
Signature of Commissioner(s) or County Judge

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this
Agenda Request and backup to them:

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:
Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)

_________ Additional funding for any department or for any purpose

Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget

________Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)

_______A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)

_______Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)

______Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 27



TRAVIS COUNTY

a 45 Access and Visitation - 09/01/2010 -

Cooperative Parent Program 8/31/2011
b 37 SCA’ITF - Sheriffs Combined 9/1/2010 -

Auto Theft Task Force 8/31/2011

PBO Notes:
R PBO recommends approval.
NR - PBO does not recommend approval
D - PBO recommends item be discussed.

$655,899 $319,936 $0 $975,835 11

County Auditor ~ ComplexityAssessment measuring Impact to their Office ~ Resources/Workload
S - Simple
MC - Moderately Complex
C - Complex
EC - Extremely Complex

5/4/2010
GRANT APPLICATIONS, CONTRACTS AND PERMISSIONS TO CONTINUE

FY2O1O

Thefo//owin~g list represents those actions required bji the commissioners C’ourtfor departments to app/yfoi; accept, or continue to operate ~rantpro~grams. This re~u/ar a~genda item

contains this summa~y sheet, as we/I as backi~p material that is attacliedfor cIar~/ication.

Grant Grant County In-Kind Program PBO Auditor’s
Dept Grant Title Period Award Match Total FTEs Notes Assessment Page # ARRA

Applications

$29,870 $2,987 $0 $32,857 0 R 5 13

R EC 45

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



FY 2010 Grants Summary Report

Outstanding Grant Applications

Thefoilowin~ is a lsrt of<grantsfor which applicaz~ion has been submitted since October 1, 2009, and the notijication ofaward has notjet been received
American Recvve~y and Rei,westmentAct (ARRA,) and Lar<ge Multi~year Grants are bold and italicized Additional detailsfor these <grants are summarized on a separate pa,ge in the document;

Cm. Ct.
Grant Grant County In-Kind Program Approval

Dept Name of Grant Term Award Match Total FTEs Date

49 CAPCOGFY1OSoIIdWaste 12/15/2009- $8,517 $0 $0 $8,517 0 10/6/2009
Enforcement Grant 08/31/2010

24 Formula Grant - Indigent Defense 10/1/2009 - $430,945 $0 $0 $430,945 0 10/6/2009
Grants Program 9/30/2010

14 American Recovery and 12/4/2009- $2, 000,000 $360,000 $40,000 $2, 400,000 0 10/27/2009
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) 4/30/2011
Competitive Grant for Distributable
Renewable Energy Power
Generation

58 RSVP 10/1/2009- $61,281 $6,128 $0 $67,409 0 11/24/2009
9/30/2010

12 BJA Federal SAVNS - Courts Only 11/30/2009 - $22,972 $0 $0 $22,972 0 12/8/2009
3/31/2011

49 Transportation Enhancement Program FY 2011 - $3,419,066 $854,766 $0 $4,273,832 0 12/8/2009
FY2014

37 Recovery Act - STOP Violence 4/1/2010 - $1~ 080 $0 $0 $10~, 080 0 12/15/2009
Against Women Act (ARRA) TC 3/31/2011
Expedited Victim Restoration Grant

37 Recovery Act - STOP Violence 4/1/2010 - $64,599 $0 $0 $64,559 1 12/22/2009
Against Women Act (ARRA) 3/31/2011
Amended 12/15/09 application TC
Expedited Victim Restoration Grant

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



47 Emergency Management Performance 10/1/2009 - $67,200 $67,200 $0 $134,400 0 12/29/2009
Grant 9/30/2010

58 ArneriCorps 8/1/2010- $295,290 $164,583 $104,598 $564,471 0 1/19/2010
7/31/2011

45 JABG(Local)JuvenileAssessment 9/1/2010- $110,115 $12,235 $0 $122,350 1.37 1/26/2010
Center 8/31/2011

24 Formula Grant - Indigent Defense 10/1/2009 - $430,945 $0 $0 $430,945 0 2/2/2010
Grants Program 9/30/2010

45 Juvenile DrugCourt and In-Home 9/1/2010- $178,200 $19,800 $0 $19,800 0.24 2/9/2010
Family Services 8/31/2011

Multi Family Violence Protection Team 10/1/2010 - $699,507 $168,239 $0 $867,746 4.5 2/9/2010
pie 9/30/2012

37 TXDOTSelectiveTrafficEnforcement 10/1/2010- $10,702 $1,925 $0 $12,627 0 2/16/2010
Program - FY2O11 STEP Wave 9/30/2011

45 Grant to Expand Substance Abuse 10/1/2010 - $324,830 $48,289 $0 $273,119 3 2/23/2010
Treatment Capacity forJuvenile 9/30/2011
Treatment Drug Court

24 Travis County Veteran’s Court 4/1/2010 - $48,895 $0 $0 $48,895 1 3/2/2010
8/31/2010

19 FamilyViolenceAccelerated 9/12010- $88,948 $31,220 $16,675 $136,843 1.5 3/2/2010
Prosecution Program 8/31/2011

45 Front End Therapeutic Services 9/1/2010 - $28,000 $0 $0 $28,000 0 3/2/2010
Program 8/31/2011

45 Eagle Resource Project 09/1/2010- $49,844 $0 $0 $49,884 0 3/2/2010
8/31/2011

45 Travis County Eagle Re-Entry Program 10/1/2010 - $382,685 $0 $382,685 $765,370 6.45 3/2/2010
9/30/2011

37 TCSO Child Abuse Victim Services 10/1/2010 - $39,926 $9,982 $0 $49,908 1 3/2/2010
Personnel 9/30/2011

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



58 Emergency Food and Shelter Program - 1/1/2010 - $122,573 $0 $0 $122,573 0 3/9/2010
Phase 28 12/31/2010

40 OVWFY2OlOSafeHavens: 10/1/2010- $400,000 $0 $0 $400,000 0 3/9/2010
Supervised Visitation and Safe Exchange 9/30/2013

39 GrantstoExpandSubstanceAbuse 10/1/2010- $619,356 $0 $0 $619,365 0 3/9/2010
Treatment Capacity for Adult Drug 9/1/2013
Courts RFA No. Ti-b-Oh

22 FamilyDrugTreatmentCourt(Grant 9/1/2010- $184,981 $0 $0 $184,981 2 3/16/2010
#1974704) 8/31/2011

24 DrugDiversion Court 9/1/2010- $188,422 $0 $0 $188,422 1 3/16/2010
8/31/2011

24 Travis County Veteran’s Court 9/1/2010 - $206,003 $0 $0 $206,003 2 3/30/2010
8/31/2011

39 Travis CountyAdultProbationDWl 9/1/2010- $234,391 $0 $0 $234,391 1 3/30/2010
Court 8/31/2011

55 Mental Health Public Defender 09/01/2010 - $20Q, 000 $50,000 $0 $250,000 2 4/6/2010
Expansion Grant 8/31/2012

45 Travis County COPE (Collaborative 10/1/2010 - $199,986 $0 $49,998 $249,984 1.38 4/6/2010
Opportunities for Positive Experiences) 9/30/2012
Expansion Program

45 LeadershipAcademyDualDiagnosis 10/01/2010- $142,535 $47,512 $0 $190,047 1.82 4/6/2010
Unit - Residential Substrance Abuse 9/30/2011
Treatment Program

37 Target & Blue Law Enforcement Grant 10/1/2010 - $2,000 $0 $0 $2,000 0 4/13/2010
9/30/2011

58 Parentingin Recovery 9/30/2010- $500,000 $0 $0 $500,000 1 4/20/2010
9/29/2011

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



37 State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 7/1/2008 - $39,278,809 $0 $0 $39,278,809 4/20/2010
- SCAAP 10 6/30/2009

58 Travis CountyFamilyDrugTreatment 10/1/2010- $350,000 $80,000 $36,667 $466,667 1.5 4/27/2010
Court - Children’s Continuum 9/30/2013

$51,401,603 $1,921,879 $630,623 $53,675,914 33.76

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



FY 2010 Grants Approved by Commissioners Court

TheJb/lowinli is a list ofgrants that have been received bj Travis C’oun~y since October 1, 2009

American Recove~y and ReinvestmentAct ~ARRA,~) and Laige Multiyear Grants are bold and italicized Additional detailsJbr these lirants are summarized on a sepamtepa~e in the

document.

Cm. Ct.
Grant Grant County In-Kind Program Approval

Dept Name of Grant Term Award Match Total FTEs Date

14 Energy Efficiency and Conservation 10/2009 - $2,207 900 $0 $0 $Z20~ 900 0 10/6/2009
Block Grants - Recovery (ARRA) 04/2011

49 TXDoTAdvancedFundingAgreement- 7/28/2009 $6,000,000 $1,575,000 $0 $7,575,000 0 10/6/2009
Howard Lane ~ SH13O

58 2009 Phase 27 ARRA Emergency Food 04/01/2009 - $41,666 $0 $0 $41,666 0 10/6/2009
and Shelter Program 12/31/2009

19 Underage Drinking Prevention Program 10/01/2008 - $193,750 $35,715 $119,504 $348,969 3 10/6/2009
9/30/2011

47 Emergency ManagementPerformance Grant 10/01/08- $67,200 $67,200 $0 $134,400 0 10/13/2009
9/30/09

58 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 1/1/2009 - $3,198,032 $0 $0 $3,198,032 0 10/13/2009
(CEAP) Amendment 1 12/31/2009

58 TideIV-EChildWelfareServices 10/1/2009- $57,360 $0 $0 $57,360 1 10/20/2009
9/30/2010

59 Travis County STAR Flight Equipment 10/1/2009 - $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000 0 10/27/2009
Enhancement 11/30/2011

39 Travis CountyAdultProbationDWlCourt 9/1/2009- $210,315 $0 $0 $210,315 1 11/3/2009
8/31/2010

22 FamilyDrugTreatment Court 9/1/2009- $108,350 $0 $0 $108,350 1 11/3/2009
8/31/2010

45 Drug Court/In-Home Family Services Grant 9/1/2009 - $157,500 $17,500 $0 $175,000 0 11/10/2009
8/31/2010

45 ResidetitialSubstanceAbuseTreatment 10/1/2009- $102,888 $34,296 $0 $137,184 1.58 11/10/2009
Program 9/30/2010

37 2009 Byrnejustice Assistance Grant - Non 9/17/2009 - $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000 0 11/17/2009
ARRA 9/30/2012

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



37 2009 ByrneJustice Assistance Grant 3/1/2009 - $495;, 000 $0 $0 $495;, 000 0 11/17/2009
(ARRA) 2/28/2013

23 Texas Commission on Environmental 11/09 - $590,797 $0 $0.00 $590,797 1.75 11/17/2009
Quality Intergovernmental Cooperative 8/31/2012
Reimbursement Agreement with Travis
County

49 Onion Creek Greenway, Phase 1 - Urban 8/21/2008 - $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0.00 $2,000,000 0 11/17/2009
Outdoor Recreation Grant 8/20/2011

58 RSVP - Texas Department of Aging and 9/1/2009 - $23,800 $23,800 $0 $47,600 0 11/17/2009
Disability Services (TDADS) 8/31/2010

58 Veterans’ Employment and Training Service 10/24/2009 - $7,000 $0 $0.00 $7,000 0 11/17/2009
(Stand Down Grant) 10/25/2009

37 2007 Homeland Security GrantProgram- 10/12/2007- $106,905 $0 $0 $106,905 0 11/24/2009
LETPP 2/28/2010

49 Flood Mitigation Assistance - Planning 8/28/2009 - $30,000 $10,000 $0 $40,000 0 12/1/2009
Grant 8/31/2011

37 State CriminalAlienAssistanceProgram- 7/1/2007- $988,279 $0 $0 $988,279 0 12/15/2009
SCAAP 09 6/30/2008

37 Human Trafficking Law Enforcement Task 12/1/2009 - $20,000 $0 $0 $20,000 0 12/15/2009
Force 9/30/2010

23 Project Safe Neighborhoods 12/1/2009 - $29,410 $0 $0 $29,410 1 1/5/2010
12/31/2010

58 RSVP 10/1/2009 - $61,281 $6,128 $0 $67,409 0.5 2/2/2010
9/30/2010

58 AtmosEnergyKeepingtheWarmth 2/12/2010- $25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 0 2/9/2010
Program 1/31/2010

49 CAPCOGFYl0SolidWasteEnforcement 2/16/2010- $8,517.96 $0 $0 $8,517.96 0 2/16/2010
Grant 12/31/2010

58 Parenting in Recovery 9/30/2009 - $50~ 690.70 $80, 000.00 $4.5 000.00 $633,690.70 1 2/23/2010
9/29/2010

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



55 Information Management Strategy for 10/1/2009 - $48~359 $0 $0 $48~359 0 2/23/2010
CfiminalJustice Edward Byrne 9/30/2010
MemoriaiJustice Assistance Formula
Grant (ARRA)

58 Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 1/1/2010 - $2,934,664 $0 $0 $2,934,664 0 3/2/2010
(CEAP) 12/31/2010

58 ARRA WAP - Weatherization Assistance 9/1/2009 - $2,311~,350 $0 $0 $2~,3flj,350 0 3/2/2010
Program 8/31/2011

49 Low Income Vehicle Repair Assistance, 5/6/2008 - $1,259,730.11 $0 $0 $1,259,730.11 0 3/9/2010
Retrofit, and Accelerated Vehicle Retirement 8/31/2010
Program Local Initiative Projects Contract
with Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality

55 OfficeofChildRepresentation 10/1/2009- $239,662 $443,338 $0 $673,000 8 3/16/2010
9/30/2010

55 Office of ParentaiRepresentation 10/1/2009- $190,160 $482,840 $0 $673,000 8 3/16/2010
9/30/2010

58 SVCI (Seniors and Volunteers for Childhood 9/1/2009 - $8,845.20 $0 $0 $8,845.20 0.25 3/30/2010
Immunization) 8/31/2010

58 CaseyFamilyProgramsCommunityand 1/1/2010- $80,000 $0 $0 $80,000 1 3/30/2010
58 RSVP 10/1/2009- $63,119 $6,312 $0 $69,431 0.5 3/30/2010

9/30/2010
37 2007 LETTP 10/12/2007- $99,240 $0 $0 $99,240 0 3/30/2010

2/28/2010
58 SVCI (Seniors and Volunteers for Childhood 10/1/2009 - $4,000 $0 $0 $4,000 0.25 4/13/2010

Immunization) Advisiory Council 9/30/2010

58 ARRAWAP-WeatherizadonAssistance 9/1/2009- $2,311,350 $0 $0 $2,311,350 0 4/13/2010
Program 8/31/2011

37 Auto Theft Prevention Authority 4/1/2010 - $37,300 $0 $0 $37,300 4/27/2010
Supplemental Grant 8/31/2010

$26,441,421 $3,782,129 $164,504 $30,378,054 29.83

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



FY 2010 Grants Summary Report

Permission to Continue

Cm. Ct. Cm. Ct. Has the

Approval Contract General Fund
Name of Personnel Operating Estimated Filled Date for Approval been

Dept Grant Cost Transfer Total FTEs Continuation Date Reimbursed?
22 Drug Court $5,084 $5,084 $10,168 1 8/18/2009 11/3/2009 Yes

(State) Program

45 Residential $8,994 $8,994 $17,988 1 9/22/2009 11/10/2009 Yes
Substance Abuse
Treatment

22 Drug Court $5,084 $5,084 $10,168 1 10/6/2009 11/3/2009 Yes
(State) Program

58 Casey Family $9,726 $9,726 $19,452 1 12/22/2009 3/30/2010 Pending
Programs
Community and
Family
Reintegration
Project

58 *Comprehensive $430,000 1 /19/2010 3/2/2010 Pending
Energy
Assistance Grant
Program

Totals $28,888 $28,888 $487,776 4

Request is not a traditional permission to continue. Budget and expenditures will remain in the departments General Fund Budget until the contract is in place and reclassiuications against the grant are processed.

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY FY09- FY14 PLANNING TOOL FOR AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT ~ARRA) AND LARGE MULTI-YEAR
GRANT CONTRACTS

~1’he potential impact in future years to the County is shown for planning purposes only. County funding determinations will be made annually by the Commissioners Court based on the availability funding
and progress of the program. ARRi\ Grants are highlighted in bold.

Future year amounts are estimated if not known and impact amounts may be reduced if additional Non-Count) funding is identified. Amounts shown in a particular year may not represent the actual grant
term allocation since terms may overlap the County’s Fiscal Year.

Grant Contracts approved by Commissioners Court FY09 FY10 FY ~1 ‘Y 12 FY13 FY14

Grant Award Add. County Grant Award Add County Grant Award Add County Grant Award Add County Grant Award Add County Grant Award Add. C:unty

Dept Grant Title
Criminal Justice Travis County Mental Public Defenders Office. To establish the $ 375,000 $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 375,000 $ 125,000 $ 500,000 $ - $ 625,000 $ - $ 625,000 $ 625,000

Planning nation’s first stand alone Mental Health Public Defenders Office. Full
impact in FY 12 when grant is no longer available.

Criminal Justice Office of Parental Representation. County impact is intended to be $ 300,000 $ 307,743 $ 100,000 $ 102,360 $ 50,000 $ 152,360 $ - $ 152,360 $ - $ 152,360 $ - $ 152,360
Planning offset by reductions to Civil Indigent Attorney Fees. Full impact in

FY 12 when grant is no longer available. Impact amounts will be
updated to take into account internal reallocations and potential
savings.

Criminal Justice Office of Child Representation. County impact is intended to be $ 300,000 $ 301,812 $ 100,000 $ 102,358 $ 50,000 $ 152,359 $ $ 152,359 $ - $ 152,359 $ - $ 152,359
Planning offset by reductions to Civil Indigent Attorney Fees. FY11 is last

year of grant. Impact amounts will be updated to take into account
internal reallocations and potential savings.

Criminal Justice Travis County Information Management Strategy for Criminal $ - $ $ 487,359 $ - $ - $ 26,432 $ - $ 26,432 $ - $ 26,432 $ 26,432
Planning Justice (ARRA). Includes technology funding for (Constables,

Records Management, Adult Probation, Juvenile Probation,
Court Administration, County Attorney’s Office, District
Attorney’s Office and Manor Police Department).

Facilities Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (ARRA).For $ $ 2,207,900 $ 1,292,000 $ - $ $ $
Management Retrofit of the Travis County Executive Office Building HVAC

System. One-time grant and includes a $1.2 million County
contribution in FY10 to complete project

Travis County 2009 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (ARRA). One-time grant $ - $ - $ 123,750 $ - $ 165,000 $ - $ 165,000 $ - $ $ - $
Sheriff’s Office for one-time capital purchases. Does not require a County

match or program to continue after grant term ends on 9/30/12.

Community Recovery Act Combating Criminal Narcotics Activity Stemming $ - $ - $ 143,750 $ - $ 143,750 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
Supervision from the Southern Border of the US: Enhancing Southern

and Corrections Border Jails, Community Corrections and Detention Operations.
(ARRA) Grant will supplement department’s state funding to
help keep all current probation officer positions. This two year
funding goes to the State and there is no County obligation or
impact. Full amount of grant is believed to be spent byFY 11.

District Attorney Interlocal Agreement for the Austin/Travis County Family Violence $ 342,793 $ - $ 342,793 $ - $ 342,793 $ - $ 342,793 $ - $ 342,793 $ - $ 342,793 $
Protection Team. Includes funding for the District Attorneyb Office,
County Attorney~ Office, Travis County Sheriff’s Office, and
Constable Pc/S. Grant is coordinated by the City of Austin. It is
possible that the responsibillty to apply for the Grant may fall to the
County for FY11 and beyond.

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Local Transportation Project - Advanced Funding Agreement
(ARRA). ARRA funding to upgrade 4 roads by milling and
overlaying roadway. Grant is a one.time grant with the potential
for estimated $13,741 contribution from the Road and Bridge
Fund.

Totals $ 3,070,731 $1,161,189 $ 8,554,926 $ 2,175,626 $ 4,728,764 $1,135,059 $ 2,172,470 $ 1,260,059 5 1,507,470 S 1,760,059 $1,490,480 51,760,059

County Impact includes the grant match amount that is not internally funded or costs that required a budget increase and the amount that maybe required by the County upon termination of the grant. This amount does not include all costs related to the
administration of the grant that are incurred by the County. Existing grants with approved con tracts for the current year with pending applications for the following year are shown only on the contracts sheet to avoid duplication.

Y OF APPROVED CONTRACTS AND Al

FY09 FY 1 FY12 FY13 FY14

Combined Totals
(Approved Applications Pending Notification + Approved Conlracls( Add. County Add, County Add. County Add. County Grant Add. County Grant Add County

Grant Amount Grant Amount Grant Amount Grant AmountImpact Impact Impact Impact Amount Impact Amount Impact

Approved Applications Pending Notification (Potential Impact) $ . $ - $ 2164,599 $ 385,000 $ 100,000 $ 25,000 $ - $ 125000 $ - $ 125,000 $ - $ 125,000
~ Approved Contracts $ 3070731 $ 1,161,189 $ 8,554,926 $ 2,175,626 $ 4,728764 $ 1,135,059 $ 2,172,470 $ 1,260,059 $ 1,507,470 $ 1,760,059 $1,490,480 $1,760,059
Combined Totals $ 3,070,731 $ 1,161,189 $ 10,719,525 $ 2,560,626 $ 4,828,764 $1,160,059 $ 2,172,470 $ 1,385,059 $ 1,507,470 $ 1,885,059 $1,490,480 $1,885,059

Transportation
and Natural
Resources

$ $ 687,047$ $ - $ - $ - $ $ - $

Health and 2009 Phase 27 ARRA Emergency Food and Shelter Program. $ 41,666 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
Human The grant is a one.year one-time grant for emergency utility

Services assistance that does not require a County match or program to
continue after termination.

Health and Americorps. Grant match is handled infernally within the existing $ 288,139 $ - $ 298,297 $ - $ 298,297 $ $ 298,297 $ $ 298,297 $ $ 281,297 $
Human Services budget of the Texas AgriLife Extension Service, Assumes grant will

continue each year.
Health and Parenting in Recovery. FY09 is Year Two of a Potential Five Year $ 500,000 $ 77726 $ 500,000 $ 80,000 $ 500,000 $ 80,000 $ 500,000 $ 80,000 $ $ 580,000 $ - $ 580,000

Human Services Grant. The full impact wit occur in FY13 when grant funding is no
longer available.

Health and ARRA Texas Weatherization Assistance Program. Provide $ - $ 2,311,350 TBD $ 2,187,544 TBD $ - $ - $
Human weatherization services to low income households

Services
Health and Community Development Block Grant ARRA (CDBG.R) Funds to be $ 90,000 $ $ 136,300 $ $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $

Human Services used for approx 39 water connections for Plainview Estates.

Health and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). Impact amounts are $ 833,133 $ 223,908 $ 866,380 $ 223,908 $ 866,380 $ 223,908 $ 866,380 $ 223,908 $ 866,380 $ 223,908 $ 866,390 $ 223,908
Human Services based on the amounts added for staff added in HHS and County

Audftor~s Office to support the grant. The Audito,~s staff person also
supports other large federal grants, but is only listed here for
simplification. Actual amounts may vary by year. Assumes grant will
continue each year.

SUMM.AF ‘PLICATIONS

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY FY09- FY14 PLANNING TOOL FOR AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACT (ARRA) AND LARGE MULTI-YEAR GRANT

APPLICATIONS TI-IAT ARE PENDING AWARD NOTIFICATION

The potential impact in future years to the County is shown for planning purposes only. County funding dctcrminanons will be made annually by the Commissioners Court based on the
availability funding and progress of the program. ARRi\ Grants are highlighted in bold.

Future year amounts are estimatcd if not known and impact amounts may be reduced if additional Non_County funding is identified. Amounts shown in a particular year may not represent the
actual grant term allocation since terms may overlap the Countys Fiscal Year.

Grant Award

Dept Grant Title
Travis County Recovery Act- STOP Violence Against Women Act. TC $

Sheriff’s Expedited Victims Restoration Grant. One-time ARRA
OfficelCounty funding for lap tops for TCSO and one-time funding for a

Attorney’s Victim Counselo, lap top compute, and operating
Office expenses for the County Attorney’s Office. Grant ends

March 2011, but for simplification purposes the award is
shown fully in 2010. No County match or commitment after
grant ends.

Facilities American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) $
Management Competitive Grant for Distributable Renewable Energy

Power Generation. Grant is for one-time capital purchases
to install solar panels atthe Expo Center. Grant ends in
2011, but amounts shown assume full expenditures in FY
10. Expenditures for FY11 will be updated based on
progress of the program.

Criminal Justice Mental Health Public Defender Expansion Grant Will add $
Planning two FTE, an attorney and case worker to the office. Travis

County would assume the fuil cost of the FTE after the
grant period has ended. This grant is in addition to the
current $625,000 grant with the Texas Task Force on
Indigent Defense

Totals $0

Outstanding Grant Applications

County Impact includes the grant match amount that is not internally funded or costs that required a budget increase and the amount that may be required by the County upon termination of the grant This amount does not include all
costs related to the administration of the grant that are incurred by the County. Existing grants with approved contracts for the current year with pending applications for the following year are shown only on the contracts sheet to avoid

duplication.

FY09 I FY10 FY11

Grant Award

$ 64,599

I FY13 FY14

$ 2,000,000

$ 100,000

$2,164,599

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



GRANT SUMMARY SHEET

Application Approval: ~ Permission to Continue: LI
Check One:

Contract Approval: [1 Status Report: LI

Department/Division: I Juvenile Probation Department
Contact Person/Title: Alan Miller/Financial Analyst
Phone Number: (512) 854-5628

Grant Title:
09/1/2010

Office of the Attorney General
No: ~

Grant Period:
Grantor:
American Recovery md Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Grant Yes: LI

Access and Visitation-Cooperative Parent Program
From: To: 8/31/2011

One-Time Award: F~
Advance: LI

Ongoing Award: Li
Reimbursement: ~

Local
Funds

$0

$0

County
Match

$2,987

$2,987

In-Kind

0

TOTAL
$2,987

$29,870

$32,857

Department I Review I Staff Initials I Comments I
— I

County Auditor DB
County Attorney JC ~-1

01 20001 CurenI Trnnrn fl 02. fl TO 2lnnre.Ir.rnnIcnOEY 1054 IOlnan!le ln)hflnI 0200 OR.ONOSI ‘0101 ‘JOY-V n2 dnc

Check One:
Check One:
Type ofPayment:

New: LI Continuation: [~ Amendment: LI

Grant Categories!
Funding Source
Personnel:

Federal
Funds

Operating:

State
Funds

Capital Equipment:
$29,870

Indirect Costs:
Total:
FTEs:

$29,870 0

Projected Projected
Performance Measures FY 11 Progress To Date: FY 12

Applicable Depart. Measures Measure 12/31/10 3/31/10 6/31/10 9/30/12 Measure
Telephone inquiries 2796 N/A N/A N/A N/A 2796
Applicants 120 N/A N/A N/A N/A 120
Orientation hours provided 36 N/A N/A N/A N/A 36
Orientation attendees 1 80 N/A N/A N/A N/A 180
Education hours provided 216 N/A N/A N/A N/A 216
(CPP classes offered)
Cooperative Parenting class 996 N/A N/A N/A N/A 996
attendees per year
Number of conflict resolution 72 N/A N/A N/A N/A 72
services provided per year
Counseling Referrals 36 N/A N/A N/A 36
Services provided by 120 N/A N/A N/A N/A 120
attorney

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Active Cooperative Parenting 840 N/A N/A N/A N/A 840
Program cases (monthly
average = 70 active cases per
month)
Educational workshops 48 N/A N/A N/A N/A 48
conducted
Workshop attendees 600 N/A N/A N/A N/A 600
Hearings avoided 48 N/A N/A N/A N/A 48
Increased parenting time for 144 N/A N/A N/A N/A 144
non-custodial parent

Measures_For_Grant
Telephone inquiries 2796 N/A N/A N/A N/A 2796
Outcome Impact Description Questions answered on the Visitation process in Travis County.
Applicants 120 N/A N/A N/A N/A 120
Outcome Impact Description Number of people who formally apply to the Child Cooperative

Parenting program. These parents are given offered visitation
services.

Orientation hours provided 36 N/A N/A N/A N/A 36
Outcome Impact Description Summary ofprogram goals and services.
Orientation attendees 180 N/A N/A N/A N/A 180

. . Number of people to provide opportunity to provide programOutcome Impact Description
education.

Education hours provided 216 N/A N/A N/A N/A 216
(CPP classes offered)
Outcome Impact Description Nine hour required Cooperative Parent Classes (CPP).
Cooperative Parenting class 996 N/A N/A N/A N/A 996
attendees per year
Outcome Impact Description Total attendance of CPP classes for the year.
Number of conflict resolution 72 N/A N/A N/A N/A 72
services provided per year
Outcome Impact Description Settlement conferences and mediations conducted.
Counseling referrals 36 N/A N/A N/A N/A 36
Outcome Impact Description Number of people referred to counseling.
Active Cooperative Parenting 840 N/A N/A N/A N/A 840
Program cases
Outcome Impact Description Number of cases actively enrolled in program. Receive on-going

visitation services.
Educational workshops 48 N/A N/A N/A N/A 48
conducted
Outcome Impact Description Cooperative Parenting education workshops given.
Workshop attendees 600 N/A N/A N/A N/A 600
Outcome Impact Description Number of people attending workshops.
Hearings avoided 48 N/A N/A N/A N/A 48
Outcome Impact Description Case settlement.
Increased parenting time for 144 N/A N/A N/A N/A 144
non-custodial parent
Outcome Impact Description Monthly measurements of visitation for the non-custodial parent.

\I ~ (~ 02- -0 0 01- r ~ 0~5—4-~00~mI~ ~ ~LVGR ~ 0 SIM2~I 0000 00 I

~L\J

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Services provided by 120 N/A N/A N/A N/A 120
attorney
Outcome Impact Description Legal work performed by attorney which include motions,

hearings, negotiations, etc.

PBO Recommendation:

Juvenile Probation is requesting Commissioners Court approval of the annual grant application
to the Office of the Attorney General for the Access and Visitation Grant — Cooperative Parent
Program. The program promotes compliance with Travis County court orders regarding child
access and visitation. The grant requires a cash match that is met through existing resources.

PBO recommends approval ofthis request to continue the existing program.

1. BriefNarrative - Summary of Grant: What is the goal of the program? How does the grant fit
into the current activities of the department? Is the grant starting a new program, or is it
enhancing an existing program?
This contract continues the existing Access and Visitation grant program for FY 11. The
grant funds the on-going Cooperative Parenting Program, which promotes compliance with
Travis County court orders regarding child access and visitation. This grant supports contracted
services for counseling at LifeWorks and program operating expenses. This grant funds the
instructox for the Cooperative Parenting Classes, attended by both applicants to DRO for
visitation, enforcement and by parents in family litigation ordered by the Travis County District
Courts. This application will also expand to provide preventive workshops to parents in regards
to Access and Visitation issues, and includes funds for Spanish interpreter for the workshops.

2. Departmental Resource Commitment: What are the long term County funding requirements
of the grant? _____________________
There are no long term funds County Funds associated with this grant. This is an option renewal
for 2012.

3. County Commitment to the Grant: Is a county match required? If so, how does the department
propose to fund the grant match? Please explain.
The grant requires a 10% match. To meet this requirement, $2,987 has been included as the
County’s match and will be covered by utilizing the salary ofthe part time visitation attorney.

4. Does the grant program have an indirect cost allocation, in accordance with the grant rules? If
not, please explain why not.

~ Indirect costs are a valid budget category but have not been requested as a part of this grant.

5. County Commitment to the Program Upon Discontinuation of Grant by Grantor: Will the
program discontinue upon discontinuance of the grant funding? (Yes/No) IfNo: What is the
proposed funding mechanism: (1) Request additional funding (2) Use departmental resources. If
(2) is answered, provide details about what internal resources are to be provided and what other
programs will be discontinued as a result.
It is not anticipated that this program will discontinue. In the event the grant program were to
terminate, the Department intends to request subsequent year continuation funding for this

SS~~fl ~ 1r~,~F~O2 - FY G ~Fr ,Yr~FY IO’5-4-IOJmu~I, ~ ~&VGRYFt S~\f~1.~J~Y F~

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



program through other proposals submitted to the Federal and State government, as well as
private foundations. As previously presented to the Court, the County will have the opportunity
to consider investment in the project as well as other areas ofthe Domestic Relations Office

6. If this is a new program, please provide information why the County should expand into this
area.

~ Not applicable.

7. Please explain how this program will affect your current operations. Please tie the
performance measures for this program back to the critical performance measures for your
department or office.
Grant-funded contractors provide client assistance in the Access and Visitation program that
cannot be provided at Domestic Relations because of conflicts of interest. These services
include instruction ofthe Cooperative Parenting Program classes and family and individual
counseling. The number of children who have access to both parents increases every year with
every successful visitation case resolved, and this has the corresponding benefit of generally
reducing conflict and increasing the regularity of child support payments.

01 00l~I1 Cn~re~l ~1002 - IV 10 M~o~ Or ft~~FV I0O5—I-I01r~~~l~~ \V\ 00I0.Vrl 010101 ‘2001-V I ,2.do~

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
COURT SERVICES

DETENTION SERVICES
PROBATION SERVICES

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES
UBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES

)OMESTIC RELATIONS OFFICE
JUVENILE JUSTICE

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION
PROGRAM

SUBJECT: FY10- 11 Access and Visitation Cooperative Parent Program

DATE: April 20, 2010

Juvenile Probation Domestic Relations Office is requesting approval to submit an application for funding through the
Office of the Attorney General for the Access and Visitation Grant. The Department is requesting funding in the
amount of $29,870 and will supply the 10% required match through existing funds.

The grant funds the on-going Cooperative Parenting Program, which promotes compliance with Travis County court
orders regarding child access and visitation. This grant supports contracted services with LifeWorks for counseling.
This allows parents in the visitation enforcement program another option for optimal co-parenting. This grant funds
the instructors for the Cooperative Parenting Classes, attended by both applicants to DRO for visitation enforcement
and by parents in family litigation ordered by the Travis County District Courts.

Please review this item and place it on the May 4, 2010 Commissioner’s Court Agenda for their consideration and
signature. If you have any questions, please give me a call at ext. 4-5628.

Thank you in advance for your attention to this request.

CC: Scot Doyal
Karen Miller
Ellie Ortiz
Jim Connolly
Dede Bell
Sylvia Mendoza

Fax: (512) 854-7097 (1

TRAVIS COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARThIENT

ESTELA P. MEDINA
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer

TO: Travis Gatlin, PBO
Senior Budget Analyst /Th

FROM: ..~ P. Y~U~
Estela P. Medina
Chief Juvenil~-Probatjon 0 er

THROUGH:
Alan Miller
Financial Analyst

2515 South Congress Avenue 4~ Austin, Texas 78704 4. (512) 854-7000

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ATTORNEY GENERAL OF TEXAS
GREG ABBOTT

CHILD SUPPORT DIVISION
FAMILY INITIATIVES

Shared Parenting Grant Application

Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012

General Information
Full Legal Name of Entity Travis County

Doing Business As Travis County Juvenile Probation

Name/Title of Grant Karen Miller, Visitation Attorney
Application Contact
Name of Project Access and Visitation — Cooperative Parenting

Program
Amount Requested $29,870

Award Funding Period September 1, 2010 — August 31, 2011; option to renew
Mailing Address/P.O. Box PC Box 1495

• City Austin
e State Texas
. Zip 78767

Physical Address 1010 Lavaca
• County Travis
e City Austin
• State Texas
. Zip 78701

Type of Entity (Court, Local Government
Government, Non-Profit)
Website(s) & Social Media www.traviscountydro.org
# of Paid Employees in 4000

Organization
Texas Vendor ID# (14 digits) 17460001922000
Federal Employer ID# (9 digits) 74-6000192
Organization year end (mouth, 9/30/2010
date, year)

Application Contact Name Karen Miller
• Title Visitation Attorney
e Telephone Number (512) 8549628
e Fax Number (512) 8549819
o E-Mail Address karen .miIIer@co.travis ~tx.us

Name of Project Financial Susan Spataro
Officer

Page 1 of 23 SPP Application

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



e Title of Project County Auditor
Financial_Officer

e Telephone Number 512-854-9125
~ Fax Number 512-854-6640

• E-Mail Address susan.spataro@co.travis.tx.us
Name of Person Authorized to The Honorable Samuel T. Biscoe
Sign Contracts on behalf of
Applicant

• Title of Person County Judge
Authorized

• Telephone Number 512-854-9555
. FaxNumber 512-854-9535
• E-Mail Address sam.biscoe@co.travis.tx.us

Debarment — Organization’s No
current status, “Yes” or “No”.
If “Yes,” please explain.
Geographical Areas to be City of Austin/Travis County
Served (by county)

Brief Description of Project The Cooperative Parenting Program improves shared
parenting communication, and de-escalates co-parenting
conflict. Program goals include prevention, early
intervention and casework and legal intervention in high
conflict cases through coordinated services with non-
custodial parents and fragile families like parent education,
mediation, case management and legal enforcement of
visitation orders.

Note: Type your response in the boxes after each question. Each box is a self-
expanding table cell.

1. Historical Applicant Information

A. Briefly describe the development of the applicant=s organization. Who created the
organization? For what purpose was the organization created and how has it evolved?

Page 2 of 23

The Travis County Domestic Relations Office was created in 1952 for the purpose of collecting
delinquent child support. Over the years, the organization has assumed other functions such as
social studies for adoptions, custody evaluations, docketing for and compliance with case
processing time frames in child abuse cases, child support registry duties and enforcement of
child and medical support and visitation orders. Domestic Relations began enforcing visitation
orders in the late 70’s as part of its child support enforcement program. With the availability of
federal grant money, through the Office of the Attorney General, the Domestic Relations Office
was able to develop a separate visitation enforcement program with coordinated services that
include cooperative parenting classes, assessment and counseling services, neutral exchange
services, parent settlement conferences and legal enforcement. This assures non-custodial
parents time with their children and helps children to have the benefit of two parents with less
parental conflict.

Today the Domestic Relations Office acts as the family law ann of the District Courts. The goal
of the Domestic Relations Office is to provide services to families in cases of separation, divorce,

‘9

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



termination of parental rights, abuse, adoption, and enforcement of court orders resulting fl~om
suits affecting the parent/child relationship. Domestic Relations is always mindful of the best
interest of the children.

B. Describe in full the current operation of your program. List current services, the
locations where services are offered, and number of parents served.

Currently, non-custodial parents who need visitation enforcement are asked to attend an
orientation session held each Wednesday at the Domestic Relations Office, in downtown Austin.
The visitation enforcement officer conducts an orientation session describing the Cooperative
Parenting Program, services offered, and the agency’s expectations of the Applicant. Currently,
the program offers the following services:

1. Parenting Plan consultation with a licensed social worker and attorney
2. Informal mediation services
3. Cooperative Parenting classes, a nine hour co-parenting educational program
4. Neutral visitation exchanges, supervised and therapeutic supervised visitation services
5. Telephonic educational consultation about court orders and parenting plans, and referrals

to appropriate agencies for additional services, when our program is inappropriate
6. Counseling services, when appropriate

Counseling services are currently offered through Lifeworks, a non-profit counseling group with
three Austin locations. Visitation services like neutral exchanges and supervised visitation are
offered through a network of providers who are part of the Kids Exchange network, and who
have offices located throughout Travis County.

On average, our program currently serves approximately 150 parents each month.

C. Describe the overall vision and goals of the program. Discuss program strategies and
target populations for services for the coming year.

Children deserve to have a relationship with both parents, free of co-parenting conflict. The
Cooperative Parenting Program vision is to educate parents about the negative impact that
ongoing inter-parental conflict has on children, and to provide parents with new skills to co
parent effectively, which will facilitate compliance with court orders.

Through the evolution of our program, it has become clearer that the earlier the intervention into
co-parenting conflict, the more effective the service seems to be in de-escalating that conflict.
Therefore, our expanded vision necessitates that we expand our program to intervene early, and
prevent the co-parenting conflict whenever possible, by adding services that educate our target
population about cooperative parenting strategies and tools to effectively share parenting. Of
course, we will continue to offer services in cases where co-parenting conflict already exists.

Our goals include:
• Improving parental communication regarding children

De-escalating co-parenting conflict
o Increasing quality parenting time for non-custodial parents
o Resuming the court-ordered parenting plan

Our target population consists of the non-custodial parent who has a child support case with the
OAG. It is also our goal to target never married parents and ideally intervene early to prevent co
parenting conflict that so often occurs in the fragile family. We also plan to serve separated
parents who have final, Travis County orders from other court dockets, when they experience co
parenting conflict that affects parenting time.

Page 3 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



D. Describe in full any recent experience in managing state or federal grant funds.

2. Applicant Funding History
For the past three years, if appropriate, list private contributions/donations, any grant funding, and
public funding amounts for all programs operated by your organization (whole dollars). If an
adjustment is made for reporting year starting in a month other than January, please note in fiscal
year (Starting Month) — (Ending Month). Ex.: Fiscal Year (Sept. 1 —Aug. 31).

Calendar Year: Jan. 1-Dec. 31 or Fiscal Year: 0— C)
Private Total

Contributions Grant Public Amount
Year / Donations Funds Funds Funded
2008 $0 $8,514,297 $29,212,143 $37,726,440
2009 $0 $8,436,855 $31,594,223 $40,031,078
2010 $0 $8,589,134 $30,899,982 $39,489,116

What is your organization’s estimated funding for 2011 Shared Parenting services? Please
include the source of funding and the program that will be funded.

Source/Program (~ffimding receivedfrom more than one source) Aniount
County General Revenue Fund $327,615

To implement our vision and goals, we plan to partner with area IV-D child support establishment
offices and to attend IV-D court dockets and to conduct outreach to Travis County family court
judges to inform them about our early intervention services. We will conduct seminars about our
Cooperative Parenting Program to inform the courts (and its litigants), the schools (and the
parents), and community service agencies (and their clients) about our services. We will
distribute information packets with program materials and visitation calendars as teaching tools.
We will offer mediation services at local IV-D offices, and conflict resolution meetings in our
offices. We will also offer case management services, such as problem solving and parenting
planning, and counseling and neutral exchange visitation services, when appropriate. Litigation
services, such as settlement conferences and legal enforcement of cases will be offered when
absolutely necessary.

Travis County Juvenile Probation Department (TCJPD) has a history of managing both federal
and state grant funds. In fact, TCJPD has a very diverse source of revenue, receiving funds from
Office of the Governor’s Criminal Justice Division, Texas Juvenile Probation Commission, U.S.
Department of Justice, U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Texas Department of
Human Services, Austin Travis County Integral Care, the City of Austin, the Texas Attorney
General and others. Under the umbrella of the Juvenile Probation Department, Domestic
Relations Office (DRO) has managed the Access and Visitation grant since 2002, the ICSS
contract since 2008 and the Community Supervision Contract since 2005.

The Department’s Financial Services Unit holds the DRO accountable for financial efficiency and
oversees the financial management of all grants. Beyond demonstrating financial efficiency, the
DRO is able to demonstrate program effectiveness and has a sound plan for collecting data for
measuring performance and outcomes. With each grant, DRO ensures that all financial and
programmatic reports due are submitted in a timely manner.

Estimated Fundiui~ for FY 2011

Page 4 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Total Estimated Funding for FY 2011 $327,615

3. Applicant Fees for Service
Please identify all fees charged by your organization for services rendered whether grant related
or not. Please note that the United States Department of Health and Human Services
(~DHHS) has determined that no fee may be charged to provide the same services for which
grant funds would be allocated. In addition, no membership fees may be assessed as a
condition of receiving grant-related services.

Domestic Relations collects a variety of fees including an annual fee for all child support orders, 1
attorney’s fees for child support enforcement, a one time $20 application fee for enforcement
services, Guardian ad litem fees, hot check fees, probation fees, parenting class fees for parents
NOT involved in the visitation enforcement program and child support income withholding
issuance fees. All fees may be waived if parent is unable to pay. Recently, the decision was
made to eliminate the $20 application fee for cases in the Cooperative Parenting Program.

4. Need for Proposed Project (10 points)
Describe in full the reason for submitting the grant application. Include responses to the
following: How many noncustodial parents have IV-D child support cases in your service area?
How does a Shared Parenting program fit in your community and your role in the community as a
human services organization? What need does the outcome of the project meet? How was this
need identified? How has your organization addressed this need in the past? Is the proposed
service being offered by other entities in your area? If so, please explain the relationship to the
service your entity is proposing. Where does the local IEV-D child support office currently send
those with requests for assistance with parenting time issues?

National studies demonstrate that serious damage is done to children by the absence of one parent
from their life following divorce, or if their parents were never married.

Over 36,088 non-custodial parents in Travis County have an IV-D child support case and many of
them need visitation services. The grant allows us to pay for qualified therapists, with group
therapy experience, to teach the Cooperative Parenting Classes. The grant allows us to send
family members, including children, when appropriate, to counseling. There are some families
that cannot successfully resolve their co-parenting conflict without a therapeutic intervention.

Domestic Relations, and the Cooperative Parenting Program, acts as an arm of the District courts
to help families in a variety of ways, when they are involved in family litigation. The Domestic
Relations Office is the only service provider in Travis County that provides comprehensive
visitation enforcement services.

There is high correlation between failure to pay child support and failure to visit. The non-
custodial parent is far more likely to support his or her children if he/she is seeing them regularly.
Children who have positive relationships with both parents are far more likely to be healthy and
happy.

Most of the expenses of the Cooperative Parenting Program are paid for by Travis County.
Counseling services cannot be offered by DRO, so contracting with a private provider is
beneficial to our Cooperative Parenting Program, especially in cases where parents are uninsured.
The Commissioners also appropriate $64,800 per year to DRO to purchase visitation services
(such as neutral exchanges) from the Kids Exchange Network of providers.

Page 5 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Cooperative Parenting Program staff regularly holds informational/educational workshops for the
two QAG field offices and CPP visitation brochures are provided in the local OAG field offices.
The OAG field offices and the OAG regional call center regularly refer non-custodial parents to
the Cooperative Parenting Program for assistance with visitation issues when the parent brings it
to their attention. The program provides brochures to other non-profit agencies throughout Travis
County and in the IV-D courtrooms, when allowed, by the IV-D Associate Judges.

5. Proposed Solution Narrative (Subsections A-J) (80 Points + up to 20 bonus points)

Describe in full your organization=s proposed solution for the need identified above. The
narrative should identii~’ how the OAG Shared Parenting Program priorities and required
outcomes are being addressed in this solution. This description must include responses to the
following section headings:

A. Project Summary (5 points): Summarize your organization=s proposed project,
including a description of how noncustodial parents access to their children (as defined
in the Request for Applications) will be impacted, an estimated number of parents to be
served in the year that funding is requested and the cost per parent of services delivered.

The Cooperative Parenting Program will offer services to parents who experience problems with
shared parenting on three different levels: prevention and education services, early intervention
services, and services in high conflict cases. Our primary goal is to prevent shared parenting
conflict within our target population, through education and mediation. We plan to achieve this
by conducting educational workshops at IV-D establishment dockets, and within community
social service agencies and the public school system.

We will address cases in need of early intervention services by providing Travis County family
court judges educational materials for separated parents with new court orders. We hope to
receive court referrals regarding fragile families in need of early intervention services.
Additionally, we plan to partner with local IV-D child support offices to offer mediation services,
at their location; in cases they have identified as needing cooperative parenting services.

To address the needs of fragile families with high conflict parenting issues, we will continue to
hold weekly orientation sessions, and ask that they formally apply to our program. These
sessions will describe the detailed services that our program offers to applicants like: parenting
planning and problem solving by a licensed social worker and attorney, conflict resolution
meetings (mediation) to identify barriers to cooperative parenting (and the tools needed to remove
those barriers), neutral exchange services, counseling, and the nine-hour Cooperative Parenting
course curriculum. Our program attorney will review orders for legal enforceability, and seek
clarification of orders that fall short of being enforceable, when possible. In the highest conflict
cases, after all services have been exhausted, the caseworker will refer the case to the program
attorney for legal intervention. Prior to attending court, all parties will be offered another
settlement opportunity in a Pre-trial conference.

Cooperative Parenting Classes are held on Tuesday and Wednesday evenings, and every second
and fourth Saturday. There are six, hour and a half classes and a parent may start the classes at
any point in the series. Both parents may be required to attend the classes. These classes include
processing of issues and problems relating to preparing children for visits, providing beneficial
and enjoyable access times, and helping children with re-entry when they return from a visit.
Participants develop strategies that help them handle their feelings and disengage from the
struggle with the other parent. All classes are held at the Domestic Relations Office. Travis
County provides security guard services for the classes.

The impact of our program on the non-custodial parent’s parenting time may vary depending on

Page 6 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



the level of service the parent receives. Non-custodial parenting time should never be interrupted
for parents who receive preventive and early intervention services. In the high conflict cases, the
non-custodial parent’s parenting time should increase, as parents are given tools to meet co
parenting challenges.

We estimate that in the 2011 grant budget year; we will serve 150 parents per month. The cost per
parent for services delivered is $197.51 per parent. Costs include salaries, benefits, travel,
supplies, contractual and other direct operating and indirect costs.

B. Target Population (5 points): Describe the target population (including the geographical
area your organization plans to serve) and how your organization is qualified to serve the
target population. This description should include how your agency will serve the
priority populations of the OAG Access and Visitation Program: including the never-
married population (approximately 65% of the parents in the OAG caseload were not
married at the birth of their child).

The Cooperative Parenting Program is available to any parent with a Travis County court order
for visitation. Domestic Relations is uniquely qualified to provide diverse services because of our
connection to the District Courts, our ability to directly offer litigation services, case
management, and parenting classes, and to refer parents for quality counseling and exchange
services. No other entity in Travis County offers comprehensive services specific to the
population involved in family law litigation concerning access and visitation.

Our office accepts any qualified applicant into the program. We continue to target outreach
efforts to the local OAG field offices and local non-profits. We will continue to meet with
management of the local field offices to establish more fluid lines of referrals for parents
traversing the IV-D system. We will continue to creatively reach out to schools, law enforcement
officials, hospitals, community centers and non-profits who may serve individuals in a fragile
family, who need access and visitation services, not currently aware that assistance is available
through the Domestic Relations Office.

We will expand our efforts to intervene early with the fragile family population by conducting
regular workshops at the IV-D establishment dockets and mediation services in local child
support offices.

C. Bonus (5 points): Describe how you will ensure that at least 80% of your caseload
involves IV-D, OAG cases.

Domestic Relations continues to work with the local OAG field offices to offer educational
workshops and materials for OAG staff for referrals to the Cooperative Parenting Program. DRO
currently supervises at least 1,000 OAG child support probationers and continually refers these
non-custodial parents to the Cooperative Parenting Program. With our expanded vision, we will
further target OAG clients by giving workshops at IV-D establishment dockets and conducting
mediation in local field offices.

D. Bonus (15 points): Describe how your program will address concerns specific to
forming families while addressing innovative, promising practices from existing
research on fragile families. Please consider these goals in your organization’s
response:

a. Prepare unmarried parents to set goals to promote and create a healthy future for
their children.

Page 7 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



b. Help unmarried parents establish a positive co-parenting relationship that enables
them to work together in raising their child.

c. Ensure the on-going and sustained involvement of both parents, especially the
father, whenever possible in the children’s lives.

d. Encourage the on-going payment of child support and provision of other forms of
support by the non-custodial parent.

e. Prepare unmarried parents to make healthy decisions (with their child’s best
interests in mind) about their romantic and couple relationship.

f. Help unmarried parents with inter-generational issues and blended family issues,
as appropriate.

The Cooperative Parenting Program will reach out to fragile families by increasing visibility in
the community. We plan to partner with local IV-D child support offices to regularly provide
education and mediation services, as needed (which will allow us to more specifically target
fragile families). In mediation, we will help the fragile family identify potential barriers which
may prevent ongoing involvement for the non-custodial parent with their children, and propose
solutions to the problems. We can provide educational services to these families, to help them
understand positive co-parenting relationships and the correlation between consistent child
support payments and positive parental involvement. We will also use the opportunity to offer
these parents a more extensive explanation of co-parenting tools to make healthy co-parenting
decisions through our nine hour cooperative parenting curriculum.

E. Program Services (10 points): Describe the program services the proposed project will
be delivering with a clear description of how the described services will lead to increased
parenting time.

The use of prevention, early intervention, and specific strategies for high conflict cases will lead
to increased parenting time. Our Cooperative Parenting Program will offer the following services
to both prevent and remedy co-parenting conflict.

Preventive Measures include:
Workshops at IV-D establishment dockets

• Mediation at IV-D child support offices
a Education regarding court orders for walk-in and telephone inquiries

Early Intervention Measures include:
• Court referrals from family court and IV-D judges
a Orientation
a Conflict resolution meetings (mediation)
a Counseling
• Neutral Exchange Visitation Services
a Cooperative Parenting classes

High Conflict Measures include:
a Legal referral to program attorney for legal enforcement action

These services will increase both parents’ knowledge and understanding about how vital it is to
the child’s well-being to have a positive relationship with both parents. This understanding will
result in increased parenting time for the non-custodial parent, and reduced co-parenting conflict.
In the preventive/early intervention phases of our program, we hope to prevent an interruption in
parenting involvement for the non-custodial parent before problems even start.

Page 8 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



F. Detailed Implementation Plan (20 points), describe and include:
a. experience organization has with delivering education or other programs to low

income and diverse ethnic groups,
b. proposed location(s) and information regarding bus and car access,
c. number of educators or other service providers and qualifications and credentials

of those educators/other service providers,
d. Whether on-site childcare can be provided; if so, details of those services,
e. Itemized cost, if any, for providing services listed above,
f recruitment and retention of participants into program services,
g. communication and collaboration with local child support office,
h. location of service delivery,
i. staff involved in service delivery, the roles each staff person will play in service

delivery, how your organization will ensure cultural competency of staff, and
plans for use of volunteers, how safety considerations will be addressed,

j. a detailed description of how parents will enter services, receive services, and
exit services, and

k. experience the organization has working with Title IV-D courts.

The Cooperative Parenting Program has experience in contracting with therapists and attorneys to
provide educational programs to low income families from diverse ethnic groups. This program
has offered the nine hour Cooperative Parenting curriculum each week on Tuesday and
Wednesday evenings and alternating Saturdays for several years. The Cooperative Parenting
Program recently contracted with an attorney to provide Court Order Parent Education classes at
the IV-D establishment docket. That same attorney is now our program attorney, and is looking
forward to conducting the educational workshops again.

Recruitment of participants to the Cooperative Parenting Program come from educational
sessions presented to local OAG child support staff, visitation brochures in OAG child support
offices, courtrooms, local non-profits that primarily serve low income families, the Family Bar
Association, civic clubs and information on the DRO web site. Some participants are referred by
Guardians ad litem, local therapists, Judges and attorneys.

Primary service in high conflict cases will be delivered at the Domestic Relations Office, 1010
Lavaca Street, in downtown Austin, which has limited free parking, metered parking, and is
located along city bus routes. Many locations throughout the county are available for neutral
exchange visitation services through the Kids Exchange Network of providers. Parents needing
counseling from LifeWorks have their choice of three locations: South at 3700 South 1st St., East
Central at 2001 Chicon St., and North at 8913 Collinfield Dr. These locations make it easy for
parents to access services and remain in the program. All locations are near bus stops and
provide parking for those that come by car. The County employs a private security finn that
resides in the lobby of DRO during working hours and outside the Cooperative Parenting Class
locations on weeknights and Saturdays.

The visitation attorney is responsible for screening court orders of applicants, all litigation
services, information and education about compliance with court orders, and some parent
conferencing. She works for DRO on a part time basis. She also provides mediation services and
will conduct educational workshops.

The visitation caseworker provides casework management, refers to appropriate services, and
works with parents to resume visits in order to avoid litigation. The current visitation caseworker
has a Master’s degree in social work and as a result we have seen our litigation rates drop
considerably. She also provides mediation services and will conduct educational workshops.

To facilitate the Cooperative Parenting Classes, Domestic Relations contracts with therapists that

Page 9 of 23

(~i€

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



have a master’s degree or higher and have experience working in a therapeutic setting with
groups, families and children.

Staff is trained annually in cultural diversity. This is a required training for all DRO staff. In
addition, case staffing includes discussions and strategies around diversity issues. Spanish
translators are available if needed. The County also provides deaf interpreters and they are
available to the county departments as needed.

Entering, receiving, and exiting services:
> Educational workshops will be conducted at the IV-D establishment dockets, available to any

parent attending the docket for the prevention tier of our strategy.
> Mediation services will be offered at the local IV-D offices.
> Parents formally enter the Cooperative Parenting Program by applying for services and

meeting the guidelines for service, after attending a weekly orientation session, in high
conflict cases.

> Parents receive a review of their court order from the attorney. Information from the
caseworker is provided on how to document denials of access.

> After a parent submits an application, we send a letter to the custodial parent letting the
custodial parent know the non-custodial parent has asked for help seeing the child.

> Every attempt is made to determine the nature of the conflict by interviewing parents and
trying to resolve the conflict through correspondence and phone calls, offering the least
invasive assistance possible.

> The next step is a meeting with the caseworker and/or attorney and both parents. In this
meeting, issues that have interfered with access are discussed and resolutions attempted. This
can include referrals to the nine-hour cooperative parenting classes and to family counseling
or referral to the neutral exchange site to assist in resuming access.

> If all attempts to assist the custodial parent to comply with the order and assist the non-
custodial parent with increased parenting time fail, a referral to the attorney is made for a pre
trial conference and potential court setting.

> The non-custodial parent is required to submit a Visitation Journal, documenting attempted
visitation for attorney review at the pre-trial conference.

> At the pre-trial conference, a last attempt is made to settle the case by bringing the parents to
agreement.

> If the pre-trial is unsuccessful, a trial date is set for a hearing.
> Cooperative Parenting Program services are complete when an agreement is reached between

the parties, increased parenting time results and/or access is restored, or the non-custodial
parent requests that services be discontinued.

Timeline of services vary depending upon the cooperation of both parties, the severity of the
conflict and the particular services needed by each family.

G-~ Resources (5 points): Identify resources needed to successfully complete the project,
including other agencies/entities you plan to collaborate with in order to deliver services
and the role they will play in program implementation - include memorandums of
understanding or letters of support for all collaborating agencies, ALL ShARED
PARENTING GRANT APPLICANTS ARE REQUIRE]) TO SUBMIT A LETTER
OF COOPERATION WITH LOCAL OAG CHILI) SuPPORT UNITS - FAiLURE
TO DO SO WILL RESULT IN THE REJECTION OF YOUR APPLICATION.
EXCEPTION: HOTL]NE APPLICANTS ARE A STATEWIDE PROCRAM AND
DO NOT HAVF, TO rE~’T A I 1~’TTI~1~ (11? ~TTPPflRT VROrVE A I .iTh(’ AT.

Page 10 of23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



a. steps your agency will take to work with the IV-D child support agency (Office
of the Attorney General) and the current state of that partnership,

b. non-grant funding and resources available to enhance the proposed project, and
c. any plans for expanding the project beyond grant-related funding.

Domestic Relations, the Managing Attorneys and Office Managers of the two OAG child support
offices in Travis County and the OAG Regional Administrator and Regional Attorney have
consistent contact concerning mutual cases, information needs and other aspects of child support,
visitation, family violence and the use of Guardians ad litern in IV-D cases. DRO periodically
gives presentations to QAG child support staff about the Cooperative Parenting Program and has
brochures in each OAG office. Management staff and other county offices meet to discuss issues.

Non-grant funding includes $64,800 in the DRO budget to purchase services from the Kids
Exchange Network of providers for participants in the Cooperative Parenting Program. This is
supplied by the Travis County General Fund. The visitation attorney and caseworker are both
currently funded from Travis County’s general fund as well as the printing of all of the materials
for the Cooperative Parenting Classes, though we are asking for grant funding to assist in printing
material for our program, consistent with expanding our program to include preventative and
early intervention efforts. Travis County funds a security guard for the classes as well as
management, legal secretary, paralegal and other support services for the program.

H. Outcomes (15 points): State the outcomes for the proposed program and the
methodology you will use to track the outcomes for the proposed Shared Parenting
program. You must include a description of how your program will address the
Federal outcomes of parenting time hours increased - as well as other outcomes from
your program. Clearly define what you expect to be the end result of your program in
terms of parent behavior, knowledge, and attitudes - include concrete, measurable
descriptions of changes that will be tracked. Outcomes should be clearly linked to the
Program Service “E” elements of your proposal.

The desired outcome of the Cooperative Parenting Program is to increase the children’s
meaningful access to both parents, specifically to increase parenting time for the non-custodial
parent. We assist parents who attempt to exercise their court-ordered parenting time. A major
goal is to achieve resolution between the parties without using the court system, but we recognize
that sometimes litigation is necessary. The program is designed to reduce parental conflict over
parenting time, improve co-parenting skills, and increase awareness by both parents of the
negative impact their behavior has on their children. We measure these objectives by non-
custodial parents’ reports of increased parenting time, both parents’ statements regarding whether
or not their communication has improved, conflict resolution meetings (mediations) conducted,
hearings avoided, and completion of the nine hour Cooperative Parenting Classes.

Cooperative Parenting classes are designed to provide both parents with an awareness of their
ability to develop new communication skills and co-parenting skills. An evaluation form
provides feedback. Success of this component of the program is measured by tracking the
evaluation forms, as well as monitoring the number of referrals by the Court system, and the
number of parents who complete the course.

For some cases, referrals for neutral exchange services andlor counseling are needed to de
escalate conflict. Feedback is provided from both the Kids Exchange Network of providers and
LifeWorks on the parent’s participation in those services, as well as neutral observations
regarding the parents’ behaviors towards one another and their children. Success for this
component of the program is measured by parental participation and whether or not parenting
time has increased.

Page 11 of23

05

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Conflict Resolution Meetings are informal mediation sessions with both parents and the
Cooperative Parenting Program team in which the barriers to cooperative parenting are addressed
and attempts at resolution are made. The success of this component of the program is measured
by agreements reached as a result of the meeting, and increased parenting time for the non-
custodial parent. Success is also measured by the percentage of cases that do not require a
referral for litigation, but that are completely resolved in mediation.

If litigation is required, we attempt to resolve the issues between the parents in a pre-trial setting
with the Cooperative Parenting Program team, as well as both parents and their respective
counsel, if applicable. This meeting typically occurs after a contempt motion has been filed, but a
week before the actual hearing date. The effectiveness of the pre-trial exercise is measured by the
number of agreements reached via this meeting, compared to the number that must proceed to the
court hearing for resolution, and the narrowing of legal issues for the court to decide.

The court hearing is the culmination of the litigation process, and the effectiveness of this
seldom-used branch of the program is measured by the percentage of cases that are either agreed
or found in contempt of court and either sentenced to jail or placed on probation, compared to the
number of cases that are not found to be in contempt.
The other measure for litigation cases is whether or not the non-custodial parent increases their
parenting time with their children and access is restored.

On an ongoing basis, active cases are reviewed by staff to address concerns as they arise and to
ensure that the most effective strategies are being utilized to both address the best interests of the
children involved as well as to restore court-ordered access. An increase in parenting time is
monitored on a monthly basis for each active case so that the most appropriate level of
intervention is utilized in each individual family dynamic. This information is self-reported by
the parents, and used as a major indicator of success along with all of the other possible measures
listed above.

Our expanded vision to include Prevention and Early Intervention strategies are designed to
prevent an interruption in parenting time from ever occurring. While it will be difficult to
measure the long term effectiveness of these preventive measures, we plan to record the number
of parents reached in each workshop.

I. Parent Referrals (10 points): Describe how your organization currently receives parent
referrals. Describe how your organization will promote the availability of grant-funded
services in the geographical area described above. Include a description of how you will
incorporate referrals from local OAG child support offices. How will your organization
meet its monthly performance indicators, if referrals are less than expected?

Referrals are received from local OAG child support offices, local attorneys, a variety of local
non-profits organizations, other County agencies, the Travis County law library, schools and
therapists. Travis County Judges routinely order parents to enroll in the program or court order
parents to take the Cooperative Parenting Classes. Brochures are distributed at the Travis County
Courthouse, the Attorney General offices, the lobby of the Domestic Relations Office, the two
Child Support Field Offices of the Office of the Attorney General and at a variety of schools and
local non-profits.

Referrals fi-om local OAG offices will be accomplished by offering educational workshops at 1V-
D establishment dockets and mediation services at the local IV-D offices, and the full range of
Cooperative Parenting Program services for all qualified applicants at the Domestic Relations

Page 12 of23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



~ffice.

~referrals are less than we anticipate, we will activate an aggressive marketing plan.

J. Key Staff (10 points): List by name, title, and function the key staff who will actually
work on the proposed grant-funded project. If staff will be hired, what are the
credentials you will require? Who will do the hiring and what will be their relationship to
the project and applicant entity? Include short job descriptions of key staff hired for this
project.

Tern Riggs Fenner is the visitation caseworker. She has a masters degree in Social Work. She is
responsible for intake, family needs assessment, referrals to contract agencies, overall case
management, informal mediation and educational workshops.

Karen Speed Miller, Attorney, provides part time legal counsel. She prepares and presents
visitation cases for enforcement in court. She participates in parent conferences and talks with
parents by phone and in person about their case. She also reviews applications and court orders
for enforceability and provides some parental education about court orders. She conducts conflict
resolution meetings (mediations), and refers to appropriate legal and community resources, as
needed.

Nickie Carrillo is the program’s legal secretary. She assists in Conflict Resolution Meetings and
Orientation, as needed. She provides translation services for Spanish speaking parents. She
assists with walk-in appointments and telephone inquiries. She also refers parents to community
resources, as needed, and assists the program attorney in completing legal paperwork and setting
hearings and pre-trial conferences.

Helma Hall, Enforcement Officer Senior, provides oversight for data reporting.

Judy Braitham, casework manager for the Legal Division of the Domestic Relations Office
supervises Tern Riggs Fenmer, Nickie Carrillo, and Helma Hall.

6. Shared Parenting Project Goals, Objectives, and Performance Indicators (6 points;
4 points respectively)

Please use the following space to outline monthly grant-related goals, objectives and the
indicators by which these will be measured. Only use indicators that are quantifiable and
thus, measurable (do not use words such as ‘improve’, ‘enhance,’ etc. as they are not
measurable).

This section identifies how your organization will measure grant-funded results.

The goal of the Cooperative Parenting Program is to increase parenting time of the non-custodial
parent whose parenting time has been interrupted due to co-parenting conflict, and to ensure that
Travis County children experience regular and beneficial contact with both of their parents. This
goal will be reached by providing coordinated services including parent education, case
management and legal enforcement of visitation orders. Monthly goals will track the following
objectives:

Providing parents with information about the provisions of their court order for
custody and visitation, informal mediation services, development of conflict
resolutions plans and referrals to community resources to help them deal with
communication and other issues that interfere with access and visitation

Providing a six (6) session, none hour, cooperative parenting curriculum designed to help
parents understand the effect that their negative behavior has on their children and

Page 13 of23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



alternatives to that behavior
Providing case management services ensuring participation, identifying family barriers to
improved access and visitation and making referrals to counseling and neutral exchange
services as needed

• Providing legal services to enforce access and visitation orders

Performance indicators associated with these objectives will be measured monthly by counting
the:
• telephone inquiries

applicants
o orientation hours provided
• orientation attendees

education hours provided (CPP classes)
cooperative parenting class attendance

• conflict resolution services provided
o counseling referrals provided
• counseling sessions provided (participation)
• services provided by attorney

active Cooperative Parenting Program cases
• educational workshops conducted

workshop attendees
• hearings avoided

non-custodial parents whose parenting time has increased

As part of this section, please describe how the project goals identified in this application will be
sustained afler the grant ends, if continuation funding is not available.

Travis County currently bears most of the costs of the Cooperative Parenting Program. If the
grant is discontinued, efforts will be made to secure county funds to sustain the Cooperative
Parenting classes and the counseling services.

Use the table on the following page to identify your organization=s monthly performance
indicators (i.e., number of visitations, number of persons attending classes, number of cases
opened, etc.) Final indicators will be negotiated before contract signing.

Page 14 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Sample Table FY11 Monthly Grant-Related Performance Indicators

2010 2011

Performance Indicator Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Total

Mediation - (Number of cases mediated) 11 10 12 13 20 15 12 13 14 12 15 147
Education - (Number ofparents completing co-parenting
classes) 5 6 7 8 9 W H 12 H H 110

FY2O11 2011

Performance Indicator Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar ~ May Jun Jul ~ Total

Telephone Inquiries 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 2796

Applicants 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 120

Orientation hours provided 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 ~ ~ 36

Orientation attendees 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 180

Education hours provided (CPP classes offered) 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 216

Cooperative Parenting class attendance 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 996

Conflict resolution services provided 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 72

Counseling sessions provided (referrals) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 36

Services provided by attorney 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 120

Active Cooperative Parenting Program cases 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 840

Educational workshops conducted 4 4 4 4 4 ~ 4 4 4 ~ 4 48

Workshop attendees 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1200

1-learings avoided 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 ~ 4 48

Increased parenting time for non-custodial parent 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 144

Outcomes:

~ NCP Parenting Time Hours Increased— Yes 144

Page 15 of23 SPP Application

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



FY12 Monthly Grant-Related Performance IndicatorsSample Table

2011 2012

Performance Indicator Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Total

Mediation - (Number ofcases mediated) 11 10 12 13 20 15 12 13 14 12 15 147
Parenting Plan - (Number ofparents completing co
parentingplans) 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 110

FY2012 2011 2012

Performance Indicator Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Total

Telephone Inquiries 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 233 2796

Applicants 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 120

Orientation hours provided 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 36

Orientation attendees 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 180

Education hours provided (CPP classes offered) 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 216

Cooperative parenting class attendance 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 996

Conflict resolution services provided 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 ~ 72

Counseling referrals 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 36

Services provided by attorney 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 120

Active Cooperative Parenting Program cases 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 840

Educational workshops conducted 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 48

Workshop attendees 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1200

Hearings avoided 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 48

Increased parenting time for non-custodial parent 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 144

Outcomes:

~ NCF Parenting Time Hours Increased— Yes 144

Page 16 of23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Budget Categories

Current Total Program Operating Budget. Please use the following definitions for budget
categories when completing the budgets.

• Salaries - Direct salaries for full- and part-time project employees.

• Fringe Benefits - Costs for employee insurance, retirement, social security benefits,
unemployment insurance and other similar staff-related expenses.

• Travel - Costs related to in-state project travel including meals, lodging and
transportation.

• Supplies - Office supplies, printing, photocopying, postage, educational materials and
other similar costs.

• Contractual - Costs associated with the hiring of professional services, and other costs
procured through a contract process (counseling, evaluations, accounting, audit or other
professional services).

• Other Direct Operating Costs - Any direct budget items not included in the above
categories (examples telephone, office rent, utilities, personnel bonding, insurance and
other similar direct operational costs).

• Indirect Costs - Expenses charged to your organization by sponsoring entities for
administrative overhead. Examples include purchasing and accounting services, human
resource support, internal audit and general management activities. Briefly describe how
the indirect cost rate is established.

• Total Annual Budget - Sum total of budget categories

Page 17 of 23 SPP Application

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



7. Current Total Shared Parenting Program Operating Budget Summary.

Using this table submit a detailed itemized budget for your organization. Include prior OAG
Shared Parenting grant awards and other Shared Parenting-related funding or grant awards.
Please use the Comments cell to discuss any circumstances affecting the particular budget
category. If portions of your budget are pending due to other grant applications or similar
requests, please indicate.

2009 2010
Budget Budget

Category Summary Summary Comments

Salaries

Fringe Benefits
Travel $0 $1,600 Shared Parenting Conference

Supplies $184 $184 Office Supplies
Contractual Counseling Services & CPP

Instructors with a rate increase from
$30 to $35 per hour. FY09 includes a
budget reduction due to de-obligation

$20,100 $25,000 of funds
Association ofFamily & Conciliation

Other Direct Operating Costs $140 $140 Courts Membership Dues

Indirect Costs

Total Annual Budget $20,424 1 $26,924

Page 18 of23

(~~)

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



8. Proposed Project Budget

In this section, please identify and describe your grant project request. Only the cost categories
listed below are eligible for grant funding. Use the category descriptions provided in the
Request for Applications in Section 7 above (Eligible Sub-grantee Costs).

2011 2012
Requested Requested

Category Amount Amount Comments
Salaries

Fringe Benefits

$2 400 $2 400 This includes 3 staff@ $800 to attend theTravel ‘ ‘ Shared Parenting Conference
Supplies We plan to do extensive outreach to the

OAG field offices (36,088 cases in Travis
County), community organizations,
schools and courts. We will need more

$2,000 $2,000 printing of publications and educationalmaterials and materials to advertise our
program like posters and pens ($1,500) and
expect to need $500 for office supplies and
day to day operations.

Contractual For $10,000 for CPP instruction, $7,800
for counseling services, $7,200 for
Interpreter services for educational

$25 000 $25 000 workshops for the preventive tier of the‘ ‘ program at IV-D court (weekly workshop

for 48 weeks of the year at $50 per hour for
3 hours in each education session).

Other Direct Purchase of booth for Celebration of
Operating Costs Families Event ($200 annual event) for

public awareness and education of Access
$470 $470 and Visitation Services. Also, Professional

membership to the Family & Conciliation
Courts Membership for 2 staff
($135 per staff member).

Indfrect Costs

Total Request $29,870 $29,870

Please complete the attached Detailed Program Budgets as Attachment A to this application.
Failure to attach the Detailed Program Budgets may disqualify your application.

Page 19 of23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



9. Grant Match

Describe, in detail, your organization’s match for the above-requested funds. Contractors are
required to contribute, at a minimum, a 10% match for all funds awarded by the QAG. The
match may be in the form of non-federal cash or in-kind contributions. The specific matching
funds identified below shall not be used for matching purposes with other grants. Contractors
shall comply with the provisions of 45 CFR 92.24 in calculating matching funds. Contractors
must report all matching funds monthly on claims for reimbursement.

The 10% match is a portion of the salary of the visitation enforcement attorney.

10. Project Budget Narrative

Fully describe each of the costs identified above and how they relate to the project=s projected
outcome. Describe if and how other funds will be used to supplement those identified in your
request. If costs, such as telephone monthly service charges, are shared with non-grant related
projects, describe how your organization will cost allocate such charges to the grant. Failure to
describe fully the costs identified in the requested grant budget, as listed in Section 8
(Proposed Project Budget) may disqualify your application.

Travel:
The Association of Family & Conciliation Courts offers the most comprehensive training and
new research results on custody evaluation and in particular, access and visitation. This training
will be invaluable for our Cooperative Parenting Program Team.

Supplies:
Office supplies support staff in their day to day work and supplies for the Cooperative Parenting
Classes. This year, we have requested additional funding to support printing more educational
and marketing materials to increase awareness of our program services within the community.
We plan to design and print posters for our program to be distributed in IV-D offices, courthouses
(if permitted), Self Help Centers, public libraries, schools, hospitals, churches, work force
commission, and other non-profit community service organizations.

Direct Costs of Service:
Professional membership in the Association of Family and Conciliation Courts allows staff to
deliver evidence based services by staying abreast of new research in this field. Instructional
books for strategies in working with high conflict families would prove very helpful to our
program.

Contractual:
Counseling services are critical to some families to resolve long standing, entrenched conflict that
damages children and reduces or eliminates parenting time for non-custodial parents. We
recognize that in previous years we have not used all of the funds requested for counseling, and
so have based our requested funding on the amount we have actually spent on counseling so far
this year, and the projected cost of counseling services through the end of this year.

The Cooperative Parenting Program instructor is critical in reaching large numbers of parents.
The instructor teaches parents that their conflict damages their children and gives them new tools
to communicate. These classes can potentially increase parenting time and improve exchanges,
and may solve long standing issues that impair successful co-parenting.

Page 20 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Without fbnding an interpreter for early intervention, educational workshops in the IV-D court
room, parents who only speak Spanish will be denied access to cooperative parenting services
that are readily available to the English speaking parents. Unfortunately, our bilingual legal
secretary is unable to perform this service.

Page 21 of23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



11. Applicant Assurances

The applicant agrees to:

Comply with the requirements of the Immigrations Reform and Control Act of 1986, 100
Stat. 3359, regarding employment verification and retention of verification forms for any
individual(s) hired on or after November 1986.

Comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not
limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352), that prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Public Law 93-112) that prohibits discrimination on the basis
of handicaps; The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public Law 10 1-336); and all
amendments to each and all requirements imposed by the regulations issued pursuant to
these acts.

Comply with the non-discrimination requirements of Texas Labor Code, Chapter 21 that
requires that certain employers not discriminate on the basis of race, color, disability,
religion, sex, national origin, or age.

Comply with environmental standards that may be prescribed pursuant to the mandates of
Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1857(h)), Section 508 of the Clean
Water Act, the Clean Air Act (33 U.S.C. section 1368), Executive Order 11738, and the
regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency at 40 C.F.R. Part 15 that prohibits
the use of facilities included on the “List of Violating Facilities” maintained by the
Environmental Protection Agency by certain recipients of grants or other moneys
provided in whole or in part by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.

Comply with the provisions of the Drug-Free Work Place Act, 102 Stat. 4304.

Comply with the provisions of federal law known generally as the Lobbying Disclosure
Act of 1995, 109 Stat 691, and the regulations of the United States promulgated pursuant
to said law, and shall make all disclosures and certifications as required by law.

Retain financial and supporting documents, statistical records, and any other records
pertinent to the services for which a claim was submitted. The records and documents
must be retained for a minimum of three years and 90 days after the termination of the
grant period. If any litigation, claim, or audit involving these records begins before the
three years period expires, the grantee must keep the records and documents for not less
than three years and 90 days and until all litigation, claims, or audit findings are resolved.

Establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records and other information relating
to Parents in accordance with the applicable federal law, rules and regulations, as well as
the applicable state law and regulations. The provision shall not be construed as limiting
the OAG right of access to recipient case records or, other information relating to Parents
served under this grant.

Comply with the provisions of federal law generally known as the Pro-Children Act of
2001 (Public Law 103-277, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke).

Page 22 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Comply with the provisions of Public Law 103-333 requiring issuances and solicitations
and other documents describing programs funded in whole or in part with federal funds to
indicate the extent to which the program is funded by such federal funds.

Comply with all provisions of the grant award letter from the United States Department
of Health and Human Services relating to this grant and any subsequent rules, procedures
or regulations promulgated by the Department relating to grant funds distributed in
accordance with the Shared Parenting Grant Program.

Comply with all applicable provisions of the Uniform Grant Management Standards
promulgated by the Texas Governor’s Office of Budget and Planning.

Comply with all provisions of the Shared Parenting Grant Program Request for
Applications and attachments.

I certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct.

Samuel Biscoe
Signature of Authorized Official Print or Type Name

County Judge May 4, 2010
Title Date

Post Office Box 1748 Austin, TX. 78767 sam.biscoe@co.travis.tx.us
Address
City, State Zip Email Address, Website(s)/Social Media

512-854-9555 512-854-9535
Phone Number Fax Number

Page 23 of 23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Child Support Division Grants Administration Division
Family Initiatives Attachment C

Access/Visitation
FY10 Detailed Program Budget

Applicant: Travis County
Access and Visitation-
Cooperative Parenting

Program Name: Program

FY2O1 I Amount: $29,870

Required 10% Match $2,987
County: Travis

City: Austin

Contract Period: September 1, 2010 - August 31, 2011

As of 9/1/10

Total FY11 AV organization’s Total Project

Award Match Budget

Salary
Visitation Officer 7 part Time Attorney (+fringe) 0 2,987 2,987
Bilingual Caseworker 0 0
Administrative Assistant 0 0
Parent Educator 0 0

0 0
0 0

Salary Total 0 2,987 2,987

Fringe
Mediator 0 0
Bilingual Caseworker 0 0
Administrative Assistant 0 0
Parent Educator 0 0

0 0
Fringe Total 0 0 0

Travel
Annual Required Shared Parenting Conference 2,400 2,400
Training 0 0
In-State Mileage 0 0

Travel Total 2,400 0 2,400

Supplies
Office Supplies 500 500
Educational Resource materials 1,500 1,500
Postage and Printing 0 0

Supplies Total 2,000 0 2,000

Contractual
LifeWorks Counseling 7,800 7,800
Instructor - Cooperative Parenting Program Classes 10,000 10,000
Preventive workshops which include interpreter services 7,200 7,200

Contractual Total 25,000 0 25,000

Other
Professional Membership (AFCC) 270 270
Telephone and Utilities 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Celebration of Families event booth-program awareness 200 0 200
Criminal background checks 0 0

0
0
0

Other Total 470 0 470
Indirect
N/A 0 0 0

Indirect Total 0 0 0

TotalAVBudget 29,870 2,987 32,857

FY11 Detailed Budget (Page 1 of 1) 4/16/201 0; 4:43 PM

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Child Support Division Grants Administration Division
Family Initiatives Attachment C

AccessNisitation
FY10 Detailed Program Budget

Applicant: Travis County

Access and Visitation-
Cooperative

Program Name: Parenting Program

FY2012 Amount: $29,870

Required 10% Match $2,987

County: Travis

City: Austin

Contract Period: September 1, 2011 - August 31, 2012

As of 9/1/11
Total FY12 AV Organizations Total Project

Award Match Budget

Salary
Visitation Officer 7 part Time Attorney (+fringe) 0 2,987 2,987
Bilingual caseworker 0 0
Administrative Assistant 0 0
Parent Educator 0 0

0 0
0 0

Salary Total 0 2,987 2,987

Fringe
Mediator 0 0
Bilingual Caseworker 0 0
Administrative Assistant 0 0
Parent Educator 0 0

0 0
Fringe Total 0 0 0

Travel
Annual Required Shared Parenting Conference 2,400 2,400
Training 0 0
In-State Mileage 0 0

Travel Total 2,400 0 2,400
Supplies
Office Supplies 500 500
Educational Resource materials 1,500 1,500
Postage and Printing 0 0

Supplies Total 2,000 0 2,000
Contractual
LifeWorks Counseling 7,800 7,800
Instructor - Cooperative Parenting Program Classes 10,000 10,000
Preventive workshops which include interpreter services 7,200 7,200

Contractual Total 25,000 0 25,000
Other
Professional Membership (AFCC) 270 270
Telephone and Utilities 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Celebration of Families event booth-program awareness 200 0 200
Criminal background checks 0 0

0
0
0

Other Total 470 0 470
Indirect
N/A 0 0 0

Indirect Total 0 0 0

Tota!AVBudget 29,870 2,987 32,857

FY12 Detailed Budget (Page 1 of 1) 4/16/201 0; 4:43 PM

\s~fl

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief; that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,’ in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents
for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification
is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief; that:

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the United States to
insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Forin-LLL, “Disclosure
Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. Submission of this statement is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Signature

County Judge
Title

Travis County
Organization

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



APR—1E--2010 12:40 ‘1RAV1~ CX) L)H0 L~XiAL 512 954 seis P.002L*)
ATTORNEY GENE~ OF Thxii~s

GREG ABI3~YTT

CHILD SUPPORT I)IVIS ION

Letter of Cooperation — Office of the Attorney General Access and Visitation Grant Program

To: Access and Visitation Grant Review Team

The following organization:

Travis County Domcsiic ReLations
1010 Lavaca Street
Austin, Texas 78767

has fulfilled the following conditions ofcollaboration with our office for participation in the
Office of the Attorney General’s Access and Visitation Grant Program:

I. The applicant has contacted our office to describe the services they plan to
provide with Access and Visitation grant finds,

2. The applicant has identified oppon~tnities for OAG parents to seek their services

that would bc provided with Access and Visitation grant funds and developed a
process for accepting referrals from our local child support unit, and

3. The applicant has identified steps they will take, if funded, to work with OAG
parents with access and visitation issues.

You may contact Kristcne Blackstone. Regional Administrator, if you have any questions about
the exchange of information our office has had with the applicant.

J~è~~7t~
Kristene Blackstone
Regional Administrator
Child Support Division, Oftice of the Attomcy General
2512 S. IH 35, Austin., Texas 78704
512.3~X-320J
kiistene.blackstone@cs.oaj~state.tx~us

i~osr Omcr Box l201~. Au5LIN. TEXAS 75711.2017 TEL: (512)460.6000 WEB: WWW.oAL~.sTATrz.TxMs
Asi ~ fEspI~n~~iu Opporiw,i~’ ~rnpThy~r &ñ,Icd~n R~y~*d Papcr

TOTAL P.002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



GRANT SUMMARY SHEET

Application Approval: ~‘ T1f~c~ Permission to Continue: ~.

Check One:
Approval: [1 Status Report: [1

iine~i/Divisio~JSherift~-taw Enforcement
Contact Person/Title: I Tracy Miller
Phone Number: I 854-6923

Grant Title:
Grant Period:
Grantor:
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Grant I Yes: Li No: ~

SCATTF - Sheriffs Combined Auto Theft Task Force
From: I 9/1/2010 I To: I 8/31/2011

ABTPA - Auto Burglary and Theft Prevention Authority - State of TX

Check One:
Check One:
Type of Payment:

Grant Categories!
Funding Source
Personnel:
Operating:
Capital Equipment:
Indirect Costs:
Total:
FTEs:

New: LI Continuation: ~ Amendment: LI
One-Time Award:
Advance: Li

Ongoing Award: LI
Reimbursement: ~

Federal
Funds

State
Funds

$608,007
$47,892

$655,899
10.00

Local
Funds

County
Match
$319,936

$319,936
1.00

In-Kind TOTAL

$927,943
$47,892

$975,835
11.00

Department Review Staff Initials Comments I
— I

County Auditor JC I Extremely Complex
County Attorney JC

Performance Measures
Applicable Depart. Measures

Measures For Grant

Projected
FY10

Measure 12/31/09
Progress To Date:
3/31/10 6/31/10 9/30/10

Projected
FY11

Measure

Outcome impact Description
Public Awareness 82 I I
Outcome Impact Description Educate the public and provide tools to help deter and prevent

auto thefts and burglaries.
Interdiction Operations 132
Outcome Impact Description Conduct stings in areas of high incidents.

I4’OIt,~N I I Al ~,\ ~ S ~,syAppkM d~

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



PBO Recommendation:
~ P80 concurs with proceeding with the application for the 16thi year of this grant.

I. Brief Narrative - Summary of Grant: What is the goal of the program? How does the grant fit
into the current activities of the department? Is the grant starting a new program, or is it
enhancing an existing program?

~ The goal of the program is to reduce auto theft rates in the task force area.

2. Departmental Resource Commitment: What are the long term County funding requirements
of the grant?
NA

3. County Commitment to the Grant: Is a county match required? If so, how does the department
propose to fund the grant match? Please explain.
Matching funds are from Travis County field agent salary and County Agents salary fringe
benefits.

4. Does the grant program have an indirect cost allocation, in accordance with the grant rules? If
not, please explain why not.
No - not allowable.

5. County Commitment to the Program Upon Discontinuation of Grant by Grantor: Will the
program discontinue upon discontinuance of the grant funding? (Yes/No) If No: What is the
proposed funding mechanism: (1) Request additional funding (2) Use departmental resources. If
(2) is answered, provide details about what internal resources are to be provided and what other
programs will be discontinued as a result.
NA

6. If this is a new program, please provide infonnation why the County should expand into this
area.

~ The Task Force has been in existence since 1995.

7. Please explain how this program will affect your current operations. Please tie the
performance measures for this program back to the critical performance measures for your
department or office.

The program has been very successful in combining multi-county efforts to combat auto theft
rings and individuals in our part of the State of Texas.

R\(,R,S\IS~flTI~~~

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



GREG HAMILTONChief Deputy TRAVIS COUNTY SHERIFF

P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

(512) 854-9770 MARK SAWA

www.Lcslieriff.org Major - Admintstratioii & Support

April 13, 2010

MEMORANDUM

TO~ Honorable Sam Biscoe, County Judge
Honorable Ron Davis, Commissioner, Precinct 1
Honorable Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner, Precinct 2
Honorable Karen Huber, Commissioner, Precinct 3
Honorable Margaret Gomez, Commissioner, Precinct 4

FROM: Tracy J Miller, Plan~~/\\

SUBJECT: 2010/2011 Auto Theft Prevention Authority Grant Application

Attached is our grant renewal application to the Auto Theft Prevention Authority for the
2010/2011 grant cycle.

This will be the 14th year of participation by Travis County and the Sheriffs’ Combined Auto
Theft Task Force (SCATTF) in this program. The SCATTF is currently comprised of 15 counties
(Bastrop, Bell, Blanco, Caldwell, Colorado, Comal, Fayette, Gonzales, Guadalupe, Hays, Lee,
Llano, Milam, Travis, and Wharton) with the Sheriff of each county forming the Advisory Board
of SCATTF.

The grant request is in the amount of $975,835. There is a 20% match required amounting to
$195,167, however, we project our match will be in excess of $319,000. The match will consist
ol one Deputy from Travis County and the fringe salary benefits from all personnel assigned to
the task force.

We appreciate the support the Travis County Commissioners Court has given us in our effort to
reduce crimes against people and property, which are so costly to our citizens and are hopeful
that our application will be fully funded in the upcoming year by the Auto Theft Prevention
Authority.

cc: Janice Cohoon, County Auditor’s Office
James Connolly, County Attorney’s Office
William Derryberry, PBO

Safety, Integrity, Traditio,i of Service

P1-tYLLtS CLAIR
Major — Law Enforcement

DARKEN LONG
Major — Gorrecitons

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



APPLICATION FOR STATE AssIsTANcE
(REv. 11109)

AUToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY (ABTPA)

1 For ABTPA Use Only 3. a. Date Submitted b. Applicant Identifier

2. State Program Classification (For ABTPA Use Only) 4. a. Date Received by State b. State Application Identifier

5. Applicant Information
a. Legal Name: c. Organized Unit:

Travis County Travis County Sheriff’s Office
b. Address (give street or P. 0. Box, City, County, State, and Zip Code) d. Name and telephone number of person to be contacted on matters

P0 Box 1748 involving this application (give area code)
Austin, TX 78767 Sergeant Tommy Wooley (512) 854.9735

6. State Payee Identificalion Number: 7. Type of Applicant (enter the appropriate letter in box)

~
74—6000192 A. State H. Independent School District

B. County I. State Controlled Institution of Higher Learning
C. Municipal J. Private University
D. Township K. Indian Tribe
E. Interstate L. Individual
F. Intermunicipal M. Nonprofit Organization
G. Special District N. Other (specify):

8. Type of Application: 9. Name of Grantor Agency:

: New Continuation Revision Texas Automobile Burglary & Theft Prevention Authority
4000 Jackson Avenue

If Revision, check appropriate box (es). Austin, Texas 78731
Phone: (512) 374.5101

~ Increase Award Decrease Award Other (specify) Fax: (512)374.5110
~ . . Website: www.txwatChyourCar.Com

~ Increase Duration Decrease Duration

10. Title of Project: 11. Areas of Project Activities (Cities, Counties, States, etc.)
Bastrop, Bell, Blanco, Caidwell, Colorado, Comal,

Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force (SCATTF) Fayette, Gonzales, Guadalupe, Hays, Lee, Llano,

Milam, Travis, and Wharton Counties

12. Proposed Project 13. Is application subject to review by state executive order 12372 process?

Start Date: 09-01 -2010 YES, this application was made available to the Texas Review and Comment System (TRACS)
for review on

Ending Date: 08-31-2011 Date

14. Funding Summary: x
Total of a, b, & c must agree with d. NO. . Program is not covered by E. 0. 12372
Note: Please enter whole dollars for the amounts
requested.

a. Total State Grant Funds $ 655,899 E~i Program has not been selected by state for review
Requested (ABTPA)

15. Is the applicant delinquent on any federal debt?

b. Cash Match $ 319,936

. YES If ‘Yes” attach an explanation 1~I NO
c. In-Kind Match $ 0

d. TOTAL(s) $ 975,835
16. To the best of my knowledge and belief, all data in this application is true and correct. The document has been duly authorized by the governing
body of the applicant and the applicant will comply with the attached assurances if the assistance is awarded.
a. Typed name of Authorized Official b. Title c. Telephone Number
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge (512) 854.9555
d. Signature of Authorized Official e. Date Signed

ABTPA-1

L~

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

APPLICATION TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description of Proposed Project ABTPA-3

Project Approval Information ABTPA-4

Budget Summary ABTPA-5

Schedule A: Personnel ABTPA-6

Schedule A: Personnel Narrative ABTPA-7

Schedule A: Overtime Narrative ABTPA-8

Schedule B: Contractual ABTPA-9

Schedule B: Contractual Narrative ABTPA-1O

Schedule C: Travel ABTPA-11

Schedule C: Travel Narrative ABTPA-12

Schedule D: Equipment ABTPA-13

Schedule D: Equipment Narrative ABTPA-14

Schedule E: Supplies and Direct Operating Expenses ABTPA-15

Schedule E: Supplies and DOE Narrative ABTPA-16

Schedule F: Indirect Cost ABTPA-17

Program Instructions ABTPA-18-19

Problem & Historical Information ABTPA-20

Goals and Objectives ABTPA-21

Functions of Proposed Project ABTPA-22

Evaluation Design ABTPA-23

Designations of Grant Officials ABTPA-24

Special Condition ABTPA-25-32

ABTPA-2

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROJECT

This section must include a brief description (not exceeding 200 words) of the proposed project.

For continuation, if necessary, of any item on application page ABTPA-1. Identify by number the item
being continued.

This sheet may also be used for any other remarks, at the applicant’s option.

The Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force presently encompasses 15 counties in Central
Texas. This will be our 14th year to participate in the program and our mission is to reduce auto
burglary and theft related crimes. This will be accomplished through the collaborative efforts of the
Task Force, the support of local community officials and leaders, business partners and the public.

Efforts include media and public awareness events (VIN Etchings, H.E.A.T. Registrations, etc.) and
officer training programs (continuing education in the field of auto theft recognition). This has
continued to promote communication and allows the sharing of knowledge and experience among the
investigators.

SCATTF will continue our proactive measures with the following:
• Interdiction Activities
• Salvage Inspections
• Chop Shop Detection
• Insurance Fraud
• Burglary of Vehicle Surveillance
• Bait Vehicle Operations

Currently we have nine Investigators, one Sergeant, and one Public Awareness Coordinator. This
year we hope to change some job duties within our office. Our Public Awareness Coordinator will
become our Grant / Public Awareness Coordinator, and will take on more of the grant related matters.

ABTPA-3

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROJECT APPROVAL INFORMATION

Item 1.
Does this assistance request require state, Name of Governing Body ________________

local, regional, or other priority rating? Priority Rating __________________________
DYes I~INo

Item 2.
Does this assistance require state, or local Name of Agency or Board _______________

advisory, educational, or health clearance? (Attach Documentation)
DYes 1~INo

Item 3.
Does this assistance request require (Attach Comments)
TRACS review?

DYes I~INo
Item 4.
Does this assistance request require state, Name of Approving Agency ______________

local, regional, or other planning approval?
DYes I~INo

Item 5.
Is the proposed project covered by an Check One: D State
approved comprehensive plan? D Local

D Regional
D Yes I~I No Location of Plan _____________________

Item 6.
Will the assistance requested serve a Name of Federal Installation _____________

federal installation? Federal Population Benefiting from Project
DYes L~lNo

Item 7.
Will the assistance required be on federal Name of Federal Installation _____________

land or installation? Location of Federal Land ________________

D Yes E~I No Percent of Project _____________________
Item 8.
Will the assistance requested have an See instructions for additional
impact or effect on the environment? information to be provided.

DYes 1~INo
Item 9.
Will the assistance requested cause the Number of Individuals __________________

displacement of individuals, families, Families _____________________________
businesses or farms? Businesses ___________________________

EJ Yes I~1 No Farms ___________________________
Item 10.
Is there other related assistance on this See instructions for additional
project (previous, pending, or anticipated)? information to be provided.

DYes I~INo
Item 11.
Is the project in a designated flood See instructions for additional
hazard area? information to be provided.

DYes E~lNo

ABTPA-4

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

BUDGET SUMMARY

L S
I C
n h
e Budget Categories A~T~’A (2) (3) (4)

Cash Match In-Kind Total
y Funds Match

I A Personnel (Salaries) $608,007 $79,293 -a- $687,300

2 A Personnel (Fringe Benefits) -0- $240,643 -0- $240,643

3 B Contractual -0- -0- -0- -0-

4 C Travel $9,964 -0- -0- $9,964

5 0 Equipment -0- -0- .o- -0-

6 E Supplies & Direct Operating Exp. $37,928 -0- -0- $37,928

7 Total Direct Charges (Sum of 1-6) $655,899 $319,936 $975,835

8 F Indirect Costs

9 f TOTALS (Sum of 7-8) $655,899 $319,936 $975,835

Section B—Cash and/or In-Kind Match
Enter separately each source of matching funds and the amounts.

Total Match must agree with Line 9, Column 2 above and the total of lines 14 (b) and (c) on
ABTPA-1.

CASH TOTAL $319,936

Source Amount Source Amount

Task Force Counties
general Fund Salary $319,936

TOTAL

Total Program Income (available) $ 72,330

IN-KIND (Total must agree with ABTPA-1, Line 14c.) TOTAL

Schedule

Section A—Budget Summary

A

B

C

D

~~MAT~H $319,936

ABTPA-5

C39,

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE A

PERSONNEL
1.DirectSalaries (1) (2) (3) (4)

Title or Position ~ °~‘~ of 2 ABTPA In-Kind TOTAL3
Salary Funds

(A) Task Force Sergeant 100 $87,028 -0- -0- $87,028
(B) Public Awareness Coordinator 100 $39,013 -0- -0- $39,013
(C) Field Agent (Bastrop County) 100 $47,272 -0- -0- $47,272
(D) Field Agent (Colorado County) 100 $40,824 -0- -0- $40,824
(E) Field Agent (Comal County) 100 $66,306 -0- -0- $66,306
(F) Field Agent (Guadalupe County) 100 $47,133 -0- -0- $47,133
(G) Field Agent (Hays County) 100 $63,182 -0- -0- $63,182
(H) Field Agent (Travis County) 100 $79,293 -0- -0- $79,293
(I) Field Agent (Travis County) 100 $79,293 -0- -0- $79,293
(J) Field Agent ( Travis County) 0 -0- $79,293 -0- $79,293
(K) Field Agent (Wharton County) 100 $48,663 -0- -0- $48,663
(L)

Overtime $10,000 -0- -0- $10,000

TOTAL Direct Salaries $608,007 $79,293 $687,300

2. Fringe Benefits

/~r$ T Cash Match In-Kind TOTAL3

FICA $42,202 -0- $42,202

Retirement $73,887 -0- $73,887

Insurance $80,536 -0- $80,536

Other (Explain) — Medicare,
unemployment, longevity, life insurance,
certification $26,839 -0- $26,839

Workers Comp $15,179 -0- $15,179

Fringe related to Overtime (FICA,
Medicare, Retirement, Un Emp, WC) @ 20% $2,000 -0- $2,000

TOTAL Fringe Benefits $240,643 -0- $240,643

~ TOTAL PERSONNEL BUDGET $608,007 $319,936 $927,943

ABTPA-6

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE A NARRATIVE

1. Include only one position per line. Attach a description of the duties or responsibilities of each
position. (Job posting can not substitute for descriptive narrative for each position.)

2. Percentage of salary to be funded by grant funds.

3. Should reflect employee’s gross salary attributable to the project.

4. Include percent of time on auto theft for each position. (40 hours per week)

TASK FORCE SERGEANT (40 Hours I Week, 100%):
• Oversees daily operations and entire management of the task force. Direct liaison with all public

entities.
• Overall field operations. Oversee all aspects of the seizure and forfeitures (sales, etc.) by the

members of the unit.
• Confidential Informant files; support operations; scheduling assignments; planning and scheduling

training.
• Strategic planning for resource deployment and organizational objectives.
• Making office visits to out of county agents offices.
• Helping agents achieve their goals; maintain time sheets and evaluations for all task force

members. Provide guidance.
• Reviewing and supervising all search warrants. Assisting in all covert and overt operations.

Intelligence and information sharing.
• Working closely with the other 29 Auto Theft Task Forces within the State of Texas. Being actively

involved with TAVTI and the ABTPA board.

FIELD AGENTS (40 Hours IWeek, 100%)
• Investigates criminal activity related to Auto Theft primarily, but not limited to their geographical

areas.
• Perform Salvage Inspections. Bait Vehicle Operations. Locate Chop Shops. Conduct Training

Classes. Perform covert and overt interdiction assignments. Planning and conducting surveillance
operations for Burglary of Vehicle (BOV’s). Writing Search Warrants.

• Investigate Insurance Fraud and Arson cases related to Auto Theft. Aid in presentation of Public
Awareness events.

GRANT COORDINATOR I PUBLIC AWARENESS COORD. (40 Hours I Week, 100%)
Gathers and prepares monthly statistics and quarterly reports. Filing of all paperwork related to but
not limited to goals set forth thru the grant. Serves as a notary.

• Conducting Public Awareness events throughout the 15 county area. Coordinates w/local media
(TV, Radio, Newspapers and websites within the 15 county area) for coverage of Public Awareness
events.

• Prepares requisitions for all equipment, clothing, and office supplies ordered for the Task Force.
Receives all items.

• Webmaster for the www.scattf.org website.
• Ensures the grant budget is being properly maintained and allocated. Responsible for meeting

grant goals. Responsible for ensuring all grant paperwork is submitted.

ABTPA-7

s’~k

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE A - OVERTIME NARRATIVE

REQUIRED NARRATIVE: Provide a brief summary on the use of overtime funds.

1. Include description of work activity to be conducted.

2. Estimate number of hours and cost for overtime activities.

Overtime will be used for burglary of vehicle surveillance and auto theft related surveillance activities
as well as Public Awareness Events related to burglary of vehicle and auto theft. The increased
addition of the BOV responsibilities to the task force without an increase of resources makes these
events extremely difficult to accomplish without these overtime funds.

We request $10,000 for these activities to cover approximately 234 hours of overtime calculated at
1 .5 times the average hourly rate of the Agents assigned to the task force. The calculation is shown
below:

Requested Amount $10,000 Equals hours available
(Average hrly wage x time and a half) ($28.43 x 1.5) 234 hours

ABTPA-8

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE B

PROFESSIONAL AND CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

(1) (2) (3) (4)

Description of Service ABTPA Cash In-Kind TOTAL
Funds Match Match

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(I)

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL AND
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

ABTPA-9

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE B NARRATIVE

REQUIRED NARRATIVE: Briefly describe any anticipated contractual arrangement and work products
expected. Describe basis for arriving at the cost of each line item. Professional services (such as
consultants, trainers, counselors, evaluators, etc.) should be described by type of service, number of
hours, rate per hour, and travel costs, if any.

N/A

ABTPA-1 0

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE C

TRAVEL ___________ _________ ____

1. Local Travel (1) (2) (3) (4)

Title or Position Miles Traveled ABTPA Cash In-Kind TOTAL
Annuallyl$Rate Funds Match Match

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

LOCAL TRAVEL TOTAL

2. In-State Travel ‘Specify clearly and use continuation pages if necessary)

ABTPA Cash In-Kind
Purpose Destination Funds Match Match TOTAL

ABTPA Conference TBD $2,927

Border Solutions TBD $514

TAVTI Amarillo, TX $5,404

IN-STATE TRAVEL TOTAL $8,845

3. Out-of-State Travel (Specify clearly and use continuation pages if necessary)

ABTPA Cash In-Kind
Purpose Destination Funds Match Match TOTAL

IATTIC Conference TBD $1,119

OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL TOTAL }________ $1,119

~ TOTAL TRAVEL BUDGET I________ $9,964

ABTPA-1 I

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE C NARRATIVE

REQUIRED NARRATIVE: Briefly describe the applicant’s travel policy (i.e., mileage rates and per diem
rates). Specify purposes for each item of travel. Break out costs of each in-state and each out-of-state
trip to separately show the specific costs of transportation and per diem.

Travis County policy allows the state contracted room rate plus taxes and parking expenses. If no
government rate quoted, the county will pay the quoted room rate from the lodging place. Meal
expenses reimbursed only when the employee is required to be away from home overnight. Per
diem and mileage will be reimbursed in accordance with the Travis County travel policy current at the
time of travel for the purpose of this request. The rates effective April 1, 2009 ($39 per day and 48.50
per mile) are used.

#of #of Per
Purpose for Travel Persons ~ Travel Diem Lodging TOTAL

ABTPA Conference
TBD 5 4 -0- $975 $1,952 $2,927

Border Solutions Meeting
TBD 1 1 $300 $78 $136 $514

TAVTI Conference
Amarillo, TX 8 6 -0- $2,184 $3,220 $5,404

IATTI Conference
~State) 1 5 $275 $234 $610 $1119

TOTAL $575 $3,471 $5,918 $9,964

In-State Travel

ABTPA Conference — Five persons to attend the annual ABTPA Conference (location to be
determined).

Border Solutions Meeting — Will send the sergeant to the meeting (location to be determined).

TAVTI Conference — Eight persons to attend the conference in Amarillo, TX.

Out —of-State Travel

IATTI Conference — Will send the sergeant to this conference (location to be determined).

Airline (travel) amounts are an approximate. Actual price would vary during travel time.

ABTPA-12

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE D

EQUIPMENT PURCHASES

(1) (2) (3) (4)

Equipment Name or Description and ABTPA Cash In-Kind TOTAL
Quantity (Do Not List Brand Names) Funds Match Match

(A)

(B)

TOTAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(I)

(J)

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

(0)

(P)

(Q)

ABTPA-1 3

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE D NARRATIVE

REQUIRED NARRATIVE: Briefly describe the use of equipment and the cost of each line item.

NIA

ABTPA-1 4

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE E

SUPPLIES AND DIRECT OPERATING EXPENSES

(1) (2) (3) (4)

Directly Charged Supplies and ABTPA Cash In-Kind TOTAL
Other Operating Expenses Funds Match Match

(A) Fuel and maintenance for public
awareness vehicle $7,456 $7,456

(B) Cell phone air time $3,696 $3,696

(C) Air cards for computers $5,400 $5,400

(D) Confidential Informant Funds $5,000 $5,000

(E) Public Awareness Funds $6,000 $6,000

(F) Fuel and maintenance for bait car $7,456 $7,456

(G) Airtime for GPS $1,080 $1,080

(H) Live feed for bait car $1,300 $1,300

(I) Airtime for bait car $540 $540

(J)

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

(0)

(P)

(Q)

TOTAL SUPPLIES AND DIRECT
OPERATING EXPENSES $37,928 $37,928

ABTPA-15
ç~Q1~V

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE E NARRATIVE

REQUIRED NARRATIVE: Briefly describe the basis for arriving at the cost of each line item AND THE
USE OF EACH ITEM.

Public Awareness Vehicle — Funds for fuel and maintenance. The vehicle is used to tow the Public
Awareness trailer, to aid in public awareness events.

Cell phone Service I Airtime .- Cost is $44 per month, x 7 units, x 12 months ($3,696) some
counties provide cell phones for their agents. These are to be used to conduct task force business.

Wireless Airtime for Laptops — Cost is $45 per month, xlO units, x 12 months ($5,400) — one county
provides wireless access to their agent. To be used by agents to access e-mail and the internet (to
conduct task force business).

Confidential Funds — Confidential Funds will be used in accordance with Travis County Sheriff’s
Office Policy. All funds will be tracked and reported. These funds may be used for the following:

• Undercover I Surveillance use including expenses that are incurred during an approved
operation. Receipts are to be obtained when possible.

• Informant payments include expenses for meals, drinks, and lodging (approved by the
Task force Sergeant) when necessary for the security of the operation. When additional
funds are needed, the request is routed through the sergeant.

• The Task Force Sergeant will determine payment for information based upon the type of
crime, quality and quantity of information.

• These guidelines are subject to adjustment. More (or less) may be paid to the informant
based on the danger to him / her, active involvement, etc. Officers receiving the informant
funds from other sources will follow the guidelines of the ABTPA and the Travis County
Sheriff’s Office.

Public Awareness Funds — Public Awareness funds will be used to purchase items to be used to
increase public awareness about auto burglary and vehicle theft within our 15 county area. Our
public awareness coordinator attends and participates in community events within our 15
county area such as community gatherings, fairs and festivals. Vehicle crime is listed as the
nation’s number one property crime costing an estimated $7.6 billion each year. By promoting
public awareness with said items we can help reduce crimes in these areas. Since September
I we have VIN etched 844 vehicles.

We would purchase items such as:
• Promotional items (tote bags, pens, etc.)
• Billboard space
• Media outreach
• Parking lot signs
• Cinema advertising

ABTPA-1 6

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE E NARRATIVE

REQUIRED NARRATIVE: Briefly describe the basis for arriving at the cost of each line item AND THE
USE OF EACH ITEM.

Bait Car Vehicle — Funds for fuel and maintenance. This vehicle will be used as a bait car for
burglary of vehicle and auto theft activities.

Wireless Airtime for GPS — Cost is $45 per month x 2 units x 12 months. These will be used to track
suspects in active burglary of vehicle or auto theft cases.

Live Feed for Bait Car — Cost is $1,300, and is a onetime fee. This will allow us to view live feed and
have immediate knowledge of what is happening with the Task Force bait car.

Wireless Airtime for Bait Car — Cost is $45 per month x I units x 12 months. This will allow us to
keep track of the bait car at all times.

ABTPA-1 6A

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE F NARRATIVE

Currently ABTPA does not fund indirect costs, except for the Council of Governments agencies.
Applicants may not use option (A) without having an official cost allocation plan developed in
accordance with 0MB Circular No. A-87. The amount may be entered as ABTPA funds or cash match
for those applicants having such an approved plan.

NIA

ABTPA-1 7

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

(Instructions)

To be considered for funding, a proposed grant project:

1. Must address a problem that is clearly identified, is measurable and is supported by relevant
statistical evidence;

2. Must minimize duplication or overlapping of existing programs;
3. Must have a design wherein the activities and goals are realistic and attainable;
4. Preferably should, but is not required to, be innovative in its conceptl design/operation; (a project is

considered innovative if it provides a new and different strategy or approach that prevents, deters,
intervenes, or stops a criminal act from occurring);

5. Must have a cost structure which is realistic when compared to its goals;
6. Must cooperate and coordinate its activities with other appropriate agencies/projects;
7. Must include measures to assure that it demonstrates cross-cultural awareness in all project

activities and in its staffing and training; and
8. Must include a proposed evaluation design that provides relevant data to measure the

effectiveness of the project and a plan for performing such evaluation.

Accordingly, the Program Narrative must present the information by which the eligibility and
merit of the project can be assessed. Applications will be scored and ranked numerically, for
funding consideration, according to the congruence of the project with the criteria stated above.
At a minimum, the five sections of the Program Narrative must include the following information:

1. PROBLEM STATEMENT & HISTORICAL INFORMATION: (Please limit information to 2 pgs)
• Provide an assessment of the auto theft problem in the areas of coverage and what efforts have been

undertaken to address it.

a. Describe and document trends of the problem and the need that makes this grant necessary.
(e.g., cite 3 years of UCR data)

b. Identify the target population and the geographic target area.

c. Describe existing activities that address the problem.

d. Describe the extent to which this project will duplicate or overlap existing activities, and why that
(if any) is necessary.

e. Provide and cite accurate statistical date for problem in project area.

ABTPA-1 8

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREvENTIoN AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

(Instructions Continued)

2. PROPOSED GOALS & OBJECTIVES:
• The applicant must provide specific goals and objectives for the project that are consistent with the

proposal. The goals should reflect the overall impact that you intend the project to attain.
• The objectives should explain how the goal will be accomplished. The activities described should support

the goal and be Specific, Measurable, Action-oriented, Realistic, and Time-oriented.
• The applicant must include a goal that addresses auto theft, auto burglary, and crime prevention that

you intend the project to attain.

a. Describe the specific goals of the project.

b. Describe the proposed activities of this project. Include any quantifiable data by which project
activities can be measured.

c. Describe how the project will impact the stated problem.

d. Describe the functions of significant personnel involved.

e. Describe proposed plan for auto theft crime prevention, education and training.

3. FUNCTIONS OF PROPOSED PROJECT:
The functions of the project should:

• Identify the target population, the estimated number of persons to be served, and the service
needs to be met by this project.

• Describe the applicant’s experience or qualifications.

• Describe how this project will cooperate/coordinate activities with other appropriate
agencies/projects.

• Describe in what way (if any) is this project innovative and what methods taken to assure that
the project demonstrates cross-cultural awareness in all project activities and in its staffing and
training.

4. EVALUATION DESIGN:
• The program evaluation should indicate how the applicant will assess the success of the project

and the extent to which the strategy achieved the project’s goals and objectives.

a. Describe the design of a plan for local evaluation of this project.

b. Cite relevant data that will be used to measure the effectiveness of this project.

c. Describe the mechanism to evaluate the program’s progress.

ABTPA-1 9

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

1. Problem Statement and Historical Information (See Instructions on page 17)

2008 Theft Statistics:

Every 6 seconds, a motor vehicle is stolen in the United States, and every 2.5 seconds, a
burglary of a vehicle occurs.

• Texas motor vehicle thefts statewide fell 8.8% in 2008 from 2007, according to the DPS
Uniform Crime Reports. In 2008, 85,4 1 1 vehicles were reported stolen in Texas.

The data for the SCATTF region is shown in the table below.

2007

OFFENSES POPULATION

The Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force region is a hub of crossroads between Mexico and
states north along the IH-35 corridor and US Hwy 59 as well as, to the East and West, IH-1 0 and US
Hwy 290. In 1997, with the aid of the ABTPA Grant, Travis County initiated the first regional effort to
combat auto-related criminal activity and has continued to focus on those efforts ever since.

Comparing data from 2006-2008, the numbers of reported vehicle thefts have increased 0.02% while
the population has increased 7.1% in the 15 county region of the SCATTF.

COUNTY POPULATION

2006 2008

OFFENSES POPULATION OFFENSES

Bastrop 72,110 106 74,108 104 74,581 121

Bell 264,247 560 261,571 509 281,915 433

Blanco 9,368 4 9,364 3 9,147 6

CaIdwell 36,502 48 41,123 39 35,951 14

Colorado 21,324 24 20,883 16 20,705 18

Comal 100,399 119 106,754 133 110,982 148

Fayette 23,176 6 22,614 10 22,629 12

Gonzales 20,142 7 19,692 5 19,280 4

Guadalupe 105,808 135 111,115 118 115,426 152

Hays 128,549 150 136,076 176 148,477 133

Lee 16,994 12 33,385 20 16,437 8

Llano 14,994 10 15,397 16 16,579 11

Milan, 26,072 26 25,424 27 24,934 50

Travis 925,145 2,810 948,241 3,246 1,008,075 2,911

Wharton 42,732 63 41,492 52 40,857 60

TOTALS 1,807,562 1 4,080 1,867,239 4,474 1,945,975 4,081

ABTPA-20

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

The map below shows the geographical target area of the task force. The members of the task force
continue to educate the citizens of the SCATTF jurisdiction that encompasses urban counties such as
Hays and Travis Counties where more thefts are likely to occur and rural counties including Blanco,
Caldwell, Lee, Llano, and Wharton, etc... where theft rings and chop shops can go undetected more
easily.

The most effective tool in the prevention of auto theft is education and the SCATTF has worked
diligently and successfully over the past several years to educate the public and other law
enforcement agencies in auto theft prevention techniques. The Task Force teaches classes in Basic
Auto Theft Recognition and Specialized Auto Theft Recognition.

VIN Etchings and H.E.A.T. Registrations throughout the 15 county region are an important component
of the SCATTF’s Public Awareness Program, as well as other media events.

ABTPA-20A

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

The Task Force uses a Field Training Program to assist incoming agents with their specialized
training.

The program consists of a six month hands on training, doing a variety of tasks under the supervision
of an experienced Auto Theft Agent. The intention is for new agents to have six months specialized
training prior to being released into his I her new assignment.

Teamwork and cooperation are keys to the success of the Task Force. Each agent is physically
located within the county they are employed by and all assist with contiguous counties. Through the
efforts of the Public Awareness Coordinator and the agents, numerous Public Awareness events are
scheduled every year and have resulted in the task force reaching many small communities
throughout the 15 county regions. Sheriff’s in the region have expressed appreciation to the Task
Force for the Public Awareness Program events conducted and welcome more in the future. SCATTF
also has a very good working relationship with the Austin Police Department’s Auto Theft Interdiction
Unit, the Texas Department of Transportation (Investigators), and other Auto Theft Task Forces.
Several Task Force members are also TAVTI board members and directors.

It should be noted that the Sheriff’s that participate in this Task Force give back. They pay for their
Agents fuel, maintenance and insurance on Task Force vehicles. They also cover the fringe benefits
for their Agents. Our Sheriff’s have a vested interest in this program. They believe in it and see how it
is working to better all of those involved.

ABTPA-208

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

2. Goals and Objectives (See Instructions on page 18)

Our goals for this grant year will be to decrease auto thefts with training, public awareness and
interdictions. We will also focus on burglary of vehicle related activities as well.

TRAINING:

The SCATTF will continue to reach out to the smaller law enforcement agencies throughout the
region. The SCATTF understands that such training is necessary, although time intensive, in
combating auto thefts in our area and will continue to provide the classes throughout the region.

INTERDICTIONS / ENFORCEMENT:

The SCATTF will work additional day and night time surveillance in areas known to have a high
number of incidents of auto burglaries as well as conduct sting operations.

Major highways used to transport stolen vehicles through the state of Texas are within the SCATTF
region. The task force provides interdictions on these roadways. The types of interdictions include
working license and weight areas, “operation gateway” at border towns, stationary parking lots, boat
ramps, hotel parking lots, mall parking lots, highways, etc. The task force has participated in various
operations.

ki~
“Nabbed” Comal County ______

Interdiction

Recovered from Auto Burglary
Surveillance in Guadalupe County

Fayette County Interdiction

ABTPA-21

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

2. Goals and Objectives (See Instructions on page 18)

PUBLIC AWARENESS:

The Public Awareness Coordinator and agents continue to enhance the task force effectiveness by
coordinating various auto burglary and theft awareness projects such as VIN Etchings, H.E.A.T.
Registrations, local neighborhood watches, and joint projects with other agencies. Radio, television,
and newspaper and our own website are avenues for advertising. During the first six months of this
grant period, 102 Public Awareness Presentations have been conducted. Patrol Officers continue to
hand out pamphlets that were created by the Task Force explaining what to expect when your car is
broken into or stolen.

THE SHERIFFS COMBINED AUTO THEFT TASI( FORCE

FREE~

_______ —

8~~Idflo~.

Exam pIe of flyer used to advertise
upcoming events that are either

posted in business’s in the area of
the upcoming events or on light

poles in the neighborhoods

INSPECTIONS AND INVESTIGATIONS:

The 15 county regions have more than 130 licensed salvage yard operations. There are also an
indeterminate number of unlicensed operations within the combined jurisdiction. Every operation is
fertile ground for disposal of stolen autos and component parts. These are also prime sites for
obtaining VIN plates for use in clandestine shop re-identification schemes.

The following is a list of the types of salvage inspections that SCATTF conducts:

A. Unlicensed Salvage Yards E. Garage and Mechanic Shops
B. Licensed Salvage Yards F. Auto Auctions
C. Auto Body I Repair Shops G. Used Car Lots
D. Wrecker I Storage Yard H. Auto Crushers

ABTPA-21 A
z~9,

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

A trailer full of parts, an ATV and a trailer recovered from a Chop Shop in
Guadalupe County

Tools, lawnmowers,
motorcycles recovered

from a Chop Shop

A Wabash Tractor, a semi trailer and a Ford F Series recovered during an
interdiction in Comal County

ABTPA-21 B

1)

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

In addition to the items listed above, the following are also part of the program:
• Covert Interdiction — SCATTF implements covert operations throughout the area for the

identification and apprehension of those involved in auto related criminal activity, recovery of
property and prosecution of perpetrators in criminal auto burglary/theft activity.

• Overt Interdiction — SCATTF currently conducts special operations such as widespread auto
interdiction, target interdiction and special assignments. Some of these special assignments
include targeting particular areas where high levels of auto theft related criminal activity occurs.

The SCATTF removes most of the jurisdictional limitations, which thieves use against law
enforcement, by allowing officers to cross county lines when investigating auto theft and motor
vehicle related crime. Because the SCATTF has inter-local agreements with the included counties,
the task force is able to operate smoothly and with joint effort. The SCATTF hopes that efforts will
help auto theft decline in our jurisdictions, however, growth in the region continues to make this a
challenge. While the population has increased by 7.1% from 2006 thru 2008, the reported vehicle
thefts in the region has only increased slightly by 0.2% indicating that the joint efforts of the
SCATTF agencies and the Auto Burglary and Theft Prevention Authority are making a difference.
This being the fourteenth (l4th) year of participation in the grant process shows the commitment
that the Sheriffs and County Officials in the participating counties have in wanting to reduce auto
theft and their related crimes including Burglary of Vehicles.

Currently, the SCATTF includes a Sergeant, who oversees daily operations, manages the
investigators and civilian staff, assists with cases and provides training to the employees. The
Sergeant is also the direct liaison with ABTPA, the 15 Sheriffs that comprise SCATTF, TAVTI and
other vital organizations. The Sergeant works closely with the investigators assisting them in
meeting their goals, targeting “hot spots”, reviewing all reports, statistics, paperwork (search
warrants), covert and overt operation planning, intelligence and information sharing and assisting
in public awareness projects.

The function of the field agents/investigators is to investigate criminal activity related to auto theft
primarily in their geographical locations/areas. Among the activities they perform are salvage
inspections, locate chop shops, conduct training classes, perform covert and overt surveillance,
presentation of public awareness events and much more.

The Public Awareness Coordinator/Sr Office Specialist does data entry of auto theft and burglary
related cases, answers phones, prepares monthly and quarterly statistics and reports, conducts
the Public Awareness Events and much more.

Crime prevention, education, and training will continue to be a major focus of the task force.
These goals will be accomplished through public awareness presentations (VIN Etchings, H.E.A.T.
Registrations), media releases, and our website (www.scattf.org) to reach the most citizens
possible to educate them on the problems, causes of, and solutions to Auto Burglary and Auto
Theft.

ABTPA-21 C

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

3. Functions of the Proposed Project (See Instructions on page 18)

Continued training instruction by our agents will enable SCATTF to reach law enforcement officers
throughout the 15 county region to educate and partner with them to help lower Auto Burglary and
Auto Theft in Texas.

The target population includes a 15 county area with a combined population of more than 1 .9 million
and includes both rural and urban counties. The population of this area is projected to increase by
more than 162% in the next 35 years. Counties such as Bell, Hays, and Travis are more urban and
Auto Burglaries and Thefts are more likely to occur in these counties. Counties such as Blanco,
Colorado, Lee, and Llano are more rural where theft rings and chop shops could easily go undetected.

As outlined below, the SCATTF is on schedule to meet or exceed all goals set for the current year.

Goals for Completed in first 6SCATTF Performance Measures FY 09/10 months

Training Classes 10 3
Public Awareness Presentations 1 15 102
Salvage Inspections 40 5
Interdiction Operations 200 212
Chop Shop Identifications 7 4
Vehicle Inspections Other 1,300 6,143
Public Reached thru media, mail outs, etc. 500,000 1,429,312
68-A’s 300 350
~ 10 8
Warrant Arrest 10 15
Cases Worked by Task Force Agents 840 566
Vehicles Recovered by Task Force Agents 585 351
Render Assistance to other Agencies 600 1,258

The extensive Field Training Program that the Task Force has shows the commitment of SCATTF to
raising the education level of all officers in the task force so they in-turn can pass their knowledge onto
other officers and the citizens that we serve.

It is due to the experience, qualifications and dedication of the task force agents and the public
awareness coordinator that the task force is able to accomplish their objectives year after year,
decrease the number of auto burglaries and auto thefts, and serve the citizens of the counties in
which we operate and the State of Texas through our cooperative partnerships with other agencies
and task forces.

ABTPA-22

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREvENTIoN AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

The SCATTF has been an innovative program with task force counties working together to combat
auto burglary and auto theft crime. Each Sheriff who provides an agent to SCATTF has expressed
pleasure with the work performance and cohesiveness it provides. The task force enables counties to
have a focused and cooperative effort on a specialized segment of crime, yet is tailored to meet the
needs of each participant.

The task force continually works with other agencies within the state. These operations and
cooperation allow the task force agents to learn from and teach others making them more effective
and fostering relationships that assist in the sharing of information to help combat auto burglary and
auto theft not only in our area but the state as a whole.

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Standards mandates all licensed officers participate in a
cultural awareness class at a minimum of every other year. Federal law requires that a Racial Profiling
Form be completed on all custody stops made.

ABTPA-22A

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

4. Proposed Evaluation Design (See Instructions on page 18)

An important aspect in evaluating a program of this type is whether the participating agencies
(Sheriff’s) perceive the program as one that is worthwhile in their county and whether all counties are
coordinating efforts with each other for the good of all involved. To receive feedback from the Sheriff’s,
there have been and will continue to be bi-yearly Board of Governors meetings to discuss agenda
items relevant to this project. Minutes from each meeting are recorded and all present are invited to
speak on any item of interest. We have found that the attendance of board members helps foster and
build relationships. These relationships lead to a quick resolution of issues that cross territorial
boundaries historically difficult to cross.

We will continue to keep monthly stats to track the progress of the unit and monitor the crime statistics
of our region and the state and country as a whole to ensure that we are continuing to make a
difference in the fight against auto burglary and auto theft. Our goals for the 2009-2010 grant periods
are in the chart below:

. . Goals for Goals forActivity FY 09110 FY 10111

Training Classes 10 10
Public Awareness Presentations 1 15 1 15
Public Reached thru media, mail outs, etc. 500,000 500,000
Salvage Inspections 40 40
Interdiction Operations 200 200
Chop Shop Identifications 7 7
Vehicle Inspections — Other 1,300 1,300
Render Assistance to other Agencies 600 600
Bait Vehicle Operations NA 10
Auto Burglary Surveillance Operations 10 10
Warrant Arrest 10 10
Cases Worked by Task Force Agents 840 840
Vehicles Recovered by Task Force Agents 585 585

ABTPA-23

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

DESIGNATION OF GRANT OFFICIALS

ABTPA rules require that three persons be designated to the positions of Authorized Official,
Project Director, and Financial Officer for the purposes of administering a grant. The Project
Director and the Financial Officer may not be the same person, but under extenuating
circumstances, one person may otherwise fill two positions. In accordance with the criteria
and definition of responsibilities set forth in the Financial and Administrative Requirements
section of the ABTPA Grant Application and Administration Guidelines governing submission
of this application, the following designations are made:

APPLICANT: TRAVIS COUNTY

PROJECT TITLE: Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force (SCATTF)

Mr. Joe Escribano
Project Director (Type or Print)

Lieutenant, Travis County Sheriff’s Office
Title and Agency

P0 Box 1748
Business Address (Street or P. 0. Box)

Austin 78767
City Zip

Ms. Susan Spataro
Financial Officer (Type or Print)

County Auditor. Travis County
Title and Agency

P0 Box 1748
Business Address (Street or P. 0. Box)

Austin 78767
City Zip

512.854.9735 I 512.854.7410 (fax)
Telephone and Fax Numbers

512.854.9125! 512.854.9164 (fax)
Telephone and Fax Numbers

Mr. Samuel T. Biscoe
Authorized Official (Type or Print)

County Judge, Travis County
Title and Agency

P0 Box 1748
Business Address (Street or P. 0. Box)

Austin 78767
City Zip

512.854.9555 I 512.854.9535 (fax)
Telephone and Fax Numbers

ABTPA-24

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREvENTIoN AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT CERTIFICATION

The Grantee hereby assures and certifies compliance with Subchapter II, Part A of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C., Sections 12131-12134, and Department of
Justice ADA regulations, 28 CFR Part 35.

Authorized Official Date

Travis County
Grantee

Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force
Project Title

ABTPA-25

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

Non Supplanting Certification

I certify that the programs proposed in this application meet all the requirements of the Texas Civil

Statutes, Article 4413(32a), §6(a)(7), (a) Texas Civil Statutes, Article 4413(32a), §6(a)(7), requires

that state funds provided by this Act shall not be used to supplant state or local funds. Public Law 98-

473 requires that federal funds provided by that Act shall not be used to supplant state or local funds.

I further certify that ABTPA funds have not been used to replace state or local funds that would have

been available in the absence of ABTPA funds. The certification shall be incorporated in each

grantee’s report of expenditure and status of funds referred to under §57.3(6) of this title (relating to

Adoption by Reference).

AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL DATE

Travis County
GRANTEE

ABTPA-26

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT

The attached digest of your grant application represents the Automobile Burglary & Theft Prevention
Authority Board’s approved amount. The digest represents budgeted amounts only and does not
approve any items that conflict with the participating agency’s personnel, procurement, travel, or local
government code policies and procedures.

The grantee will be responsible in determining that the following requirements are being met prior to
the release of funds:

1) Salaries are in accordance with local policy of the participating agencies.

2) Personnel are classified in accordance with the needed qualification for the position.

3) Fringe Benefits are in accordance with local policy of the participating agencies.

4) Travel Policy is in accordance with the travel policy of the participating agencies.

Authorized Official Date

Travis County
Grantee

ABTPA-27

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREvENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM CERTIFICATION

I, _____________________________________, certify that:

This agency employs fewer than 50 people; therefore, the _______________________
(Agency)

is not required to file an equal opportunity program in accordance with 28 CFR 42.301 et seq.,
Subpart E.

or

This agency employs 50 or more people and has received or applied to the Automobile
Burglary & Theft Prevention Authority for total funds in excess of $25,000; therefore, the

County of Travis has formulated an equal employment opportunity
(Agency)

program in accordance with 28 CFR 42.301 et seq., Subpart E and that it is on file in the office
of:

Tracey Calloway Director Human Resources
(name) (title)

P0 Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767
(address)

for review or audit by an official of the Automobile Burglary & Theft Prevention Authority as
required by relevant laws and regulations.

PROJECT TITLE: Sheriff’s Combined Auto Theft Task Force

Authorized Official (signature) Project Director (signature)

Date Date

ABTPA-28

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

ASSURANCES

A Grantee and the Applicant hereby makes and certifies that as grantee, it and any subgrantee
shall comply with the following conditions:

1. A grantee and subgrantee must comply with ABTPA grant rules and UGMS.

2. A grantee and subgrantee must comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 573, by
ensuring that no officer, employee, or member of the applicant’s governing body or of the
applicant’s contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any persons related within
the second degree of affinity or the third degree of consanguinity to any member of the
governing body or to any other officer or employee authorized to employ or supervise such
person. This prohibition shall not prohibit the employment of a person who shall have
been continuously employed for a period of two years, or such period stipulated by local
law, prior to the election or appointment of the officer, employee, or governing body
member related to such person in the prohibited degree.

3. A grantee and subgrantee must insure that all information collected, assembled or
maintained by the applicant relative to a project will be available to the public during normal
business hours in compliance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 552, unless otherwise
expressly prohibited by law.

4. A grantee and subgrantee must comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, which
requires all regular, special or called meeting of governmental bodies to be open to the
public, except as otherwise provided by law.

5. A grantee and subgrantee must comply with Section 231 .006, Texas Family Code, which
prohibits payments to a person who is in arrears on child payments.

6. No health and human services agency or public safety or law enforcement agency may
contact with or issue a license, certificate or permit to the owner, operator or administrator
of a facility if the license, permit or certificate has been revoked by another health and
human services agency or public safety or law enforcement agency.

7. A grantee and subgrantee that is a law enforcement agency regulated by Texas
Government Code, Chapter 415, must be in compliance with all rules adopted by the Texas
Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education pursuant to Chapter
415, Texas Government Code or must provide the grantor agency with a certification from
the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education that the
agency is in process of achieving compliance with such rules.

ABTPA-29

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

ASSURANCES (continued)

8. When incorporated into a grant award or contract, these standards assurances contained in
the application package become terms or conditions for receipt of grant funds.
Administering state agencies and local subrecipients shall maintain an appropriate contact
administration system to insure that all terms, conditions, and specifications are met. (See
Section .36 for additional guidance on contract provisions.)

9. A grantee and subgrantee must comply with the Texas Family Code, Section 261 .101 which
requires reporting of all suspected cases of child abuse to local law enforcement
authorities and to the Texas Department of Child Protective and Regulatory Services.
Grantees and subgrantees shall also ensure that all program personnel are properly trained
and aware of this requirement.

10.Grantees and subgrantees will comply with all federal statutes relating to
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national
origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §~ 1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination
on the basis of handicaps and the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990; (d) the Age
Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §~ 6101-61 07), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972
(P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination on the basis of
alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §~ 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42
U.S.C. 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug
abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.),
as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (I) any
other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application for
Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination
statue(s) which may apply to the application.

II. Grantees and subgrantees will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §~ 276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §~ 276c and 18 U.S.C.
§~ 874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §~ 327-333),
regarding labor standards for federally assisted construction subagreements.

12. Grantees and subgrantees will comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 91 -646) which
provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired
as a result of Federal or federally assisted programs. These requirements apply to all
interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation
in purchases.

ABTPA-30

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

ASSURANCES (continued)

13. Grantees and subgrantees will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Political Activity Act
(5 U.S.C. § 7321-29) which limit the political activity of employees whose principal
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

14. Grantees and subgrantees will comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours
provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and the Intergovernmental Personnel
Act of 1970, as applicable.

15. Grantees and subgrantees will insure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or
supervision which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not listed on
the Environmental Protections Agency’s (EPA) list of Violating Facilities and that it will
notify the Federal grantor agency of the receipt of any communication from the Director of
the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project is
under consideration for listing by the EPA. (EO11738)

16. Grantees and subgrantees will comply with Article IX, Section 5 of the state appropriations
act which prohibit the use of state funds to influence the outcome of any election or the
passage or defeat of any legislative measure.

AuToMoBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

ASSURANCES CERTIFICATION

I certify that the programs proposed in this application meet all the requirements of the Texas
Automobile Burglary & Theft Prevention Authority Program, that all the information presented
is correct, and that the applicant will comply with the provisions of the Automobile Burglary &
Theft Prevention Authority and all other federal and state laws, regulations, and guidelines. By
appropriate language incorporated in each grant, subgrant, or other document under which
funds are to be disbursed, the undersigned shall assure that the applicable conditions above
apply to all recipients of assistance.

Authorized Official Date

ABTPA-31

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AUTOMOBILE BURGLARY & THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY

SPECIAL CONDITION

iNDEPENDENT ANNUAL AUDIT CERTIFICATION

The grantee hereby assures compliance by itself and its applicable sub-recipients (contractors) with the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996, PL 104 - 156 and, particularly, with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133 as follows (check one):

1. ~__~ Grant(s) expenditures of $300,000 or more in federal funds - An annual single audit by an independent
auditor made in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 0MB Circular A-133.

2. Grant(s) expenditures of $300,000 or more in state funds - An annual single audit by an independent
auditor made in accordance with the Uniform Grant and Contract Management Standards (UGCMS).

3. Grant(s) expenditures of less than $300,000 in federal funds - Exempt from the Single Audit Act.
However, ABTPA may require a limited scope audit as defined in 0MB Circular A-133.

4. Grant(s) expenditures less than $300,000 but $50,000 or more in state funds - A program-specific audit.

5. Grant(s) expenditures less than a total of $50,000 in state funds - Financial Statements audited in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GASS).

NOTE: Grantees exempt from the Single Audit Act requirements (i.e. those expending less than $300,000 in total federal financial assistance)
are prohibited from charging the cost of a Single Audit to a Federal Award.

Authorized Official (Signature) Financial Officer (Signature)

/ I / I
Date Date

Travis County SA-TO1-10069
Grantee Organization Grant Number

Regardless of items checked above, the grantee should, within 60 days following the date of the grant award, furnish the following
information:

1. The identity of the organization conducting the audit.
2. Approximate time audit will be conducted.
3. Audit coverage to be provided.

ABTPA-32

E~\Q

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for:

I. A. Requestmadeby:~~— 2010

Rodney Rhoades, Executive anager, Planning & Budget (49106)

CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION ON AN ORDER
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT BONDS,
SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX), IN THE AGGREGATE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $11,145,000; LEVYING A TAX IN
PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING A PURCHASE
CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT;
AND ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING
THERETO

Approved by: ___________________________________________

Signature of Commissioner(s) or County Judge

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this
Agenda Request and backup to them:

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:

Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)
Additional funding for any department or for any purpose
Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget
Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)
A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)
Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 28



________ Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: This Agenda Request complete with backup
memorandum and exhibits should be submitted to the County Judge’s Office no later
than 5:00 p.m. on Monday for the next week’s meeting. Late or incomplete requests
may be deferred to the next subsequent meeting.

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER OF THE

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

authorizing

$11,145,000
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT BONDS
SERIES 2010

(LIMITED TAX)

Adopted: May 4, 2010

363 143v. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Definitions 2
Findings 4
Table of Contents, Titles and Headings 4
Interpretation 4

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01 Tax Levy 4
Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund 5

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE BONDS

Authorization 5
Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest 5
Medium, Method and Place of Payment 6
Execution and Registration of Bonds 7
Ownership 8
Registration, Transfer and Exchange 8
Cancellation 9
Temporary Bonds 9
Replacement Bonds 10
Book-Entry Only System 11
Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only
System 11
Payments to Cede & Co 12

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Redemption Before Maturity 12
Optional Redemption 12
Partial Redemption 12
Notice of Redemption to Owners 13
Payment Upon Redemption 13

Section 1.01
Section 1.02
Section 1.03
Section 1.04

Section 3.01
Section 3.02
Section 3.03
Section 3.04
Section 3.05
Section 3.06
Section 3.07
Section 3.08
Section 3.09
Section 3.10
Section 3.11

Section 3.12

Section 4.01
Section 4.02
Section 4.03
Section 4.04
Section 4.05

363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Page

Section 4.06 Effect of Redemption 14

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01 Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar 14
Section 5.02 Qualifications 14
Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar 14
Section 5.04 Termination 15
Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners 15
Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions 15
Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor 15

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section 6.01 Form Generally 15
Section 6.02 Form of the Bonds 16
Section 6.03 CUSIP Registration 21
Section 6.04 Legal Opinion 21
Section 6.05 Statement of Insurance 21

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS, DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01 Sale of Bonds, Official Statement 22
Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Bonds 22
Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds; Transfer of Funds 23

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01 Investments 23
Section 8.02 Investment Income 23

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01 Payment of the Bonds 24
Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants 24

—11—
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE X

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION

Section 10.01 General Tax Covenants 24
Section 10.02 No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing 25
Section 10.03 No Federal Guaranty 25
Section 10.04 Bonds are not Hedge Bonds 25
Section 10.05 No-Arbitrage Covenant 25
Section 10.06 Arbitrage Rebate 25
Section 10.07 Information Reporting 26
Section 10.08 Record Retention 26
Section 10.09 Registered Bonds 26
Section 10.10 Continuing Obligation 26

ARTICLE XI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01 Events of Default 27
Section 11.02 Remedies for Default 27
Section 11.03 Remedies Not Exclusive 27

ARTICLE XII

DISCHARGE

Section 12.01 Discharge 28

ARTICLE XIII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 13.01 Annual Reports 28
Section 13.02 Material Event Notices 28
Section 13.03 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments 29

EXECUTION

Exhibit A - Description ofAnnual Disclosure of Financial Information A-i

—111—
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2010
(LIMITED TAX), IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF
$11,145,000; LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING A
PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND
ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, the bonds hereinafter authorized were duly and favorably voted at one or
more of the county-wide elections held in Travis County, Texas (the “County”), on November 6,
2001 and November 8, 2005;

WHEREAS, at said elections, the following are among the purposes and amounts of the
permanent improvement bonds which were authorized, reflecting any amount previously issued
pursuant to such voted authorization, the amount therefrom being issued pursuant to this Order,
and the balance that remains unissued after the issuance of the permanent improvement bonds
herein authorized, to-wit:

Amount Amount
Amount Previously Being Unissued

Purpose Voted Issued Issued Balance

2001 Election

County Parks (Prop. 2) $28,600,000 $28,400,000 $ -0- $200,000

2005 Election

Parks and Parkiand 62,150,000 48,980,000 11,145,000 2,025,000

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Travis County has found and determined that it
is necessary and in the best interest of the County and its citizens that it authorize by this Order
the issuance and delivery of $11,145,000 of such bonds in a single series at this time;

WHEREAS, it is affirmatively found that the County is authorized to issue, sell and
deliver such bonds pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly
Chapter 331, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Order is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED BY THE COMMISSIONERS
COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS:

363 143v. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01 Definitions.

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in
this Order, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Bond” means any of the Bonds.

“Bond Date” means the date designated as the date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) of
this Order.

“Bonds” means the County’s bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Order
and designated as “Travis County, Texas, Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2010 (Limited
Tax).”

“Business Day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, or day
on which banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are authorized by law or executive
order to close.

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Commissioners Court” means the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas,
together with any successor to the duties and functions thereof

“County” means Travis County, Texas.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any
successor securities depository.

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 11.01 of this Order.

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the
Commissioners Court.

“Initial Bond” means the Initial Bond authorized by Section 3.04 of this Order.

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by
Section 2.02 of this Order.

-2-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates on which interest on the Bonds is
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates ofmaturity or prior redemption, such dates being
March 1 and September 1, commencing March 1, 2011.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in
the Register.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas,
or any successor thereto as provided in this Order.

“Project” means the purposes for this the Bonds are issued as set forth in Section 301.

“Purchase Contract” means the purchase contract between the County and the
Underwriters pertaining to the sale of the Bonds.

“Record Date” means the flfieenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment
Date.

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Order.

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the
County and DTC.

“Representative” means the entity designated as the representative of the Underwriters in
the Purchase Contract.

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b)
of this Order.

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b) of
this Order.

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
payment of principal of redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds as the same come
due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Bonds duly called for redemption prior to
maturity.

“Underwriters” mean the entities named in the Purchase Contract as the underwriters of
the Bonds.

-3-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 1.02 Findings.

The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the preamble
to this Order are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions hereof

Section 1.03 Table of Contents. Titles and Headings.

The table of contents, titles and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Order have
been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and
shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never be
considered or given any effect in construing this Order or any provision hereof or in ascertaining
intent, if any question of intent should arise.

Section 1.04 Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural
number and vice versa.

(b) This Order and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to
effectuate the purposes set forth herein.

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01 Tax Levy.

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the
State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the
County, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service
requirements of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per annum (whichever amount is
greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of
collection.

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the County most recently approved in accordance with
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as
due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

-4-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(d) If the liens and provisions of this Order shall be released in a manner permitted by
Article XII hereof; then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately
reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking Fund may be
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.

Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund.

(a) The County hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the
“Travis County, Texas, Permanent Improvement Bonds, Series 2010 (Limited Tax), Interest and
Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official
depository bank of the County separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the
County.

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Order to be deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the
Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE BONDS

Section 3.01 Authorization.

The County’s bonds to be designated “Travis County, Texas, Permanent Improvement
Bonds, Series 2010 (Limited Tax)” (the “Bonds”), are hereby authorized to be issued and
delivered in accordance with Chapter 331, Texas Local Government Code, as amended. The
Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $11,145,000 for the purposes of
(i) constructing and improving county parks and the acquisition of land and interests in land in
connection therewith, including, without limitation, the acquisition of open space park land
(2005) (the “Project”) and (ii) paying the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest.

(a) The Bonds shall be dated May 1, 2010. The Bonds shall be in fully registered
form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; and shall
be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-1.

-5-
363 143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) The Bonds shall mature on March 1 in the years and in the principal amounts set
forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Years Amount Rates Years Amount Rates

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or
prior redemption from the later of the Bond Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to
which interest has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for each respective maturity
specified in the schedule contained in subsection (b) above. Such interest shall be payable
semiannually on each Interest Payment Date. Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

Section 3.03 Medium, Method and Place of Payment.

(a) The principal of premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be paid in
lawful money of the United States of America.

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for
such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying
Agent/Registrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the
County. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due
interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be at least 15 days after the Special Record
Date) shall be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States
mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing in the
Register at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice.

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment
Date, and sent United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to
each Owner, at the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other customary
banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; provided,
however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement. At

-6-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of Bonds, interest may be paid by
wire transfer to the bank account of such owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date
(whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof) upon presentation and
surrender of such Bond at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds is not a
Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day, and
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date
payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on
which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

(f) Unclaimed Payments of amounts due hereunder shall be segregated in a special
account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the
Owners of the Bonds to which such Unclaimed Payments pertain. Subject to Title 6 of the Texas
Property Code, any Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto
for three years after the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next
payment or payments on the Bonds thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money
remains three years after the retirement of all outstanding Bonds, such money shall be paid to the
County to be used for any lawful purpose. Thereafter, neither the County, the Paying
Agent/Registrar nor any other person shall be liable or responsible to any Owners of such Bonds
for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or on account of any such Bonds, subject to
Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.

Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Bonds.

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the County by the County Judge,
countersigned by the County Clerk, and registered by the County Treasurer, by their manual or
facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Commissioners Court shall be impressed or
placed in facsimile thereon. Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the same effect as
if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said officers, and such
facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of the Commissioners
Court had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds.

(b) In the event that any officer of the County whose manual or facsimile signature
appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before
the delivery thereof such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office.

(c) Except as provided below, no Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or
be entitled to any security or benefit of this Order unless and until there appears thereon the
Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying
Agent/Registrar. It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the
Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds. In
lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Bond

-7-
363 143v. I TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration
Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which certificate shall be
evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas,
and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the County, and that it has been registered by the
Comptroller ofPublic Accounts of the State of Texas.

(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Bond representing the entire principal amount of
all Bonds, payable in stated installments to the Representative or its designee, executed by the
County Judge and County Clerk, approved by the Attorney General, and registered and manually
signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be delivered to the Representative or its
designee. Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial
Bond and deliver to DTC on behalf of the Representative a single typewritten Bond for each
maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount thereof; registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

Section 3.05 Ownership.

(a) The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the
person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose
of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof and redemption premium, if any,
thereon, for the further purpose of making and receiving payment of the interest thereon, and for
all other purposes (except that interest will be paid to the person in whose name such Bond is
registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), whether or not such Bond
is overdue, and neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice
or knowledge to the contrary.

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall
discharge the liability of the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the
extent of the sums paid.

Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer and Exchange.

(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the County shall cause the Paying
Agent/Registrar to keep at its office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the
registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Order.

(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transferred only upon the presentation and
surrender of the Bond at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other
evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. No transfer of any Bond
shall be effective until entered in the Register.

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at
the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest
rate and in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000, and in an
aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the Bonds presented for

-8-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



exchange. The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver Bonds
exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section.

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the County and shall be entitled
to the benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of
which such exchange Bond is delivered.

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration,
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds. The Paying
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration,
transfer or exchange of a Bond.

(f) Neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue,
transfer, or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar
days prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not be
applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

Section 3.07 Cancellation.

All Bonds paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this Order, and
all Bonds in lieu ofwhich exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are authenticated and delivered
in accordance with this Order, shall be cancelled and proper records shall be made regarding
such payment, redemption, exchange or replacement. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall then
return such cancelled Bonds to the County or may in accordance with law destroy such cancelled
Bonds and periodically furnish the County with certificates of destruction of such Bonds.

Section 3.08 Temporary Bonds.

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the
preparation of defmitive Bonds, the proper officers of the County may execute and, upon the
County’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more
temporary Bonds that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed or otherwise
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the defmitive Bonds in lieu ofwhich
they are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions,
substitutions and other variations as the officers of the County executing such temporary Bonds
may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Bonds.

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in defmitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Order.

(c) The County, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the
Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in defmitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and
surrender of the Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in
exchange therefor Bonds of the same maturity and series, in defmitive form, in the authorized
denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bonds in temporary form

-9-
363 143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



surrendered. Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge therefor to any
Owner.

Section 3.09 Replacement Bonds.

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated
Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously
outstanding. The County or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to
pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be
imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith.

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence
of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a
number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first:

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond;

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to save it and the County harmless;

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the County and the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) 1f after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the
original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such
original Bond, the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such
replacement Bond from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom,
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the County or
the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith.

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully
taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond if it has become due and
payable or may pay such Bond when it becomes due and payable.

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute
an original additional contractual obligation of the County and shall be entitled to the benefits
and security of this Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such
replacement Bond is delivered.

-10-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 3.10 Book-Entry Only System.

(a) The definitive Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate typewritten
fully registered Bond for each of the maturities thereof Upon initial issuance of the Bonds, the
ownership of such Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and
except as provided in Section 3.11 hereof; all of the outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC,
the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the
Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the County and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in
the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as
shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of
redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an
Owner, as shown in the Register, of any amount with respect to principal of; premium, if any, or
interest on the Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, the
County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose
name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose
of payment of principal of; premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, for the purpose of giving
notices with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such
Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal
of; premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective
Owners, as shown in the Register, as provided in this Order, or their respective attorneys duly
authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and
discharge the County’s obligations with respect to payment of principal of; premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than an Owner,
as shown in the Register, shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation of the County to make
payments of amounts due pursuant to this Order. Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying
Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new
nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this Order shall refer to such new
nominee ofDTC.

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the County, and
applicable to the County’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds.

Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository~ Transfer Outside Book-Entry
Only System.

In the event that the County determines that it is in the best interest of the County and of
the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, or in the event
DTC discontinues the services described herein, the County shall (i) appoint a successor
securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such

-11-
363 143v. 1 TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor
securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of
certificated Bonds and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate
registered Bonds to DTC Participants having Bonds credited to their DTC accounts. In such
event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities
depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging
Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Order.

Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, so long as any Bonds are
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal
of; premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such Bonds, shall
be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representations Letter of the
County to DTC.

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01 Redemption Before Maturity.

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in
this Article IV.

Section 4.02 Optional Redemption.

(a) The County reserves the option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after March 1,
2021 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on March 1, 2020 or
on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional
redemption, the County shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Bonds, or portions
thereof; within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption.

(c) The County, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed.

Section 4.03 Partial Redemption.

(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof If
such a Bond is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000
portion of the Bond as though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption.

12-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Order, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange Bond
or Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bond so
surrendered, such exchange being without charge.

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the County in writing of the
principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be
redeemed.

Section 4.04 Notice of Redemption to Owners.

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by
sending notice by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the
date of mailing such notice.

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at
which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed.

(c) The County reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem
Bonds under Section 4.02 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice
may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized
securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying
Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption
date or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the
scheduled redemption date if the County delivers a certificate of the County to the Paying
Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and
such notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are
not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt
notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any
Bonds subject to conditional redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain
Outstanding, and the rescission shall not constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a
conditional redemption, the failure of the County to make moneys and/or authorized securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of
Default.

(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

Section 4.05 Payment Upon Redemption.

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the County shall deposit with the Paying
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar

-13-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



from the County and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the principal of;
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption to the Paying
Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay
the principal of; redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of
redemption from the money set aside for such purpose.

Section 4.06 Effect ofRedemption.

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.04 of this Order,
and subject, in the case of an optional redemption under Section 4.02, to any conditions or rights
reserved by the County under Section 4.04(c), the Bonds or portions thereof called for
redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the
County fails to make provision for the payment of the principal thereof; redemption premium, if
any, or accrued interest thereon, such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to bear interest from
and after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not such Bonds are presented and surrendered
for payment on such date.

(b) If the County shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a
redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear
interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same by the
County.

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01 Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.

The County is hereby declared to be the issuer-registrar with respect to the Bonds as
defined and provided for in Section 1203.021, Texas Government Code, and the County
Treasurer is hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds on behalf of the
County.

Section 5.02 Qualifications.

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized
under the laws of the State of Texas, or any other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to
serve as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Bonds.

Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.

(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the County will maintain a
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Order.

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the
County will promptly appoint a replacement.

-14-
363 143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 5.04 Termination.

The County, upon not less than sixty (60) days notice, reserves the right to terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to
be terminated written notice of such termination.

Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners.

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the County
will cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class,
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying Agent/Registrar is
deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Order and that it will perform the duties and
functions ofPaying Agent/Registrar prescribed herein

Section 5.07 Delivery ofRecords to Successor.

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar.

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section 6.01 Form Generally.

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the
Assignment form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form set forth in
this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are
permitted or required by this Order, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or other marks of
identification (including identif~,ring numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities
Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such legends and
endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, consistently
herewith, may be determined by the County or by the officers executing such Bonds, as
evidenced by their execution thereof

(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds.

(c) The defmitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed,
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or

-15-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as
evidenced by their execution thereof

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

Section 6.02 Form of the Bonds.

The form of the Bond, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be substantially as
follows:

(a) Form of Bond.

REGISTERED REGISTERED

No. $

United States of America
State ofTexas

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT BOND

SERIES 2010
(LIMITED TAX)

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER:

% March 1, May 1, 2010

Travis County, Texas (the “County”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of

_______________ DOLLARS

unless the Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal
hereof shall have been paid or provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from
the later of the Bond Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which
interest has been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been paid or
provided for, at the per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months, such interest to be paid semiannually on March 1 and
September 1 of each year, commencing March 1,2011.

-16-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at
the office in Austin, Texas, of the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas, as Paying
Agent/Registrar, or, with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the designated
payment/transfer office of such successor. Interest on this Bond is payable by check dated as of
the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered
owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by
such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expense of
such other banking arrangement. At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal
amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on
file with the Paying Agent/Registrar. For the purpose of the payment of interest on this Bond,
the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of
business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the fifteenth day of the month next preceding such
interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of interest on a
scheduled interest payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest
payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and
when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the County. Notice of the
Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special
Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five
Business Days (as hereinafter defined) prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail,
first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner of a Bond appearing on the
books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on thc last Busincss Day ncxt
preceding the date of mailing such notice.

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are
required or authorized by law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the
next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking
institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are required or authorized to close (a “Business Day”),
and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date
payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on
which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

This Bond is one of a series of fully registered bonds specified in the title hereof issued in
the aggregate principal amount of $11,145,000 (herein referred to as the “Bonds”), issued
pursuant to a certain order of the County (the “Order”) for the purpose of providing funds for
improvement of County parks as described in the Order, and to pay the costs of issuing the
Bonds.

The County has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after March 1,
2021 in whole or in part before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on March 1, 2020 or on
any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for redemption
plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If less than all of the Bonds are to be
redeemed, the County shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lots the Bonds, or portions
thereof within such maturity and in such principal amounts, for redemption.

-17-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the
registered owner of each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part. Any notice so mailed
shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner
receives such notice. Notice having been so given and subject, in the case of an optional
redemption, to any rights or conditions reserved by the county in the notice, the Bonds called for
redemption shall become due and payable on the specified redemption date, and notwithstanding
that any Bond or portion thereof has not been surrendered for payment, interest on such Bond or
portion thereof shall cease to accrue.

In the Order, the County reserves the right, in the case of an optional redemption, to give
notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds conditioned upon the occurrence of
subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit
of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the
redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law,
no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice at
any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if the County delivers a certificate of the
County to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the
redemption notice, and such notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or
authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice of
redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional redemption and such
redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the rescission of such redemption
shall not constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, the
failure of the County to make moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole
on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of Default.

As provided in the Order, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this Bond is
transferable upon surrender of this Bond for transfer at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar
with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same stated maturity,
of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same aggregate
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

Neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within
45 calendar days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not
be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in
whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered
on the Record Date) and for all other purposes, whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither
the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

It is hereby certified and recited that the issuance of this Bond and the series ofwhich it is
a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent

-18-
363 143v. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have happened
in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem taxes upon all
taxable property in the County have been levied for and pledged to the payment of the debt
service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law.

In witness whereof; the County has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or
facsimile signature of the County Judge, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of
the County Clerk, and registered by the manual or facsimile signature of the County Treasurer
and the official seal of the Commissioners Court of the County has been duly impressed or
placed in facsimile on this Bond.

County Judge

County Clerk

REGISTERED:

County Treasurer

[SEAL]

(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.

The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive
Bonds if such certificate on the Initial Bond is fully executed.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO.
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §

I hereby certif~’ that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required
by law, that he fmds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the
State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation ofTravis County, Texas, and that this
Bond has this day been registered by me.

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _____________________________

Comptroller ofPublic Accounts
[SEAL] of the State of Texas

-19-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.

The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial Bond
if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of
Bonds was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred
to in the within-mentioned Order.

COIJNTY TREASURER OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

Dated: _______________ By:______________________________________________
Authorized Signatory

(d) Form ofAssignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto
(print or typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):

(Social Security or other identif~ying number: ___________) the within Bond and all rights
hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints _____________________ attorney to
transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof with full power of substitution
in the premises.

Dated: _____________________________________
NOTICE: The signature on this Assignment
must correspond with the name of the
registered owner as it appears on the face of
the within Bond in every particular and must
be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

Signature Guaranteed:

Authorized Signatory

-20-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of this
Section, except for the following alterations:

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown
Below” and the reference to “CUSIP NUMBER” shall be deleted;

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date
specified above, the sum of _________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following
will be inserted: “on March 1 in each of the years, in the principal installments, and
bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest
Years Installments Rates”

(Information to be inserted from
schedule in Section 3.02 of this Order)

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1.

Section 6.03 CUSIP Registration.

The County may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Service Bureau
Division of Standard & Poor’s Corporation, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, New
York, New York, and may authorize the printing of such numbers on the face ofthe Bonds. It is
expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall
be of no significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the County nor the
attorneys approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers
incorrectly printed on the Bonds.

Section 6.04 Legal Opinion.

The approving legal opinion of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., Bond Counsel, may be attached
to or printed on the reverse side of each Bond.

Section 6.05 Statement of Insurance.

A statement relating to municipal bond insurance obtained for the Bonds, if any, may be
printed on or attached to each Bond.

-21-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS, DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01 Sale of Bonds, Official Statement.

(a) The Bonds are hereby officially sold and awarded to and shall be delivered to the
Underwriters at the price and on the terms specified in the Purchase Contract. The form, terms
and provisions of the Purchase Contract are hereby approved and the County Judge is hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Purchase Contract. It is hereby officially
found, determined and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably
obtainable. The Bonds shall be initially registered in the name of the Representative or its
designee.

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds and
any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, and the final Official Statement (the “Official
Statement”) presented to and considered at this meeting, are hereby in all respects approved and
adopted and the Official Statement is hereby deemed final as of its date within the meaning and
for the purposes ofparagraph (b)(1) of Rule l5c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. The County agrees to deliver appropriate numbers of executed copies thereof to the
Representative. The Official Statement as thus approved, executed and delivered, with such
appropriate variations as shall be approved by the County Judge, may be used by the
Underwriters in the public offering and sale thereof The County Clerk is hereby authorized and
directed to include and maintain a copy of the Official Statement and any addenda, supplement
or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this meeting. The use and
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement in the preliminary public offering of the Bonds
by the Underwriters are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

(c) All officers of the County are authorized to execute such documents, certificates
and receipts, and to make such elections with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, as
they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in accordance with
the terms of and to carry out the terms and purposes of this Order. The County Judge is hereby
authorized to approve the payment of all costs of issuance relating to the Bonds, and, to the
extent practicable, such costs of issuance shall be payable by wire transfer from the proceeds of
the Bonds on the Closing Date upon the submission of invoices therefor to the County Treasurer.

(d) Bond Counsel is hereby authorized to make nonsubstantive changes to the terms
of this Order if necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes hereof or in connection with the
approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the Attorney General of Texas.

Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Bonds.

(a) The County Judge is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond and all
necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, and
approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by, the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

-22-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds
shall be made to the Underwriters under and subject to the general supervision and direction of
the County Judge, against receipt by the County of all amounts due to the County under the
terms of sale.

Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds; Transfer of Funds.

(a) All amounts received on the Closing Date as accrued interest on the Bonds from
the Bond Date to the Closing Date shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(b) Amounts received as premium on the Bonds shall be applied to pay costs of
issuance of the Bonds and, after such application, any remaining amount of premium shall be
deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(c) The remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited to a special account of
the County and shall be used solely for the purposes for which the Bonds are being issued, as
herein provided. To the extent any of such sum is not used for such purposes, such excess shall
be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01 Investments.

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Order, at the option of the
County, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law as in
effect on the date of the investment.

(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is
so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the
proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from
the Interest and Sinking Fund.

Section 8.02 Investment Income.

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund
shall be credited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(b) Interest and income derived from the investment of funds deposited pursuant to
Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the fund or account where deposited until the
accomplishment of the purposes for which the Bonds are issued; thereafter, to the extent such
interest and income are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund.

-23-
363 143v. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01 Payment of the Bonds.

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such principal of and interest on the Bonds as
will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date, maturity date or date of prior
redemption. Such transfer of funds shall be made in such manner as will cause immediately
available funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar not later than the close of
business on the Business Day next preceding the date ofpayment for the Bonds.

Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants.

(a) The County will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants,
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Order and in each Bond; the County
will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each Bond on the dates and
at the places and in the manner prescribed in such Bond; and the County will, at the times and in
the manner prescribed by this Order, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts of money
specified by this Order.

(b) The County is duly authorized under the laws of the State of ‘I’exas to issue the
Bonds; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and
effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and
enforceable obligations of the County in accordance with their terms.

ARTICLE X

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION

Section 10.01 General Tax Covenants.

The County intends that the interest on the Bonds will be excludable from gross income
for purposes of federal income taxation pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the
Code and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Regulations”). The County
covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any action within its
control, that if taken or omitted, respectively, would (i) cause the interest on the Bonds to be
includable in the gross income, as defmed in section 61 of the Code, of the holders thereof for
purposes of federal income taxation or (ii) result in the violation or failure to satisfy any
provisions of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and any Regulations that are
applicable to the Bonds. In particular, the County covenants and agrees to comply with each
requirement of this Article X, provided, however, that the County will not be required to comply
with any particular requirement of this Article X if the County has received an opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel (“Counsel’s Opinion”) that (i) such noncompliance will not
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on
the Bonds or (ii) that compliance with some other requirement set forth in this Article X will

-24-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



satisfy the applicable requirements of the Code, in which case compliance with such other
requirement specified in such Counsel’s Opinion shall constitute compliance with the
corresponding requirement specified in this Article X.

Section 10.02 No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.

The County covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds,
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate the use of
property financed, directly or indirectly, with such proceeds, and take such other and further
action as may be required so that the bonds will not be “private activity bonds” within the
meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations. Moreover, the County will certify,
through an authorized officer, employee or agent, that, based upon all facts and estimates known
or reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Bonds are delivered, the proceeds of the
Bonds will not be used in a manner that would cause the Bonds to be “private activity bonds”
within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.03 No Federal Guaranty.

The County covenants and agrees that it has not taken and will not take any action, and
has not knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action within its control, that,
if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the
meaning of section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations, except as permitted by section
149(b)(3) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.04 Bonds are not Hedge Bonds.

The County covenants and agrees that it has not taken and will not take any action, and
has not knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action, within its control,
that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the Bonds to be “hedge bonds” within the
meaning of section 149(g) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.05 No-Arbitrage Covenant.

The County covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate investments
of proceeds of the Bonds, and take such other and further action as may be required so that the
Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code and the
Regulations. Moreover, the County will certify, through an authorized officer, employee or
agent, that, based upon all facts and estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence
on the date the Bonds are delivered, the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used in a manner that
would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code
and the Regulations.

Section 10.06 Arbitrage Rebate.

If the County does not qualify for an exception to the requirements of section 148(1) of
the Code, the County will take all necessary steps to comply with the requirement that certain
amounts earned by the County on the investment of the “gross proceeds” of the Bonds (within

-25-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



the meaning of section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code) be rebated to the federal government.
Specifically, the County will (i) maintain records regarding the investment of the gross proceeds
of the Bonds as may be required to calculate the amount earned on the investment of the gross
proceeds of the Bonds separately from records of amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts
of the County allocable to other bond issue of the County or moneys which do not represent
gross proceeds of any bonds of the County, (ii) calculate at such times as are required by the
Regulations, the amount earned from the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds which is
required to be rebated to the federal government, and (iii) pay, not less often than every fifth
anniversary date of the delivery of the Bonds or on such other dates as may be permitted under
the Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated to the federal government. Further, the
County will not indirectly pay any amount otherwise payable to the federal government pursuant
to the foregoing requirements to any person other than the federal government by entering into
any investment arrangement with respect to the gross proceeds of the Bonds that might result in a
reduction in the amount required to be paid to the federal government because such arrangement
results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the arrangement had been at
arm’s length and had the yield on the issue not been relevant to either party.

Section 10.07 Information Reporting.

The County covenants and agrees to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the
Treasury, not later than the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar
quarter in which the Bonds are issued, an information statement concerning the Bonds, all under
and in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.08 Record Retention.

The County will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the use and
expenditure of the proceeds of the Bonds until six years after the last Bond is redeemed, or such
shorter period as authorized by subsequent guidance issued by the Department of Treasury, if
applicable. All records will be kept in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout
the retention period. For this purpose, it is acceptable that such records are kept either as
hardcopy books and records or in an electronic storage and retrieval system, provided that such
electronic system includes reasonable controls and quality assurance programs that assure the
ability of the County to retrieve and reproduce such books and records in the event of an
examination of the Bonds by the Internal Revenue Service.

Section 10.09 Registered Bonds.

The Bonds will be issued in registered form.

Section 10.10 Continuing Obligation.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the County’s obligations under the
covenants and provisions of this Article X shall survive the defeasance and discharge of the
Bonds.

-26-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE XI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01 Events of Default.

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Order is hereby
declared to be an Event of Default:

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the
Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant,
agreement or obligation of the County, which default materially and adversely affects the
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to, their prospect or ability to be repaid in
accordance with this Order, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) days
after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the County.

Section 11.02 Remedies for Default.

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, any Owner or an authorized
representative thereof including but not limited to, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed
against the County for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under
this Order, by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law, in any
court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief permitted by law, including the specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of
such remedies.

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the
equal benefit of all Owners ofBonds then outstanding.

Section 11.03 Remedies Not Exclusive.

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the right to
accelerate the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall not be available as a remedy under this Order.

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

-27-
363143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE XII

DISCHARGE

Section 12.01 Discharge.

The Bonds may be refunded, discharged or defeased in any manner permitted by
applicable law.

ARTICLE XIII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 13.01 Annual Reports.

(a) The County shall provide annually to the MSRB within six (6) months after the
end of each Fiscal Year, financial information and operating data with respect to the County of
the general type included in the fmal Official Statement, being the information described in
Exhibit A hereto. Any fmancial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles described in Exhibit A hereto, and (ii) audited, if the County
commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during
which they must be provided. If the audit of such fmancial statements is not complete within
such period, then the County shall provide notice that audited financial statements are not
available and shall provide unaudited financial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year to the
MSRB. The County shall provide such audited financial statements as required to the MSRB
when and if audited financial statements become available.

(b) If the County changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and
of the date of the new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the County otherwise
would be required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific
reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the
SEC.

Section 13.02 Material Event Notices.

(a) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any of the following
events with respect to the Bonds, if such event is material within the meaning of the federal
securities laws:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(ii) nonpayment related defaults;

-28-
363 143v.1 TRA72O!13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting fmancial
difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax exempt status of the
Bonds;

(vii) modifications to rights of Owners;

(viii) bond calls;

(ix) defeasances;

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds;
and

(xi) rating changes.

(b) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the
County to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 1 3.01 of
this Order by the time required by such Section.

Section 13.03 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.

(a) The County shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the County remains an “obligated person” with
respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the County in any event will
give notice of any bond calls and any defeasances that cause the County to be no longer an
“obligated person”.

(b) The provisions ofthis Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The County undertakes
to provide only the fmancial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the
County’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information
provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein. The
County does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE COUNTY BE LIABLE TO THE
OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM

-29-
363 143v. 1 TRA72O!13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ANY BREACH BY THE COUNTY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON
ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

(c) No default by the County in observing or performing its obligations under this
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Order for purposes of any other
provisions of this Order.

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise
limit the duties of the County under federal and state securities laws.

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the County from time to time
to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in
law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the County, but only if(i)
the provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase
or sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into
account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as
such changed circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Order that authorizes
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or
individual person that is unaffiliated with the County (such as nationally recognized bond
counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners
and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The provisions of this Article may also be amended from
time to time or repealed by the County if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of
the Rule or a court of fmal jurisdiction determines that such provisions are invalid, but only if
and to the extent that reservation of the County’s right to do so would not prevent underwriters
of the initial public offering of the Bonds from lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in such
offering. If the County so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall include with any
amended fmancial information or operating data next provided in accordance with Section 13.01
an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any
change in the type of fmancial information or operating data so provided.

PASSED AND APPROVED this May 4, 2010.

COMMISSIONERS COURT
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

-30-
363 143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is referred to in Article XIII of this Order.

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data

The fmancial information and operating data with respect to the County to be provided
annually in accordance with such Article are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below:

1. The portions of the financial statements of the County appended to the Official
Statement as Appendix C, but for the most recently concluded fiscal year.

2. The quantitative fmancial information and operating data with respect to the
County of the general type included in the main text of the Official Statement
under the captions “OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY—Financial
Highlights of Travis County (Unaudited),” “CONSOLIDATED DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS,” “COUNTY DEBT—Bonded Indebtedness,” “COUNTY
DEBT—Debt Ratios,” “TAX DATA” and “ANALYSIS OF TAX DATA—
Historical Analysis ofTax Base.”

Accounting Principles

The accounting principles referred to in such Article are the accounting principles
described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in Paragraph i above, as such
principles may be changed from time to time to comply with State law.

A-i
363 143v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for:

I. A.

Rodney Rhoades, Exec~ ~ tanager, Planning & Budget (49106)

CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION ON AN ORDER
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION,
SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX), IN THE AGGREGATE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $108,250,000; LEVYING A TAX
IN PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING A PURCHASE
CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT;
AND ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING
THERETO

Approved by: _________________________________________

Signature of Commissioner(s) or County Judge

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this
Agenda Request and backup to them:

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:

Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)
Additional funding for any department or for any purpose
Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget
Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)
A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)
Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 29



Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: This Agenda Request complete with backup
memorandum and exhibits should be submitted to the County Judge’s Office no later
than 5:00 p.m. on Monday for the next week’s meeting. Late or incomplete requests
may be deferred to the next subsequent meeting

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER OF THE

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

authorizing

$108,250,000
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION
SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX)

Adopted: May 4, 2010

US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01 Definitions 2
Section 1.02 Findings 4
Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings 4
Section 1.04 Interpretation 4

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01 Tax Levy 4
Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund 5

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE
CERTIFICATES

Section 3.01 Authorization 5
Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest 6
Section 3.03 Medium, Method, and Place ofPayment 6
Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Certificates 7
Section 3.05 Ownership 8
Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer, and Exchange 9
Section 3.07 Cancellation 9
Section 3.08 Temporaiy Certificates 9
Section 3.09 Replacement Certificates 10
Section 3.10 Book-Entry Only System 11
Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only

System 12
Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co 12

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01 Redemption Before Maturity 12
Section 4.02 Optional Redemption 12
Section 4.03 Partial Redemption 13
Section 4.04 Notice of Redemption to Owners 13

US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Page

Section 4.05 Payment Upon Redemption 14
Section 4.06 Effect of Redemption 14

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01 Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar 15
Section 5.02 Qualifications 15
Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar 15
Section 5.04 Termination 15
Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners 15
Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions 15
Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor 16

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES

Section 6.01 Form Generally 16
Section 6.02 Form of the Certificates 16
Section 6.03 CUSIP Registration 22
Section 6.04 Legal Opinion 22
Section 6.05 Statement of Insurance 22

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01 Sale of Certificates; Official Statement 23
Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Certificates 23
Section 7.03 Deposit ofProceeds 24

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01 Investments 24
Section 8.02 Investment Income 24

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01 Payment of the Certificates 25
Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants 25

—11—
US 363100v.I

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Page

ARTICLE X

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION

Section 10.01 General Tax Covenants 25
Section 10.02 No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing 26
Section 10.03 No Federal Guaranty 26
Section 10.04 Certificates Are Not Hedge Bonds 26
Section 10.05 No-Arbitrage Covenant 26
Section 10.06 Arbitrage Rebate 26
Section 10.07 Information Reporting 27
Section 10.08 Record Retention 27
Section 10.09 Registered Form 27
Section 10.10 Continuing Obligation 27

ARTICLE XI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01 Events of Default 28
Section 11.02 Remedies for Default 28
Section 11.03 Remedies Not Exclusive 28

ARTICLE XII

DISCHARGE

Section 12.01 Discharge 29

ARTICLE XIII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 13.01 Annual Reports 29
Section 13.02 Material Event Notices 29
Section 13.03 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments 30

EXHIBIT A — Description ofAnnual Disclosure of Financial Information A-i

—111—
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2010
(LIMITED TAX), IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF
$108,250,000; LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING A
PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND
ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly
Article VIII, Section 9, of the Constitution of the State of Texas and Subchapter C of Chapter
271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, Travis County, Texas (the “County”), is
authorized to issue certificates of obligation for the purposes specified in this Order and for the
payment of all or a portion of the contractual obligations for professional services, including that
of engineers, attorneys, and fmancial advisors in connection therewith, and to sell the same for
cash as herein provided; and

WHEREAS, the County is authorized to provide that such certificates of obligation will
be payable from and secured by the levy of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax against all
taxable property within the County, in combination with all or a part of certain surplus revenues
of the County’s solid waste disposal system remaining after payment of any obligations of the
County payable in whole or in part from a lien or pledge of such revenues; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of the County has found and determined that it is
necessary and in the best interests of the County and its citizens that it issue the certificates of
obligation authorized by this Order; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an order heretofore passed by this governing body, notice of the
intention to issue certificates of obligation of the County payable as provided in this Order was
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the County in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, with such certificates ofobligation to be issued in the amount provided herein for
the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the purposes set forth in
Section 3.01 hereof; and

WHEREAS, no petition of any kind has been filed with any official of the County
protesting the issuance of such certificates of obligation; and

WHEREAS, the County is now authorized and empowered to proceed with the issuance
of such certificates of obligation and to sell the same for cash; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Order is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED BY THE COMMISSIONERS
COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS:

—1—
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01 Definitions.

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in
this Order, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Business Day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, or day
on which banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are authorized by law or executive
order to close.

“Certificate” means any of the Certificates.

“Certificate Date” means the date designated as the initial date of the Certificates by
Section 3.02(a) of this Order.

“Certificates” means the County’s certificates of obligation authorized to be issued by
Section 3.01 of this Order and designated as “Travis County, Texas, Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2010 (Limited Tax).”

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Certificates.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Commissioners Court” means the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas,
together with any successor to the duties and functions thereof

“County” means Travis County, Texas.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any
successor securities depository.

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 11.01 of this Order.

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the
Commissioners Court.

“Initial Certificate” means the Initial Certificate authorized by Section 3.04 of this Order.

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by
Section 2.02 of this Order.

-2-
US 363100v.I

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates on which interest on the Certificates is
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity, such dates being September 1 and
March 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2011.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Certificate or Certificates, as
shown in the Register.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas,
or any successor thereto as provided in this Order.

“Project” means the purposes for which the Certificates are issued as set forth in
Section 3.01.

“Purchase Contract” means the purchase contract between the County and the
Underwriters pertaining to the sale of the Certificates.

“Record Date” means the fifteenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment
Date.

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Order.

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the
County and DTC.

“Representative” means the entity designated as the representative of the Underwriters in
the Purchase Contract.

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b)
of this Order.

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b) of
this Order.

“Surplus Revenues” means the revenues of the County’s solid waste disposal system in
an amount not to exceed $1,000 remaining after payment of all operation and maintenance
expenses thereof and all debt service, reserve, and other requirements with respect to all of the
County’s revenue bonds and other obligations, now outstanding or hereafter issued, that are
payable from all or any part of such revenues.

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
payment ofprincipal of or interest on the Certificates as the same come due and payable.

-3-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



“Underwriters” means the entities named in the Purchase Contract as the underwriters of
the Certificates.

Section 1.02 Findings.

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble
to this Order are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions hereof

Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Order have
been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and
shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never be
considered or given any effect in construing this Order or any provision hereof or in ascertaining
intent, if any question of intent should arise.

Section 1.04 Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural
number and vice versa.

(b) This Order and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to
effectuate the purposes set forth herein.

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01 Tax Levy.

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the
State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Certificates or any interest thereon is outstanding and
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the
County, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service
requirements of the Certificates, being (i) the interest on the Certificates, and (ii) a sinking fund
for their redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per annum (whichever
amount is the greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and
costs of collection.

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the County most rcccntly approvcd in accordance with
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

-4--
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and
conmiitted irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates when
and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

(d) Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 364, Texas Health and Safety Code, and
Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, both as amended, the County
hereby covenants and agrees that the Surplus Revenues are hereby irrevocably pledged equally
and ratably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates, as the same
become due to the extent the taxes mentioned above shall ever be insufficient or unavailable for
such purpose. The County reserves the right to issue bonds or other obligations for any lawful
purpose at any time, in one or more installments that are payable, in whole or in part, from the
revenues of the County’s solid waste disposal system. In which event, the payment of debt
service, reserve and other requirements with respect to such revenue bonds and other obligations
shall be deducted from revenues in determining Surplus Revenues.

(e) If the liens and provisions of this Order shall be released in a manner permitted by
Article XII hereof; then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately
reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking Fund may be
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.

Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund.

(a) The County hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the
“Travis County, Texas, Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010 (Limited Tax), Interest and
Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official
depository bank of the County separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the
County.

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Order to be deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the
Certificates when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES

Section 3.01 Authorization.

The County’s certificates of obligation to be designated “Travis County, Texas,
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010 (Limited Tax)” (the “Certificates”), are hereby authorized
to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas,
specifically §~27l.041-.063, Local Government Code, V.T.C.A., as amended. The Certificates
shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $108,250,000 for the purpose of evidencing
the indebtedness of the County to pay the costs or a portion of the costs for (a) (i) acquiring and
installing computer equipment, including acquiring and installing a financial services computer
system; (ii) acquiring, improving and renovating land and a building at 700 Lavaca Street,

-5-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



including the associated parking structure, for administrative and justice purposes;
(iii) improving and renovating existing County administrative and justice facilities;
(iv) acquiring, constructing and improving heating, air conditioning and ventilation systems in
County buildings; (v) improving and renovating the County Sheriff’s office; (vi) constructing
and improving County roads, including bridge construction, utility relocation, and safety and
signalization improvements, and acquiring right-of-way in connection therewith; (vii) acquiring
County vehicles, including emergency services vehicles; (viii) acquiring a helicopter for
emergency services purposes; (ix) acquiring equipment for County jail and administrative
facilities; (x) acquiring land and a building at 5325 Airport Blvd. for County administrative
purposes; (xi) acquiring land, including any buildings or structures thereon, if any, in downtown
Austin for justice and administration purposes; and (xii) paying professional and engineering
fees related to the above-described purposes ((i) through (xi), collectively, the “Project”); and (b)
the costs of issuance with respect to such certificates of obligation, including but not limited to
fees for professional services and incidental expenses related to such purposes.

Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.

(a) The Certificates shall be dated May 1, 2010. The Certificates shall be in fully
registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof
and shall be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Certificate, which shall be
numbered T-1.

(b) The Certificates shall mature on March 1 in the years and in the principal amounts
set forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest
Year Amount Rate

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate respectively until its maturity
from the later of the Certificate Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest
has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for each respective maturity specified in the
schedule contained in subsection (b) above. Such interest shall be payable on each Interest
Payment Date. Interest on the Certificates shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months.

Section 3.03 Medium, Method, and Place ofPayment.

(a) The principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be paid in lawful money of
the United States of America.

-6-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) Interest on the Certificates shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the
Register at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, that in the event of
nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new
record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the
Paying Agent/Registrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received
from the County. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the
past due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be at least 15 days after the Special
Record Date) shall be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United
States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Certificate appearing
in the Register at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of
mailing of such notice.

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment
Date, and sent United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to
each Owner, at the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other customary
banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; provided,
however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement. At
the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Certificates, interest may
be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(d) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the
maturity date thereof upon presentation and surrender of such Certificate at the office of the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates is not
a Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day, and
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date
payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on
which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

(f) Unclaimed Payments of amounts due hereunder shall be segregated in a special
account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the
Owners of the Certificates to which such Unclaimed Payments pertain. Subject to Title 6 of the
Texas Property Code, any Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled
thereto for three years after the applicable payment date shall be applied to the next payment or
payments on the Certificates thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains
three years after the retirement of all outstanding Certificates, such money shall be paid to the
County to be used for any lawful purpose. Thereafter, neither the County, the Paying
Agent/Registrar nor any other person shall be liable or responsible to any Owners of such
Certificates for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or on account of any such
Certificates, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.

Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Certificates.

(a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the County by the County Judge,
countersigned by the County Clerk, and registered by the County Treasurer, by their manual or

-7-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Commissioners Court shall be impressed or
placed in facsimile thereon. Such facsimile signatures on the Certificates shall have the same
effect as if each of the Certificates had been signed manually and in person by each of said
officers, and such facsimile seal on the Certificates shall have the same effect as if the official
seal of the Commissioners Court had been manually impressed upon each of the Certificates.

(b) In the event that any officer of the County whose manual or facsimile signature
appears on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Certificates
or before the delivery thereof; such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and
sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office.

(c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any
purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Order unless and until there appears
thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying
Agent/Registrar. It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the
Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Certificates.
In lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial
Certificate delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which
certificate shall be evidence that the Certificate has been duly approved by the Attorney General
of the State of Texas, that it is a valid and binding obligation of the County, and that it has been
registered by the Comptroller ofPublic Accounts of the State ofTexas.

(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Certificate representing the entire principal
amount of all Certificates, payable in stated installments to the Representative or its designee,
executed by the County Judge and County Clerk, approved by the Attorney General, and
registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be delivered to the
Representative or its designee. Upon payment for the Initial Certificate, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Certificate and deliver to DTC on behalf of the
Representative a single typewritten Certificate for each maturity of the Certificates, in the
aggregate principal amount thereof; registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

Section 3.05 Ownership.

(a) The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the
person in whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such Certificate for
the purpose of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof; for the further purpose of
making and receiving payment of the interest thereon, and for all other purposes (except that
interest will be paid to the person in whose name such Certificate is registered on the Record
Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and
neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to
the contrary.

-8-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and effectual and
shall discharge the liability of the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate
to the extent of the sums paid.

Section 3.06 R~gistration. Transfer, and Exchange.

(a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the County shall cause the Paying
Agent/Registrar to keep at its office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the
registration and transfer of Certificates in accordance with this Order.

(b) The ownership of a Certificate may be transferred only upon the presentation and
surrender of the Certificate at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or
other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. No transfer of any
Certificate shall be effective until entered in the Register.

(c) The Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender
thereof at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or Certificates of the same
maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of
$5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the
Certificates presented for exchange. The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to
authenticate and deliver Certificates exchanged for other Certificates in accordance with this
Section.

(d) Each exchange Certificate delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance
with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the County and shall be
entitled to the benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Certificate or
Certificates in lieu ofwhich such exchange Certificate is delivered.

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration,
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Certificates. The
Paying Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any
tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the
registration, transfer, or exchange of a Certificate.

Section 3.07 Cancellation.

All Certificates paid in accordance with this Order, and all Certificates in lieu of which
exchange Certificates or replacement Certificates are authenticated and delivered in accordance
with this Order, shall be cancelled and proper records shall be made regarding such payment,
exchange, or replacement. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall then return such cancelled
Certificates to the County or may in accordance with law destroy such cancelled Certificates and
periodically furnish the County with certificates of destruction of such Certificates.

Section 3.08 Temporary Certificates.

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Certificate and pending the
preparation of definitive Certificates, the proper officers of the County may execute and, upon

-9-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



the County’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more
temporary Certificates that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed, or otherwise
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Certificates in lieu of
which they are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions,
substitutions, and other variations as the officers of the County executing such temporary
Certificates may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Certificates.

(b) Until exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, such Certificates in temporary
form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Order.

(c) The County, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the
Paying Agent/Registrar the Certificates in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and
surrender of the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the
Paying Agent/Registrar cancel the Certificates in temporary form and shall authenticate and
deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and series, in
defmitive form, in the authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as
the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form surrendered. Such exchange shall be made
without the making of any charge therefor to any Owner.

Section 3.09 Replacement Certificates.

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated
Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a
replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not
contemporaneously outstanding. The County or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the
Owner of such Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge
that is authorized to be imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected
therewith.

(b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken,
the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the
absence of notice or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser,
shall authenticate and deliver a replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount,
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first complies
with the following requirements:

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Certificate;

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to save it and the County harmless;

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the County and the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

-10-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(c) 1f after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the
original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for
payment such original Certificate, the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to
recover such replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was delivered or any person
taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security
or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the
County or the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith.

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully
taken Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, may pay such Certificate if it has
become due and payable or may pay such Certificate when it becomes due and payable.

(e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall
constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the County and shall be entitled to the
benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu of
which such replacement Certificate is delivered.

Section 3.10 Book-Entry Only System.

(a) The defmitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate
fully registered Certificate for each of the maturities thereof Upon initial issuance of the
Certificates, the ownership of such Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee of DTC, and except as provided in Section 3.11 hereof all outstanding Certificates shall
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

(b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC, the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to
any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an
interest in the Certificates. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the County and
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the
accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any
ownership interest in the Certificates, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other
person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the
Certificates, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an
Owner, as shown in the Register, of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the
Certificates. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, the County and
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each
Certificate is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose
of payment of principal of and interest on the Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices with
respect to such Certificate and other matters with respect to such Certificate, for the purpose of
registering transfer with respect to such Certificate, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The
Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the Certificates only to or upon
the order of the respective Owners, as shown in the Register, as provided in this Order, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and
effective to fully satisfy and discharge the County’s obligations with respect to payment of
principal of and interest on the Certificates to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person

—11—
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall receive a Certificate evidencing the
obligation of the County to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Order. Upon
delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this
Order shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the County, and
applicable to the County’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Certificates.

Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-O~y
System.

In the event that the County determines that it is in the best interest of the County and the
beneficial owners of the Certificates that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates, or in the
event DTC discontinues the services described herein, the County shall (i) appoint a successor
securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such
successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor
securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of
certificated Certificates and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate
registered Certificates to DTC Participants having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts.
In such event, the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor
securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or
exchanging Certificates shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Order.

Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, so long as the
Certificates are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with
respect to principal of and interest on such Certificates, and all notices with respect to such
Certificates, shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the
Representations Letter of the County to DTC.

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01 Redemption Before Maturity.

The Certificates shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as
provided in this Article IV.

Section 4.02 Qptional Redemption.

(a) The County reserves the option to redeem Certificates maturing on and after
March 1, 2021 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on

-12-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



March 1, 2020 or on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the
Certificates called for redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

(b) If less than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional
redemption, the County shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Certificates, or portions
thereof; within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption.

(c) The County, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Certificates to be redeemed.

Section 4.03 Partial Redemption.

(a) A portion of a single Certificate of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof If
such a Certificate is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000
portion of the Certificate as though it were a single Certificate for purposes of selection for
redemption.

(b) Upon surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, the Paying
Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Order, shall authenticate and deliver an
exchange Certificate or Certificates in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed
portion of the Certificate so surrendered, such exchange being without charge.

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the County in writing of the
principal amount to be redeemed of any Certificate as to which only a portion thereof is to be
redeemed.

Section 4.04 Notice of Redemption to Owners.

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Certificates by
sending notice by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Certificate (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at
the address shown on the Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the
date of mailing such notice.

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at
which the Certificates are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Certificates
outstanding are to be redeemed, an identification of the Certificates or portions thereof to be
redeemed.

(c) The County reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem
Certificates under Section 4.02 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such
notice may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or
authorized securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with
the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the
redemption date or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to

-13-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



the scheduled redemption date if the County delivers a certificate of the County to the Paying
Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and
such notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are
not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt
notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any
Certificates subject to conditional redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain
Outstanding, and the rescission shall not constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a
conditional redemption, the failure of the County to make moneys and/or authorized securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of
Default.

(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

Section 4.05 Payment Upon Redemption.

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the County shall deposit with the Paying
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Certificates to be redeemed on such
date by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying
Agent/Registrar from the County and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the
principal of and accrued interest on the Certificates being redeemed.

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate called for redemption to the
Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall pay the principal of and accrued interest on such Certificate to the date of redemption from
the money set aside for such purpose.

Section 4.06 Effect ofRedemption.

(a) Notice ofredemption having been given as provided in Section 4.04 of this Order,
and subject, in the case of an optional redemption under Section 4.02, to any conditions or rights
reserved by the County under Section 4.04(c), the Certificates or portions thereof called for
redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the
County fails to make provision for the payment of the principal thereof or accrued interest
thereon, such Certificates or portions thereof shall cease to bear interest from and after the date
fixed for redemption, whether or not such Certificates are presented and sulTendered for payment
on such date.

If the County shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption
date, then any Certificate or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear interest
at the rate stated on the Certificate until due provision is made for the payment of same by the
County.

-14-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01 Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.

The County is hereby declared to be the issuer-registrar with respect to the Certificates as
defined and provided for in Section 1203.021, Texas Government Code, and the County
Treasurer is hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates on behalf
of the County.

Section 5.02 Qualifications.

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized
under the laws of the State of Texas, or any other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to
serve as and perform the duties and services ofpaying agent and registrar for the Certificates.

Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.

(a) At all times while any of the Certificates are outstanding, the County will
maintain a Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Order.

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the
County will promptly appoint a replacement.

Section 5.04 Termination.

The County, upon not less than sixty (60) days notice, reserves the right to terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to
be terminated written notice of such termination.

Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners.

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the County
will cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class,
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying Agent/Registrar is
deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Order and that it will perform the duties and
functions of Paying Agent/Registrar prescribed herein.

-15-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor.

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent
books and records relating to the Certificates to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar.

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES

Section 6.01 Form Generally.

(a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the
Assignment form to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be substantially in the form set
forth in this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other
variations as are permitted or required by this Order, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or
other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Con~mittee on
Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such
legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as,
consistently herewith, may be determined by the County or by the officers executing such
Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof

(b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse side
thereof with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates.

(c) The defmitive Certificates, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed,
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or
produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such
Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof

(d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas
may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

Section 6.02 Form of the Certificates.

The form of the Certificates, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Certificates, shall be substantially
as follows:

-16-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(a) Form of Certificate.

REGISTERED REGISTERED

No. $

United States of America
State of Texas

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION

SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX)

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: CERTIFICATE DATE: CUSIP NUMBER:
% March 1, ____ May 1, 2010

Travis County, Texas (the “County”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of

____________DOLLARS

and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later of the Certificate Date specified
above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for
until payment of such principal amount has been paid or provided for, at the per annum rate of
interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, such
interest to be paid semiannually on September 1 and March 1 each year, commencing March 1,
2011.

The principal of this Certificate shall be payable without exchange or collection charges
in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this
Certificate at the office in Austin, Texas, of the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas, as
Paying Agent/Registrar, or, with respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the designated
payment/transfer office of such successor. Interest on this Certificate is payable by check dated
as of the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the
registered owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar or by such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear
all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement. At the option of an Owner of at least
$1,000,000 in principal amount of the Certificates, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the
bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar. For the purpose of the
payment of interest on this Certificate, the registered owner shall be the person in whose name
this Certificate is registered at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the
fifteenth day of the month next preceding such interest payment date; provided, however, that in
the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled interest payment date, and for 30 days

-17-
U5 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest
have been received from the County. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled
payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after
the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five Business Days (as hereinafter defmed) prior to
the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each
registered owner of a Certificate appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the
close ofbusiness on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing such notice.

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate shall be a
Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the City of Austin,
Texas, are required or authorized by law or executive order to close, the date for such payment
shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which
banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are required or authorized to close (a “Business
Day”), and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original
date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the
date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

This Certificate is one of a series of fully registered certificates specified in the title
hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $108,250,000 (herein referred to as the
“Certificates”), issued pursuant to a certain order of the County (the “Order”) for the purpose of
paying contractual obligations to be incurred for authorized public buildings, improvements,
facilities and equipment as described in the Order (the “Project”) and to pay the contractual
obligations for professional services of attorneys, fmancial advisors and other professionals in
connection with the Project and the costs of issuance of the Certificates.

As provided in the Order, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this
Certificate is transferable upon surrender of this Certificate for transfer at the office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the
Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Certificates of the same
stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same
aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in
whose name this Certificate is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving
payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this
Certificate is registered on the Record Date) and for all other purposes, whether or not this
Certificate be overdue, and neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected
by notice to the contrary.

The County has reserved the option to redeem the Certificates maturing on or after
March 1, 2021 in whole or in part before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on March 1,
2020 or on any date thercaftcr, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Certificates so
called for redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If less than all of the
Certificates are to be redeemed, the County shall determine the maturity or maturities and the
amounts thereof to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lots the

-18-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Certificates, or portions thereof within such maturity and in such principal amounts, for
redemption.

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the
registered owner of each of the Certificates to be redeemed in whole or in part. Any notice so
mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the registered
owner receives such notice. Notice having been so given and subject, in the case of an optional
redemption, to any rights or conditions reserved by the county in the notice, the Certificates
called for redemption shall become due and payable on the specified redemption date, and
notwithstanding that any Certificate or portion thereof has not been surrendered for payment,
interest on such Certificate or portion thereof shall cease to accrue.

In the Order, the County reserves the right, in the case of an optional redemption, to give
notice of its election or direction to redeem Certificates conditioned upon the occurrence of
subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit
of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the
redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law,
no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice at
any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if the County delivers a certificate of the
County to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the
redemption notice, and such notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or
authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice of
redemption to the affected Owners. Any Certificates subject to conditional redemption and such
redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the rescission of such redemption
shall not constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, the
failure of the County to make moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole
on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of Default.

It is hereby certified and recited that the issuance of this Certificate and the series of
which it is a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions, and things to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of the Certificates have been properly done and performed and
have happened in regular and due time, form, and manner as required by law; that ad valorem
taxes upon all taxable property in the County have been levied for and pledged to the payment of
the debt service requirements of the Certificates within the limit prescribed by law; that, in
addition to said taxes, further provisions have been made for the payment of the debt service
requirements of the Certificates by pledging to such purpose Surplus Revenues, as defined in the
Order, derived by the County from the operation of the solid waste disposal system in an amount
limited to $1,000; that when so collected, such taxes and Surplus Revenues shall be appropriated
to such purposes; and that the total indebtedness of the County, including the Certificates, does
not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

-19-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



In witness whereof; the County has caused this Certificate to be executed by the manual
or facsimile signature of the County Judge, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature
of the County Clerk, and registered by the manual or facsimile signature of the County
Treasurer, and the official seal of the Commissioners Court of the County has been duly
impressed or placed in facsimile on this Certificate.

County Judge

County Clerk

REGI STERED:

County Treasurer

[SEAL]

(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.

The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive
Certificates if such certificate on the Initial Certificate is fully executed.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO.
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Certificate has been examined by him as
required by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws
of the State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of Travis County, Texas, and
that this Certificate has this day been registered by me.

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _______________

Comptroller of Public Accounts
[SEAL] of the State of Texas

-20-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.

The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial
Certificate if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Certificate of this series
of Certificates was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and that this is one of the Certificates
referred to in the within-mentioned Order.

COUNTY TREASURER OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

Dated: _______________ By:_____________________________________________
Authorized Signatory

(d) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

(print or typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee)
(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________) the within Certificate and all rights
hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints _______________ attorney to transfer
the within Certificate on the books kept for registration hereof with full power of substitution in
the premises.

Dated: _____________________________________ ____________________________________________

NOTICE: The signature on this Assignment
must correspond with the name of the
registered owner as it appears on the face of
the within Certificate in every particular and
must be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to
the Paying Agent/ Registrar.

Signature Guaranteed By:

Authorized Signatory

-21-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(e) The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d)
of this Section, except for the following alterations:

(i) immediately under the name of the Certificate, the headings “INTEREST
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown
Below” and the reference to “CUSIP NUMBER” shall be deleted;

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Certificate, the words “on the Maturity Date
specified above, the sum of_____ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following will be
inserted: “on March 1 in each of the years, in the principal installments, and bearing
interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest
Years Installments Rates”

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 3.02 of this Order)

(iii) the Initial Certificate shall be numbered T- 1.

Section 6.03 CUSIP Registration.

The County may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Service Bureau
Division of Standard & Poor’s Corporation, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, New
York, New York, and may authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Certificates.
It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the
Certificates shall be of no significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the
County nor the attorneys approving said Certificates as to legality are to be held responsible for
CUSIP numbers incorrectly printed on the Certificates.

Section 6.04 Legal Opinion.

The approving legal opinion of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., Bond Counsel, may be attached
to or printed on the reverse side of each Certificate.

Section 6.05 Statement of Insurance.

A statement relating to municipal bond insurance obtained for the Certificates, if any,
may be printed on or attached to each Certificate.

-22-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01 Sale of Certificates; Official Statement.

(a) The Certificates are hereby officially sold and awarded to and shall be delivered
to the Underwriters at the price and on the terms specified in the Purchase Contract. The form,
terms and provisions of the Purchase Contract are hereby approved and the County Judge is
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Purchase Contract. It is hereby
officially found, determined and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous
reasonably obtainable. The Certificates shall initially be registered in the name of the
Representative, or its designee.

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement for the Certificates
and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto and the final official statement (the “Official
Statement”) presented to and considered at this meeting, are hereby in all respects approved and
adopted, and the Official Statement is hereby deemed fmal as of its date within the meaning and
for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of the Rule. The County agrees to deliver appropriate
numbers of executed copies thereof to the Representative. The Official Statement as thus
approved and delivered, with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the County
Judge and the Representative, may be used by the Underwriters in the public offering and sale
thereof The County Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to include and maintain a copy of
the Official Statement and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among
the permanent records of this meeting. The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official
Statement in the preliminary public offering of the Certificates by the Underwriters are hereby
ratified, approved and confirmed.

(c) All officers of the County are authorized to execute such documents, certificates
and receipts, and to make such elections with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Certificates,
as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Certificates in
accordance with the terms of and to carry out the terms and purposes of this Order. The County
Judge is hereby authorized to approve the payment of all costs of issuance relating to the
Certificates, and, to the extent practicable, such costs of issuance shall be payable by wire
transfer from the proceeds of the Certificates on the Closing Date upon the submission of
invoices therefor to the County Treasurer.

(d) Bond Counsel is hereby authorized to make nonsubstantive changes to the terms
of this Order if necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes hereof or in connection with the
approval of the issuance of the Certificates by the Attorney General of Texas.

Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Certificates.

(a) The County Judge is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Certificate
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination,
and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of

-23-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by,
the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the
Certificates shall be made to the Underwriters under and subject to the general supervision and
direction of the County Judge, against receipt by the County of all amounts due to the County
under the terms of sale.

Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds.

(a) All amounts received on the Closing Date as accrued interest on the Certificates
from the Certificate Date to the Closing Date shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(b) Amounts received as premium on the Certificates shall be applied to pay costs of
issuance of the Certificates and, after such application, the remaining balance of such premium
shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(c) The remaining proceeds received on the Closing Date shall be deposited to a
special account of the County, such moneys to be dedicated and used solely for the purposes for
which the Certificates are being issued as herein provided. Any amounts remaining following
completion of the Project shall be transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01 Investments.

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Order and any of the
funds to be deposited pursuant to Section 7.03(b) hereof at the option of the County, may be
invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law as in effect on the
date of the investment.

(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is
so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the
proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from
the Interest and Sinking Fund.

Section 8.02 Investment Income.

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund
shall be credited to such fund.

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant
to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or
construction of the Project is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income are
present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

-24-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01 Payment of the Certificates.

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Certificates and while any of the
Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, out of the Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such principal of
and interest on the Certificates as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date
or maturity date. Such transfer of funds shall be made in such manner as will cause immediately
available funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar not later than the close of
business on the Business Day next preceding the date of payment for the Certificates.

Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants.

(a) The County will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants,
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Order and in each Certificate; the
County will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each Certificate on
the dates and at the places and in the manner prescribed in such Certificate; and the County will,
at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Order, deposit or cause to be deposited the
amounts of money specified by this Order.

(b) The County is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the
Certificates; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly
and effectively taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be
valid and enforceable obligations of the County in accordance with their terms.

ARTICLE X

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION

Section 10.01 General Tax Covenants.

The County intends that the interest on the Certificates will be excludable from gross
income for purposes of federal income taxation pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of
the Code, and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Regulations”). The
County covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any action within
its control, that if taken or omitted, respectively, would (i) cause the interest on the Certificates to
be includable in the gross income, as defmed in section 61 of the Code, of the holders thereof for
purposes of federal income taxation or (ii) result in the violation or failure to satisfy any
provisions of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and any applicable Regulations that
are applicable to the Certificates. In particular, the County covenants and agrees to comply with
each requirement of this Article X; provided, however, that the County will not be required to
comply with any particular requirement of this Article X if the County has received an opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel (“Counsel’s Opinion”) that (i) such noncompliance will not
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on
the Certificates or (ii) that compliance with some other requirement set forth in this Article X

-25-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



will satisfy the applicable requirements of the Code, in which case compliance with such other
requirement specified in such Counsel’s Opinion shall constitute compliance with the
corresponding requirement specified in this Article X.

Section 10.02 No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.

The County covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the
Certificates, including interest or other investment income derived from Certificate proceeds,
regulate the use of property fmanced, directly or indirectly, with such proceeds, and take such
other and further action as may be required so that the Certificates will not be “private activity
bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations. Moreover, the
County will certify, through an authorized officer, employee or agent, that, based upon all facts
and estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Certificates are
delivered, the proceeds of the Certificates will not be used in a manner that would cause the
Certificates to be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the
Regulations.

Section 10.03 No Federal Guaranty.

The County covenants and agrees that it has not taken and will not take any action, and
has not knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action within its control, that,
if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the Certificates to be “federally guaranteed” within
the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations, except as permitted by section
149(b)(3) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.04 Certificates Are Not Hedge Bonds.

The County covenants and agrees that it has not taken and will not take any action, and
has not knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action, that, if taken or
omitted, respectively, would cause the Certificates to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning of
section 149(g) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.05 No-Arbitrage Covenant.

The County covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the
Certificates including interest or other investment income derived from Certificate proceeds,
regulate investments of proceeds of the Certificates, and take such other and further action as
may be required so that the Certificates will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of
section 148(a) of the Code and the Regulations. Moreover, the County will certify, through an
authorized officer, employee or agent, that, based upon all facts and estimates known or
reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Certificates are delivered, the proceeds of
the Certificates will not be used in a manner that would cause the Certificates to be “arbitrage
bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.06 Arbitrage Rebate.

If the County does not qualify for an exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of
the Code, the County will take all necessary steps to comply with the requirement that certain

-26-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



amounts earned by the County on the investment of the “gross proceeds” of the Certificates
(within the meaning of section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code) be rebated to the federal government.
Specifically, the County will (i) maintain records regarding the investment of the gross proceeds
of the Certificates as may be required to calculate the amount earned on the investment of the
gross proceeds of the Certificates separately from records of amounts on deposit in the funds and
accounts of the County allocable to other bond issues of the County or moneys which do not
represent gross proceeds of any Certificates of the County, (ii) calculate at such times as are
required by the Regulations, the amount earned from the investment of the gross proceeds of the
Certificates which is required to be rebated to the federal government, and (iii) pay, not less often
than every fifth anniversary date of the delivery of the Certificates or on such other dates as may
be permitted under the Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated to the federal government.
Further, the County will not indirectly pay any amount otherwise payable to the federal
government pursuant to the foregoing requirements to any person other than the federal
government by entering into any investment arrangement with respect to the gross proceeds of
the Certificates that might result in a reduction in the amount required to be paid to the federal
government because such arrangement results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have
resulted if the arrangement had been at arm’s length and had the yield on the issue not been
relevant to either party.

Section 10.07 Information Reporting.

The County covenants and agrees to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the
Treasury, not later than the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar
quarter in which the Certificates are issued, an information statement concerning the Certificates,
all under and in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.08 Record Retention.

The County will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the use and
expenditure of the proceeds of the Certificates until six years after the last Certificate is
redeemed, or such shorter period as authorized by subsequent guidance issued by the Department
of Treasury, if applicable. All records will be kept in a manner that ensures their complete
access throughout the retention period. For this purpose, it is acceptable that such records are
kept either as hardcopy books and records or in an electronic storage and retrieval system,
provided that such electronic system includes reasonable controls and quality assurance
programs that assure the ability of the County to retrieve and reproduce such books and records
in the event of an examination of the Certificates by the Internal Revenue Service.

Section 10.09 Registered Form.

The Certificates will be issued in registered form.

Section 10.10 Continuing Obligation.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the County’s obligations under the
covenants and provisions of this Article X shall survive the defeasance and discharge of the
Certificates.

-27-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE XI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01 Events of Default.

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Order is hereby
declared to be an Event of Default:

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the
Certificates when the same becomes due and payable; or

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant,
agreement, or obligation of the County, which default materially and adversely affects the
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in
accordance with this Order, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) days
after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the County.

Section 11.02 Remedies for Default.

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, any Owner or an authorized
representative thereof including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed
against the County for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under
this Order by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any
court of competent jurisdiction for any relief permitted by law, including the specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of
such remedies.

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the
equal benefit of all Owners of Certificates then outstanding.

Section 11.03 Remedies Not Exclusive.

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Certificates or now or hereafter existing at law
or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the right
to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Certificates shall not be available as a remedy under this
Order.

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

-28-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE XII

DISCHARGE

Section 12.01 Discharge.

The Certificates may be defeased, refunded or discharged in any manner permitted by
applicable law.

ARTICLE XIII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 13.01 Annual Reports.

(a) The County shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six (6) months after the
end of each Fiscal Year, financial information and operating data with respect to the County of
the general type included in the fmal Official Statement, being the information described in
Exhibit A hereto. Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles described in Exhibit A hereto, and (ii) audited, if the County
commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during
which they must be provided. If the audit of such fmancial statements is not complete within
such period, then the County shall provide notice that audited fmancial statements are not
available and shall provide unaudited financial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year to each
MSRB. The County shall provide audited fmancial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year to
the MSRB when and if audited financial statements become available.

(b) If the County changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and
of the date of the new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the County otherwise
would be required to provide fmancial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

(c) The fmancial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific
reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to MSRB or filed with the SEC.

Section 13.02 Material Event Notices.

(a) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any of the following
events with respect to the Certificates, if such event is material within the meaning of the federal
securities laws:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(ii) nonpayment related defaults;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

-29-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax exempt status of the
Certificates;

(vii) modifications to rights of Owners;

(viii) redemption calls;

(ix) defeasances;

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Certificates; and

(xi) rating changes.

(b) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the
County to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 13.01 of
this Order by the time required by such Section.

Section 13.03 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.

(a) The County shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the County remains an “obligated person” with
respect to the Certificates within the meaning of the Rule, except that the County in any event
will give notice of any redemption calls and any defeasances that cause the County to be no
longer an “obligated person.”

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The County
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and
notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby
undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete
presentation of the County’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to
update any information provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as
expressly provided herein. The County does not make any representation or warranty
concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any
future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE COU1SITY BE LIABLE TO THE
OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON,
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM
ANY BREACH BY THE COUNTY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON
ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT

-30-
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

(c) No default by the County in observing or performing its obligations under this
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Order for purposes of any other
provisions of this Order.

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise
limit the duties of the County under federal and state securities laws.

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the County from time to time
to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in
law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the County, but only if (i)
the provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase
or sell Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as
well as such changed circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate
principal amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Order that
authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or
(B) an entity or individual person that is unaffihiated with the County (such as nationally
recognized bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the
interests of the Owners and beneficial owners of the Certificates. The provisions of this
Article may also be amended from time to time or repealed by the County if the SEC amends or
repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of fmal jurisdiction determines that such
provisions are invalid, but only if and to the extent that reservation of the County’s right to do so
would not prevent underwriters of the initial public offering of the Certificates from lawfully
purchasing or selling Certificates in such offering. If the County so amends the provisions of
this Article, it shall include with any amended fmancial information or operating data next
provided in accordance with Section 13.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for
the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating
data so provided.

PASSED AND APPROVED this May 4, 2010.

COMMISSIONERS COURT
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

-31-
US363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is referred to in Article XIII of this Order.

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data

The financial information and operating data with respect to the County to be provided
annually in accordance with such Article are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below:

1. The portions of the fmancial statements of the County appended to the Official
Statement as Appendix C, but for the most recently concluded Fiscal Year.

2. The quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the
County of the general type included in the main text of the Official Statement
under the captions “OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY—Financial
Highlights of Travis County (Unaudited),” “CONSOLIDATED DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS,” “COUNTY DEBT—Bonded Indebtedness,” “COUNTY
DEBT—Debt Ratios,” “TAX DATA” and “ANALYSIS OF TAX DATA—
Historical Analysis of Tax Base.”

Accounting Principles

The accounting principles referred to in such Article are the accounting principles
described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in Paragraph 1 above, as such
principles may be changed from time to time to comply with State law.

A-i
US 363100v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for:

CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION ON AN ORDER
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION,
TAXABLE SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX), IN THE
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $14,200,000;
LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING
A PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL
STATEMENT; AND ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS
RELATING THERETO

Approved by:

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this
Agenda Request and backup to them:

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:

Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)
Add itional funding for any department or for any purpose
Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget
Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)
A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)
Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)

Voting Session:

I. A. Request made by:

Rodney Rhoades,

May 4, 2010

Planning & Budget (49106)

Signature of Commissioner(s) or County Judge

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 30



Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: This Agenda Request complete with backup
memorandum and exhibits should be submitted to the County Judge’s Office no later
than 5:00 p.m. on Monday for the next week’s meeting. Late or incomplete requests
may be deferred to the next subsequent meeting

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER OF THE

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

authorizing

$14,200, 000
TRAVIS COTThJTY, TEXAS

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION
TAXABLE SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX)

Adopted: May 4, 2010

US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

P~gc

Section 1.01
Section 1.02
Section 1.03
Section 1.04

Definitions 2
Findings 4
Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings 4
Interpretation 4

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01
Section 2.02

Tax Levy 4
Interest and Sinking Fund 5

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE
CERTIFICATES

Authorization 5
Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest 6
Medium, Method, and Place of Payment 6
Execution and Registration of Certificates 7
Ownership 8
Registration, Transfer, and Exchange 8
Cancellation 9
Temporary Certificates 9
Replacement Certificates 10
Book-Entry Only System 11
Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only
System 11
Payments to Cede & Co 12

ARTICLE IV

NO REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01 No Redemption Before Maturity 12

Section 3.01
Section 3.02
Section 3.03
Section 3.04
Section 3.05
Section 3.06
Section 3.07
Section 3.08
Section 3.09
Section 3.10
Section 3.11

Section 3.12

—1—
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



P~ge

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar 12
Qualifications 12
Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar 12
Termination 13
Notice of Change to Owners 13
Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions 13
Delivery of Records to Successor 13

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES

Form Generally 13
Form of the Certificates 14
CU SIP Registration 19
Legal Opinion 19
Statement of Insurance 19

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Sale of Certificates; Official Statement 20
Control and Delivery of Certificates 20
Deposit ofProceeds 21

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Investments 21
Investment Income 21

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Payment of the Certificates 22
Other Representations and Covenants 22

Section 5.01
Section 5.02
Section 5.03
Section 5.04
Section 5.05
Section 5.06
Section 5.07

Section 6.01
Section 6.02
Section 6.03
Section 6.04
Section 6.05

Section 7.01
Section 7.02
Section 7.03

Section 8.01
Section 8.02

Section 9.01
Section 9.02

—11—
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



~gc

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.01 Events of Default 22
Section 10.02 Remedies for Default 23
Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive 23

ARTICLE XI

DISCHARGE

Section 11.01 Discharge 23

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 12.01 Annual Reports 23
Section 12.02 Material Event Notices 24
Section 12.03 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments 25

EXHIBIT A — Description ofAnnual Disclosure of Financial Information A-i

—111—
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, TAXABLE SERIES
2010 (LIMITED TAX), IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF
$14,200,000; LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING A
PURCHASE CONTRACT; APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND
ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly
Article VIII, Section 9, of the Constitution of the State of Texas and Subchapter C of Chapter
271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, Travis County, Texas (the “County”), is
authorized to issue certificates of obligation for the purposes specified in this Order and for the
payment of all or a portion of the contractual obligations for professional services, including that
of engineers, attorneys, and fmancial advisors in connection therewith, and to sell the same for
cash as herein provided; and

WHEREAS, the County is authorized to provide that such certificates of obligation will
be payable from and secured by the levy of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax against all
taxable property within the County, in combination with all or a part of certain surplus revenues
of the County’s solid waste disposal system remaining after payment of any obligations of the
County payable in whole or in part from a lien or pledge of such revenues; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of the County has found and determined that it is
necessary and in the best interests of the County and its citizens that it issue the certificates of
obligation authorized by this Order; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an order heretofore passed by this governing body, notice of the
intention to issue certificates of obligation of the County payable as provided in this Order was
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the County in accordance with the laws of the
State ofTexas, with such certificates of obligation to be issued in the amount provided herein for
the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the purposes set forth in
Section 3.01 hereof~ and

WHEREAS, no petition of any kind has been filed with any official of the County
protesting the issuance of such certificates ofobligation; and

WHEREAS, the County is now authorized and empowered to proceed with the issuance
of such certificates of obligation and to sell the same for cash; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Order is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED BY THE COMMISSIONERS
COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS:

—1—
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01 Definitions.

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in
this Order, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Business Day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, or day
on which banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are authorized by law or executive
order to close.

“Certificate” means any of the Certificates.

“Certificate Date” means the date designated as the initial date of the Certificates by
Section 3.02(a) of this Order.

“Certificates” means the County’s certificates of obligation authorized to be issued by
Section 3.01 of this Order and designated as “Travis County, Texas, Certificates of Obligation,
Taxable Series 2010 (Limited Tax).”

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Certificates.

“Commissioners Court” means the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas,
together with any successor to the duties and functions thereof

“County” means Travis County, Texas.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any
successor securities depository.

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 11.01 of this Order.

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the
Commissioners Court.

“Initial Certificate” means the Initial Certificate authorized by Section 3.04 of this Order.

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by
Section 2.02 of this Order.

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates on which interest on the Certificates is
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity, such dates being September 1 and
March 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2011.

-2-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Certificate or Certificates, as
shown in the Register.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas,
or any successor thereto as provided in this Order.

“Project” means the purposes for which the Certificates are issued as set forth in
Section 3.01.

“Purchase Contract” means the purchase contract between the County and the
Underwriters pertaining to the sale of the Certificates.

“Record Date” means the fifteenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment
Date.

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Order.

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the
County and DTC.

“Representative” means the entity designated as the representative of the Underwriters in
the Purchase Contract.

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b)
of this Order.

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b) of
this Order.

“Surplus Revenues” means the revenues of the County’s solid waste disposal system in
an amount not to exceed $1,000 remaining after payment of all operation and maintenance
expenses thereof and all debt service, reserve, and other requirements with respect to all of the
County’s revenue bonds and other obligations, now outstanding or hereafter issued, that are
payable from all or any part of such revenues.

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
payment of principal of or interest on the Certificates as the same come due and payable.

“Underwriters” means the entities named in the Purchase Contract as the underwriters of
the Certificates.

-3-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 1.02 Findings.

The declarations, determinations, and fmdings declared, made, and found in the preamble
to this Order are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions hereof

Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Order have
been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and
shall not in any way modif~’ or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never be
considered or given any effect in construing this Order or any provision hereof or in ascertaining
intent, if any question of intent should arise.

Section 1.04 Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural
number and vice versa.

(b) This Order and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to
effectuate the purposes set forth herein.

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FU1N.TD

Section 2.01 Tax Levy.

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the
State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Certificates or any interest thereon is outstanding and
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the
County, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service
requirements of the Certificates, being (i) the interest on the Certificates, and (ii) a sinking fund
for their redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per annum (whichever
amount is the greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and
costs of collection.

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the County most recently approved in accordance with
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates when
and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

-4-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(d) Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 364, Texas Health and Safety Code, and
Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, both as amended, the County
hereby covenants and agrees that the Surplus Revenues are hereby irrevocably pledged equally
and ratably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates, as the same
become due to the extent the taxes mentioned above shall ever be insufficient or unavailable for
such purpose. The County reserves the right to issue bonds or other obligations for any lawful
purpose at any time, in one or more installments that are payable, in whole or in part, from the
revenues of the County’s solid waste disposal system. In which event, the payment of debt
service, reserve and other requirements with respect to such revenue bonds and other obligations
shall be deducted from revenues in determining Surplus Revenues.

(e) If the liens and provisions of this Order shall be released in a manner permitted by
Article XI hereof; then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately
reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking Fund may be
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.

Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund.

(a) The County hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the
“Travis County, Texas, Certificates of Obligation, Taxable Series 2010 (Limited Tax), Interest
and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official
depository bank of the County separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the
County.

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Order to be deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the
Certificates when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES

Section 3.01 Authorization.

The County’s certificates of obligation to be designated “Travis County, Texas,
Certificates of Obligation, Taxable Series 2010 (Limited Tax)” (the “Certificates”), are hereby
authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of
Texas, specifically §~271.041-.063, Local Government Code, V.T.C.A., as amended. The
Certificates shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $14,200,000 for the purpose of
evidencing the indebtedness of the County to pay a portion of the costs for acquiring, improving
and renovating land and a building at 700 Lavaca Street, including the associated parking
structure, for administrative and justice purposes (the “Project”), and to pay the costs of issuance
with respect to such certificates of obligation, including but not limited to fees for professional
services and incidental expenses related to such purposes.

-5-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.

(a) The Certificates shall be dated May 1, 2010. The Certificates shall be in fully
registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof
and shall be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Certificate, which shall be
numbered T-l.

(b) The Certificates shall mature on March 1 in the years and in the principal amounts
set forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest
Year Amount Rate

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate respectively until its maturity
from the later of the Certificate Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest
has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for each respective maturity specified in the
schedule contained in subsection (b) above. Such interest shall be payable on each Interest
Payment Date. Interest on the Certificates shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months.

Section 3.03 Medium, Method. and Place ofPayment.

(a) The principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be paid in lawful money of
the United States of America.

(b) Interest on the Certificates shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the
Register at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, that in the event of
nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new
record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the
Paying Agent/Registrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received
from the County. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the
past due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be at least 15 days after the Special
Record Date) shall be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United
States mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Certificate appearing
in the Register at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of
mailing of such notice.

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment
Date, and sent United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to
each Owner, at the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other customary
banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; provided,

-6-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement. At
the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Certificates, interest may
be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(d) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the
maturity date thereof upon presentation and surrender of such Certificate at the office of the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates is not
a Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day, and
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date
payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on
which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

(f) Unclaimed Payments of amounts due hereunder shall be segregated in a special
account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the
Owners of the Certificates to which such Unclaimed Payments pertain. Subject to Title 6 of the
Texas Property Code, any Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled
thereto for three years after the applicable payment date shall be applied to the next payment or
payments on the Certificates thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains
three years after the retirement of all outstanding Certificates, such money shall be paid to the
County to be used for any lawful purpose. Thereafter, neither the County, the Paying
Agent/Registrar nor any other person shall be liable or responsible to any Owners of such
Certificates for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or on account of any such
Certificates, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.

Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Certificates.

(a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the County by the County Judge,
countersigned by the County Clerk, and registered by the County Treasurer, by their manual or
facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Commissioners Court shall be impressed or
placed in facsimile thereon. Such facsimile signatures on the Certificates shall have the same
effect as if each of the Certificates had been signed manually and in person by each of said
officers, and such facsimile seal on the Certificates shall have the same effect as if the official
seal of the Commissioners Court had been manually impressed upon each of the Certificates.

(b) In the event that any officer of the County whose manual or facsimile signature
appears on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Certificates
or before the delivery thereof such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and
sufficient for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office.

(c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any
purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Order unless and until there appears
thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying
Agent/Registrar. It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the

-7-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Certificates.
In lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial
Certificate delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which
certificate shall be evidence that the Certificate has been duly approved by the Attorney General
of the State of Texas, that it is a valid and binding obligation of the County, and that it has been
registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Certificate representing the entire principal
amount of all Certificates, payable in stated installments to the Representative or its designee,
executed by the County Judge and County Clerk, approved by the Attorney General, and
registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be delivered to the
Representative or its designee. Upon payment for the Initial Certificate, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Certificate and deliver to DTC on behalf of the
Representative a single typewritten Certificate for each maturity of the Certificates, in the
aggregate principal amount thereof; registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee ofDTC.

Section 3.05 Ownership.

(a) The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the
person in whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such Certificate for
the purpose of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof; for the further purpose of
making and receiving payment of the interest thereon, and for all other purposes (except that
interest will be paid to the person in whose name such Certificate is registered on the Record
Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and
neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to
the contrary.

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and effectual and
shall discharge the liability of the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate
to the extent of the sums paid.

Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.

(a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the County shall cause the Paying
Agent/Registrar to keep at its office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the
registration and transfer of Certificates in accordance with this Order.

(b) The ownership of a Certificate may be transferred only upon the presentation and
surrender of the Certificate at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or
other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. No transfer of any
Certificate shall be effective until entered in the Register.

(c) The Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender
thereof at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or Certificates of the same
maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of

-8-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



$5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the
Certificates presented for exchange. The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to
authenticate and deliver Certificates exchanged for other Certificates in accordance with this
Section.

(d) Each exchange Certificate delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance
with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the County and shall be
entitled to the benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Certificate or
Certificates in lieu ofwhich such exchange Certificate is delivered.

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration,
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Certificates. The
Paying Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any
tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the
registration, transfer, or exchange of a Certificate.

Section 3.07 Cancellation.

All Certificates paid in accordance with this Order, and all Certificates in lieu of which
exchange Certificates or replacement Certificates are authenticated and delivered in accordance
with this Order, shall be cancelled and proper records shall be made regarding such payment,
exchange, or replacement. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall then return such cancelled
Certificates to the County or may in accordance with law destroy such cancelled Certificates and
periodically furnish the County with certificates ofdestruction of such Certificates.

Section 3.08 Temporary Certificates.

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Certificate and pending the
preparation of defmitive Certificates, the proper officers of the County may execute and, upon
the County’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more
temporary Certificates that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed, or otherwise
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Certificates in lieu of
which they are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions,
substitutions, and other variations as the officers of the County executing such temporary
Certificates may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Certificates.

(b) Until exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, such Certificates in temporary
form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Order.

(c) The County, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the
Paying Agent/Registrar the Certificates in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and
surrender of the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the
Paying Agent/Registrar cancel the Certificates in temporary form and shall authenticate and
deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and series, in
definitive form, in the authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as
the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form surrendered. Such exchange shall be made
without the making of any charge therefor to any Owner.

-9-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 3.09 Replacement Certificates.

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated
Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a
replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not
contemporaneously outstanding. The County or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the
Owner of such Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge
that is authorized to be imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected
therewith.

(b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken,
the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the
absence of notice or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser,
shall authenticate and deliver a replacement Certificate of like tenor and principal amount,
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first complies
with the following requirements:

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Certificate;

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to save it and the County harmless;

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the County and the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) 1f after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the
original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for
payment such original Certificate, the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to
recover such replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was delivered or any person
taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security
or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the
County or the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith.

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully
taken Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, may pay such Certificate if it has
become due and payable or may pay such Certificate when it becomes due and payable.

(e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall
constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the County and shall be entitled to the
benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu of
which such replacement Certificate is delivered.

-10-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 3.10 Book-Entry Only System.

(a) The defmitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate
fully registered Certificate for each of the maturities thereof Upon initial issuance of the
Certificates, the ownership of such Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee ofDTC, and except as provided in Section 3.11 hereof; all outstanding Certificates shall
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

(b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC, the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to
any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an
interest in the Certificates. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the County and
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the
accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any
ownership interest in the Certificates, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other
person, other than an Owner, as shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the
Certificates, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an
Owner, as shown in the Register, of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the
Certificates. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, the County and
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each
Certificate is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose
ofpayment ofprincipal of and interest on the Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices with
respect to such Certificate and other matters with respect to such Certificate, for the purpose of
registering transfer with respect to such Certificate, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The
Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the Certificates only to or upon
the order of the respective Owners, as shown in the Register, as provided in this Order, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and
effective to fully satisf~,r and discharge the County’s obligations with respect to payment of
principal of and interest on the Certificates to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person
other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall receive a Certificate evidencing the
obligation of the County to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Order. Upon
delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this
Order shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the County, and
applicable to the County’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Certificates.

Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only
System.

In the event that the County determines that it is in the best interest of the County and the
beneficial owners of the Certificates that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates, or in the
event DTC discontinues the services described herein, the County shall (i) appoint a successor
securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, notif~~ DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such

—11—
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor
securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of
certificated Certificates and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate
registered Certificates to DTC Participants having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts.
In such event, the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor
securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or
exchanging Certificates shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Order.

Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, so long as the
Certificates are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with
respect to principal of and interest on such Certificates, and all notices with respect to such
Certificates, shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the
Representations Letter of the County to DTC.

ARTICLE IV

NO REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01 No Redemption Before Maturity.

The Certificates shall not be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01 Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.

The County is hereby declared to be the issuer-registrar with respect to the Certificates as
defined and provided for in Section 1203.021, Texas Government Code, and the County
Treasurer is hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates on behalf
of the County.

Section 5.02 Qualifications.

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized
under the laws of the State of Texas, or any other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to
serve as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Certificates.

Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.

(a) At all times while any of the Certificates are outstanding, the County will
maintain a Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Order.

-12-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the
County will promptly appoint a replacement.

Section 5.04 Termination.

The County, upon not less than sixty (60) days notice, reserves the right to terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to
be terminated written notice of such termination.

Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners.

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the County
will cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class,
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying Agent/Registrar is
deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Order and that it will perform the duties and
functions of Paying Agent/Registrar prescribed herein.

Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor.

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent
books and records relating to the Certificates to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar.

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES

Section 6.01 Form Generally.

(a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the
Assignment form to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be substantially in the form set
forth in this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other
variations as are permitted or required by this Order, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or
other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on
Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such
legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as,
consistently herewith, may be determined by the County or by the officers executing such
Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof

(b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse side
thereof with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates.

-13-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(c) The definitive Certificates, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed,
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or
produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such
Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof

(d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas
may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

Section 6.02 Form of the Certificates.

The form of the Certificates, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Certificates, shall be substantially
as follows:

(a) Form of Certificate.

REGISTERED REGISTERED

No. $

United States of America
State ofTexas

TRAVIS COUISITY, TEXAS
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION

TAXABLE SERIES 2010 (LIMITED TAX)

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: CERTIFICATE DATE: CUSIP NUMBER:

___________% March 1, ____ May 1, 2010

Travis County, Texas (the “County”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of

____________ DOLLARS

and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later of the Certificate Date specified
above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or provided for
until payment of such principal amount has been paid or provided for, at the per annum rate of
interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, such
interest to be paid semiannually on September 1 and March 1 each year, commencing March 1,
2011.

-14-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



The principal of this Certificate shall be payable without exchange or collection charges
in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this
Certificate at the office in Austin, Texas, of the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas, as
Paying Agent/Registrar, or, with respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the designated
payment/transfer office of such successor. Interest on this Certificate is payable by check dated
as of the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the
registered owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying
Agent/Registrar or by such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear
all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement. At the option of an Owner of at least
$1,000,000 in principal amount of the Certificates, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the
bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar. For the purpose of the
payment of interest on this Certificate, the registered owner shall be the person in whose name
this Certificate is registered at the close of business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the
fifteenth day of the month next preceding such interest payment date; provided, however, that in
the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled interest payment date, and for 30 days
thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest
have been received from the County. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled
payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after
the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five Business Days (as hereinafter defmed) prior to
the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each
registered owner of a Certificate appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the
close ofbusiness on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing such notice.

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate shall be a
Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the City of Austin,
Texas, are required or authorized by law or executive order to close, the date for such payment
shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which
banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are required or authorized to close (a “Business
Day”), and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original
date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the
date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

This Certificate is one of a series of fully registered certificates specified in the title
hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $14,200,000 (herein referred to as the
“Certificates”), issued pursuant to a certain order of the County (the “Order”) for the purpose of
paying contractual obligations to be incurred for authorized public buildings, improvements,
facilities and equipment as described in the Order (the “Project”) and to pay the contractual
obligations for professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and other professionals in
connection with the Project and the costs of issuance of the Certificates.

As provided in the Order, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this
Certificate is transferable upon surrender of this Certificate for transfer at the office of the Paying
Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the
Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Certificates of the same

-15-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same
aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in
whose name this Certificate is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving
payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this
Certificate is registered on the Record Date) and for all other purposes, whether or not this
Certificate be overdue, and neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected
by notice to the contrary.

The Certificates are not subject to redemption prior to stated maturity.

It is hereby certified and recited that the issuance of this Certificate and the series of
which it is a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions, and things to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of the Certificates have been properly done and performed and
have happened in regular and due time, form, and manner as required by law; that ad valorem
taxes upon all taxable property in the County have been levied for and pledged to the payment of
the debt service requirements of the Certificates within the limit prescribed by law; that, in
addition to said taxes, further provisions have been made for the payment of the debt service
requirements of the Certificates by pledging to such purpose Surplus Revenues, as defmed in the
Order, derived by the County from the operation of the solid waste disposal system in an amount
limited to $1,000; that when so collected, such taxes and Surplus Revenues shall be appropriated
to such purposes; and that the total indebtedness of the County, including the Certificates, does
not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

In witness whereof the County has caused this Certificate to be executed by the manual
or facsimile signature of the County Judge, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature
of the County Clerk, and registered by the manual or facsimile signature of the County
Treasurer, and the official seal of the Commissioners Court of the County has been duly
impressed or placed in facsimile on this Certificate.

County Judge

County Clerk

REGISTERED:

County Treasurer

[SEAL]

-16-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.

The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive
Certificates if such certificate on the Initial Certificate is fully executed.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO.
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Certificate has been examined by him as
required by law, that he fmds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws
of the State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of Travis County, Texas, and
that this Certificate has this day been registered by me.

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _______________

Comptroller ofPublic Accounts
[SEAL] of the State ofTexas

-17-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.

The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial
Certificate if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Certificate of this series
of Certificates was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and that this is one of the Certificates
referred to in the within-mentioned Order.

COUNTY TREASURER OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

Dated: _______________ By:______________________________________________
Authorized Signatory

(d) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto

(print or typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee)
(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________) the within Certificate and all rights
hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints _______________ attorney to transfer
the within Certificate on the books kept for registration hereof with full power of substitution in
the premises.

Dated: _____________________________________ ___________________________________________

NOTICE: The signature on this Assignment
must correspond with the name of the
registered owner as it appears on the face of
the within Certificate in every particular and
must be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to
the Paying Agent/ Registrar.

Signature Guaranteed By:

Authorized Signatory

-18-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(e) The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d)
of this Section, except for the following alterations:

(i) immediately under the name of the Certificate, the headings “INTEREST
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown
Below” and the reference to “CUSIP NUMBER” shall be deleted;

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Certificate, the words “on the Maturity Date
specified above, the sum of _____ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following will be
inserted: “on March 1 in each of the years, in the principal installments, and bearing
interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest
Years Installments Rates”

(Information to be inserted from schedule in Section 3.02 of this Order)

(iii) the Initial Certificate shall be numbered T-1.

Section 6.03 CUSIP Registration.

The County may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Service Bureau
Division of Standard & Poor’s Corporation, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, New
York, New York, and may authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Certificates.
It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the
Certificates shall be of no significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the
County nor the attorneys approving said Certificates as to legality are to be held responsible for
CUSIP numbers incorrectly printed on the Certificates.

Section 6.04 Legal Opinion.

The approving legal opinion of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., Bond Counsel, may be attached
to or printed on the reverse side of each Certificate.

Section 6.05 Statement of Insurance.

A statement relating to municipal bond insurance obtained for the Certificates, if any,
may be printed on or attached to each Certificate.

-19-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01 Sale of Certificates; Official Statement.

(a) The Certificates are hereby officially sold and awarded to and shall be delivered
to the Underwriters at the price and on the terms specified in the Purchase Contract. The form,
terms and provisions of the Purchase Contract are hereby approved and the County Judge is
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Purchase Contract. It is hereby
officially found, determined and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous
reasonably obtainable. The Certificates shall initially be registered in the name of the
Representative, or its designee.

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement for the Certificates
and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto and the final official statement (the “Official
Statement”) presented to and considered at this meeting, are hereby in all respects approved and
adopted, and the Official Statement is hereby deemed fmal as of its date within the meaning and
for the purposes of paragraph (b)(l) of the Rule. The County agrees to deliver appropriate
numbers of executed copies thereof to the Representative. The Official Statement as thus
approved and delivered, with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the County
Judge and the Representative, may be used by the Underwriters in the public offering and sale
thereof The County Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to include and maintain a copy of
the Official Statement and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among
the permanent records of this meeting. The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official
Statement in the preliminary public offering of the Certificates by the Underwriters are hereby
ratified, approved and confirmed.

(c) All officers of the County are authorized to execute such documents, certificates
and receipts, and to make such elections with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Certificates,
as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Certificates in
accordance with the terms of and to carry out the terms and purposes of this Order. The County
Judge is hereby authorized to approve the payment of all costs of issuance relating to the
Certificates, and, to the extent practicable, such costs of issuance shall be payable by wire
transfer from the proceeds of the Certificates on the Closing Date upon the submission of
invoices therefor to the County Treasurer.

(d) Bond Counsel is hereby authorized to make nonsubstantive changes to the terms
of this Order if necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes hereof or in connection with the
approval of the issuance of the Certificates by the Attorney General of Texas.

Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Certificates.

(a) The County Judge is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Certificate
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination,
and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of

-20-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by,
the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the
Certificates shall be made to the Underwriters under and subject to the general supervision and
direction of the County Judge, against receipt by the County of all amounts due to the County
under the terms of sale.

Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds.

(a) All amounts received on the Closing Date as accrued interest on the Certificates
from the Certificate Date to the Closing Date shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(b) Amounts received as premium on the Certificates shall be applied to pay costs of
issuance of the Certificates and, after such application, the remaining balance of such premium
shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(c) The remaining proceeds received on the Closing Date shall be deposited to a
special account of the County, such moneys to be dedicated and used solely for the purposes for
which the Certificates are being issued as herein provided. Any amounts remaining following
completion of the Project shall be transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01 Investments.

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Order and any of the
funds to be deposited pursuant to Section 7.03(b) hereof at the option of the County, may be
invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law as in effect on the
date of the investment.

(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is
so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the
proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from
the Interest and Sinking Fund.

Section 8.02 Investment Income.

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund
shall be credited to such fund.

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant
to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or
construction of the Project is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income are
present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

-21-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01 Payment of the Certificates.

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Certificates and while any of the
Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying
Agent/Registrar, out of the Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such principal of
and interest on the Certificates as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date
or maturity date. Such transfer of funds shall be made in such manner as will cause immediately
available funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar not later than the close of
business on the Business Day next preceding the date of payment for the Certificates.

Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants.

(a) The County will faithfully perform, at all times, any and all covenants,
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Order and in each Certificate; the
County will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each Certificate on
the dates and at the places and in the manner prescribed in such Certificate; and the County will,
at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Order, deposit or cause to be deposited the
amounts of money specified by this Order.

(b) The County is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the
Certificates; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly
and effectively taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be
valid and enforceable obligations of the County in accordance with their terms.

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.01 Events of Default.

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Order is hereby
declared to be an Event of Default:

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the
Certificates when the same becomes due and payable; or

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant,
agreement, or obligation of the County, which default materially and adversely affects the
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in
accordance with this Order, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) days
after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the County.

-22-
US 363059v.I

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 10.02 Remedies for Default.

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, any Owner or an authorized
representative thereof; including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed
against the County for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under
this Order by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any
court of competent jurisdiction for any relief permitted by law, including the specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of
such remedies.

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the
equal benefit of all Owners of Certificates then outstanding.

Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive.

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Certificates or now or hereafter existing at law
or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the right
to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Certificates shall not be available as a remedy under this
Order.

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

ARTICLE XI

DISCHARGE

Section 11.01 Discharge.

The Certificates may be defeased, refunded or discharged in any manner permitted by
applicable law.

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE U1’JDERTAKING

Section 12.01 Annual Reports.

(a) The County shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six (6) months after the
end of each Fiscal Year, financial information and operating data with respect to the County of
the general type included in the fmal Official Statement, being the information described in
Exhibit A hereto. Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles described in Exhibit A hereto, and (ii) audited, if the County
commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during
which they must be provided. If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within

-23-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



such period, then the County shall provide notice that audited financial statements are not
available and shall provide unaudited fmancial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year to each
MSRB. The County shall provide audited fmancial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year to
the MSRB when and if audited financial statements become available.

(b) If the County changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and
of the date of the new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the County otherwise
would be required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific
reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to MSRB or filed with the SEC.

Section 12.02 Material Event Notices.

(a) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any of the following
events with respect to the Certificates, if such event is material within the meaning of the federal
securities laws:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(ii) nonpayment related defaults;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting fmancial
difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax exempt status of the
Certificates;

(vii) modifications to rights of Owners;

(viii) redemption calls;

(ix) defeasances;

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Certificates; and

(xi) rating changes.

(b) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the
County to provide fmancial information or operating data in accordance with Section 12.01 of
this Order by the time required by such Section.

-24-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 12.03 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.

(a) The County shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the County remains an “obligated person” with
respect to the Certificates within the meaning of the Rule, except that the County in any event
will give notice of any redemption calls and any defeasances that cause the County to be no
longer an “obligated person.”

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit
or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The County
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and
notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby
undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete
presentation of the County’s fmancial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to
update any information provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as
expressly provided herein. The County does not make any representation or warranty
concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any
future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE COUNTY BE LIABLE TO THE
OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON,
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM
ANY BREACH BY THE COUNTY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON
ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, TN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

(c) No default by the County in observing or performing its obligations under this
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Order for purposes of any other
provisions of this Order.

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise
limit the duties of the County under federal and state securities laws.

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the County from time to time
to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in
law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the County, but only if(i)
the provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase
or sell Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as
well as such changed circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate
principal amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Order that
authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or
(B) an entity or individual person that is unaffihiated with the County (such as nationally
recognized bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the

-25-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



interests of the Owners and beneficial owners of the Certificates. The provisions of this
Article may also be amended from time to time or repealed by the County if the SEC amends or
repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction determines that such
provisions are invalid, but only if and to the extent that reservation of the County’s right to do so
would not prevent underwriters of the initial public offering of the Certificates from lawfully
purchasing or selling Certificates in such offering. If the County so amends the provisions of
this Article, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating data next
provided in accordance with Section 12.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for
the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating
data so provided.

PASSED AND APPROVED this May 4, 2010.

COMMISSIONERS COURT
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

-26-
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is referred to in Article XII of this Order.

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data

The fmancial information and operating data with respect to the County to be provided
annually in accordance with such Article are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below:

1. The portions of the financial statements of the County appended to the Official
Statement as Appendix C, but for the most recently concluded Fiscal Year.

2. The quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the
County of the general type included in the main text of the Official Statement
under the captions “OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY—Financial
Highlights of Travis County (Unaudited),” “CONSOLIDATED DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS,” “COUNTY DEBT—Bonded Indebtedness,” “COUNTY
DEBT—Debt Ratios,” “TAX DATA” and “ANALYSIS OF TAX DATA—
Historical Analysis of Tax Base.”

Accounting Principles

The accounting principles referred to in such Article are the accounting principles
described in the notes to the fmancial statements referred to in Paragraph 1 above, as such
principles may be changed from time to time to comply with State law.

A-i
US 363059v.1

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for:

Voting Session: ay 4, 2010

I. A. Request made~

Rodney Rhoades, Executive n~ge1, Plannmg & Budget (49106)

CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION ON AN ORDER
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, UNLIMITED TAX ROAD BONDS,
SERIES 2010, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
OF $3,555,000; LEVYING A TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF;
APPROVING A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT;
APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND
ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO

Approved by: ___________________________________________

Signature of Commissioner(s) or County Judge

II. A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this
Agenda Request and backup to them:

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:

Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)
Additional funding for any department or for any purpose
Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget
Grant

Human Resources Department (854-9165)
A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)
Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)
Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
Item 31



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: This Agenda Request complete with backup
memorandum and exhibits should be submitted to the County Judge’s Office no later
than 5:00 p.m. on Monday for the next week’s meeting. Late or incomplete requests
may be deferred to the next subsequent meeting

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER OF THE

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

authorizing

$3,555,000
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

UNLIMITED TAX ROAD BONDS
SERIES 2010

Adopted: May 4, 2010

362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01. Definitions 2
Section 1.02. Findings 3
Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles and Headings 4
Section 1.04. Interpretation 4

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01. Tax Levy 4
Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund 5

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE BONDS

Authorization 5
Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest 5
Medium, Method and Place ofPayment 6
Execution and Registration ofBonds 7
Ownership 8
Registration, Transfer and Exchange 8
Cancellation 9
Temporary Bonds 9
Replacement Bonds 10
Book-Entry Only System 11
Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only
System 11
Payments to Cede & Co 12

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Redemption Before Maturity 12
Optional Redemption 12
Partial Redemption 13
Notice of Redemption to Owners 13
Payment Upon Redemption 14
Effect of Redemption 14

(i)

Section 3.01.
Section 3.02.
Section 3.03.
Section 3.04.
Section 3.05.
Section 3.06.
Section 3.07.
Section 3.08.
Section 3.09.
Section 3.10.
Section 3.11.

Section 3.12.

Section 4.01.
Section 4.02.
Section 4.03.
Section 4.04.
Section 4.05.
Section 4.06.

362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar 14
Section 5.02. Qualifications 15
Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar 15
Section 5.04. Termination 15
Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners 15
Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions 15
Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor 15

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section 6.01. Form Generally 15
Section6.02. FormoftheBonds 16
Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration 22
Section 6.04. Legal Opinion 22
Section 6.05. Statement of Insurance 22

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS, DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds, Official Statement 23
Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds 24
Section 7.03. Deposit of Proceeds; Transfer of Funds 24

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01. Investments 24
Section 8.02. Investment Income 24

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds 25
Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants 25

ARTICLE X

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION

(ii)
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 10.01. General Tax Covenants 25
Section 10.02. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing 26
Section 10.03. No Federal Guaranty 26
Section 10.04. Bonds are not Hedge Bonds 26
Section 10.05. No-Arbitrage Covenant 26
Section 10.06. Arbitrage Rebate 27
Section 10.07. Information Reporting 27
Section 10.08. Record Retention 27
Section 10.09. Registration 27
Section 10.10. Continuing Obligation 28

ARTICLE XI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01. Events ofDefault 28
Section 11.02. Remedies for Default 28
Section 11.03. Remedies Not Exclusive 28

ARTICLE XII

DISCHARGE

Section 12.01. Discharge 29

ARTICLE XIII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 13.01. Annual Reports 29
Section 13.02. Material Event Notices 29
Section 13.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments 30

EXECUTION

Exhibit A - Description of Annual Disclosure of Financial Information A-i

(iii)
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF TRAVIS
COUNTY, TEXAS, UNLIMITED TAX ROAD BONDS, SERIES 2010, IN THE
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $3,555,000; LEVYING A TAX IN
PAYMENT THEREOF; APPROVING A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT;
APPROVING THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT; AND ENACTING OTHER
PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, at county-wide elections held in Travis County, Texas (the “County”), on
November 4, 1997, November 7, 2000, November 6, 2001 and November 8, 2005, the County
was authorized by the voters to issue unlimited tax road bonds;

WHEREAS, at said elections, the following are among the purposes and amounts of the
unlimited tax road bonds which were authorized, reflecting any amount previously issued
pursuant to such voted authorization, the amount of certificates of obligation issued in lieu
thereof the amount therefrom being issued pursuant to this Order, and the balance that remains
unissued after the issuance of the unlimited tax road bonds herein authorized, to-wit:

Amount In Lieu
Amount Previously C.O.s Amount Being Unissued

Purpose Voted Issued Issued Issued Balance

2000 Election

Road Bonds $28,000,000 $22,000,000 $4,000,000 $ -0- $2,000,000

2001 Election

Road and Bridges (Prop. 1) 57,430,000 55,240,000 -0- -0- 2,190,000

2005 Election

Road Bonds 65,225,000 57,850,000 -0- 3,555,000 3,820,000

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court ofTravis County has found and determined that it
is necessary and in the best interest of the County and its citizens that it authorize by this Order
the issuance and delivery of $3,555,000 bonds in a single series at this time;

WHEREAS, it is affirmatively found that the County is authorized to issue, sell and
deliver such bonds pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, particularly
Article III, Section 52 of the Texas Constitution (“Article III, Section 52”) and Section 1471.011
of the Texas Government Code; particularly, it is also affirmatively found that the amount of all
Article III, Section 52 debt outstanding within the County (including the Bonds) does not exceed
twenty-five percent (25%) of the taxable assessed value of real property within the County; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Order is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED BY THE COMMISSIONERS
COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS:

362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01. Defmitions.

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in
this Order, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Bond” means any of the Bonds.

“Bond Date” means the date designated as the date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) of
this Order.

“Bonds” means the County’s bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Order
and designated as “Travis County, Texas, Unlimited Tax Road Bonds, Series 2010.”

“Business Day” means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, or day
on which banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are authorized by law or executive
order to close.

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Commissioners Court” means the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas,
together with any successor to the duties and functions thereof

“County” means Travis County, Texas.

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any
successor securities depository.

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Section 11.01 of this Order.

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the
Commissioners Court.

“Initial Bond” means the Initial Bond authorized by Section 3.04 of this Order.

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means the interest and sinking fund established by
Section 2.02 of this Order.

-2-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates on which interest on the Bonds is
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates ofmaturity or prior redemption, such dates being
March 1 and September 1, commencing March 1, 2011.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in
the Register.

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means initially the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas,
or any successor thereto as provided in this Order.

“Purchase Contract” means the purchase contract between the County and the
Underwriters pertaining to the sale of the Bonds.

“Record Date” means the fifteenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment
Date.

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Order.

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the
County and DTC.

“Representative” means the entity designated as the representative of the Underwriters in
the Purchase Contract.

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b)
of this Order.

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b) of
this Order.

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
payment of principal of redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds as the same come
due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Bonds duly called for redemption prior to
maturity.

“Underwriters” mean the entities named in the Purchase Contract as the Underwriters of
the Bonds.

Section 1.02. Findings.

The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the preamble
to this Order are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions hereof

-3-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles and Headings.

The table of contents, titles and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Order have
been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof and
shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never be
considered or given any effect in construing this Order or any provision hereof or in ascertaining
intent, if any question of intent should arise.

Section 1.04. Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural
number and vice versa.

(b) This Order and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to
effectuate the purposes set forth herein.

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01. Tax Levy.

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the
State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the
County, at a rate sufficient, without legal limit as to rate or amount, to pay the debt service
requirements of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per annum (whichever amount is
greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of
collection.

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the County most recently approved in accordance with
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as
due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

(d) If the liens and provisions of this Order shall be released in a manner permitted by
Article XII hereof then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately
reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking Fund may be
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.

-4-
362431v.1 TRA72O!13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund.

(a) The County hereby establishes a special fund or account to be designated the
“Travis County, Texas, Unlimited Tax Road Bonds, Series 2010, Interest and Sinking Fund” (the
“Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official depository bank of the
County separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the County.

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Order to be deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the
Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Order.

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE BONDS

Section 3.01. Authorization.

The County’s bonds to be designated “Travis County, Texas, Unlimited Tax Road Bonds,
Series 2010” (the “Bonds”), are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with
Chapter 1471, Texas Government Code. The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $3,555,000 for providing funds to: (i) pay the costs for the construction, maintenance
and operation of macadamized, graveled or paved roads and turnpikes, or in aid thereof
including, without limitation, related road drainage, replacement and improvement of road
bridges and the acquisition of right-of-way in connection with state highway projects (2005) (the
“Project”); and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities and Interest.

(a) The Bonds shall be dated May 1, 2010. The Bonds shall be in fully registered
form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall
be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-. 1.

-5-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) The Bonds shall mature on March 1 in the years and in the principal amounts set
forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Years Amount Rates Years Amount Rates

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or
prior redemption from the later of the Bond Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to
which interest has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for each respective maturity
specified in the schedule contained in subsection (b) above. Such interest shall be payable
semiannually on each Interest Payment Date. Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

Section 3.03. Medium, Method and Place of Payment.

(a) The principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be paid in lawful money of the
United States ofAmerica.

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for
such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying
Agent/Registrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the
County. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due
interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be at least 15 days after the Special Record
Date) shall be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States
mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing in the
Register at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of
such notice.

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment
Date, and sent United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to
each Owner, at the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other customary

-6-
36243 1 v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; provided,
however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement. At
the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of Bonds, interest may be paid by
wire transfer to the bank account of such owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date
(whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof) upon presentation and
surrender of such Bond at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds is not a
Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day, and
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date
payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on
which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

(f) Unclaimed Payments of amounts due hereunder shall be segregated in a special
account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the
Owners of the Bonds to which such Unclaimed Payments pertain. Subject to Title 6 of the Texas
Property Code, any Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto
for three years after the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next
payment or payments on the Bonds thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money
remains three years after the retirement of all outstanding Bonds, such money shall be paid to the
County to be used for any lawful purpose. Thereafter, neither the County, the Paying
Agent/Registrar nor any other person shall be liable or responsible to any Owners of such Bonds
for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or on account of any such Bonds, subject to
Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.

Section 3.04. Execution and Registration ofBonds.

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the County by the County Judge,
countersigned by the County Clerk, and registered by the County Treasurer, by their manual or
facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the Commissioners Court shall be impressed or
placed in facsimile thereon. Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the same effect as
if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said officers, and such
facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of the Commissioners
Court had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds.

(b) In the event that any officer of the County whose manual or facsimile signature
appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before
the delivery thereof such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office.

(c) Except as provided below, no Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or
be entitled to any security or benefit of this Order unless and until there appears thereon the
Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying
Agent/Registrar. It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the

-7-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds. In
lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Bond
delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration
Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which certificate shall be
evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas,
and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the County, and that it has been registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Bond representing the entire principal amount of
all Bonds, payable in stated installments to the Representative or its designee, executed by the
County Judge and County Clerk, approved by the Attorney General, and registered and manually
signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be delivered to the Representative or its
designee. Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial
Bond and deliver to DTC on behalf of the Representative a single typewritten Bond for each
maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount thereof; registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

Section 3.05. Ownership.

(a) The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar and any other person may treat the
person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose
of making and receiving payment of the principal thereof and redemption premium, if any,
thereon, for the further purpose of making and receiving payment of the interest thereon, and for
all other purposes (except that interest will be paid to the person in whose name such bond is
registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable), whether or not such Bond
is overdue, and neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice
or knowledge to the contrary.

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall
discharge the liability of the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the
extent of the sums paid.

Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.

(a) So long as any Bonds remain outstanding, the County shall cause the Paying
Agent/Registrar to keep at its office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the
registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Order.

(b) The ownership of a Bond may be transfelTed only upon the presentation and
surrender of the Bond at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other
evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar. No transfer of any Bond
shall be effective until entered in the Register.

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at
the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest
rate and in any denomination or denominations of any integral multiple of $5,000, and in an

-8-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of the Bonds presented for
exchange. The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver Bonds
exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section.

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the County and shall be entitled
to the benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of
which such exchange Bond is delivered.

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration,
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds. The Paying
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration,
transfer or exchange of a Bond.

(f) Neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue,
transfer, or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar
days prior to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not be
applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

Section 3.07. Cancellation.

All Bonds paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this Order, and
all Bonds in lieu of which exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are authenticated and delivered
in accordance with this Order, shall be cancelled and proper records shall be made regarding
such payment, redemption, exchange or replacement. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall then
return such cancelled Bonds to the County or may in accordance with law destroy such cancelled
Bonds and periodically furnish the County with certificates of destruction of such Bonds.

Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds.

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Bond and pending the
preparation of defmitive Bonds, the proper officers of the County may execute and, upon the
County’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more
temporary Bonds that are printed, lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed or otherwise
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the defmitive Bonds in lieu ofwhich
they are delivered, without coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions,
substitutions and other variations as the officers of the County executing such temporary Bonds
may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Bonds.

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in defmitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Order.

(c) The County, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the
Paying Agent/Registrar the Bonds in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and
surrender of the Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in
exchange therefor Bonds of the same maturity and series, in defmitive form, in the authorized

-9-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bonds in temporary form
surrendered. Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge therefor to any
Owner.

Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds.

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated
Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously
outstanding. The County or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to
pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be
imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith.

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence
of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall
authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a
number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first:

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction. or theft of such Bond;

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to save it and the County harmless;

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the County and the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) 1f after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the
original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such
original Bond, the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such
replacement Bond from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom,
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the County or
the Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith.

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully
taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond if it has become due and
payable or may pay such Bond when it becomes due and payable.

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute
an original additional contractual obligation of the County and shall be entitled to the benefits

-10-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



and security of this Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such
replacement Bond is delivered.

Section 3.10. Book-Entry Only System.

(a) The definitive Bonds shall be initially issued in the form of a separate typewritten
fully registered Bond for each of the maturities thereof Upon initial issuance of the Bonds, the
ownership of such Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and
except as provided in Section 3.11 hereof; all of the outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC,
the County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the
Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the County and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in
the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as
shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of
redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an
Owner, as shown in the Register, of any amount with respect to principal of; premium, if any, or
interest on the Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, the
County and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose
name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose
of payment of principal of; premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, for the purpose of giving
notices with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such
Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal
of; premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the respective
Owners, as shown in the Register, as provided in this Order, or their respective attorneys duly
authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and
discharge the County’s obligations with respect to payment of principal of; premium, if any, and
interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than an Owner,
as shown in the Register, shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation of the County to make
payments of amounts due pursuant to this Order. Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying
Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new
nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this Order shall refer to such new
nominee of DTC.

(c) The Representation Letter previously executed and delivered by the County, and
applicable to the County’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds.

Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depositoiy~ Transfer Outside Book-Entry Only
System.

In the event that the County determines that it is in the best interest of the County and of
the beneficial owners ofthe Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, or in the event

—11—
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



DTC discontinues the services described herein, the County shall (i) appoint a successor
securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such
successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor
securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of
certificated Bonds and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate
registered Bonds to DTC Participants having Bonds credited to their DTC accounts. In such
event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities
depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or exchanging
Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Order.

Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, so long as any Bonds
are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to
principal of premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such
Bonds, shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation
Letter of the County to DTC.

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01. Redemption Before Maturity.

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in
this Article IV.

Section 4.02. Optional Redemption.

(a) The County reserves the option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after March 1,
2021 in whole or any part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on March 1, 2020 or
on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.

(b) If less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional
redemption, the County shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot the Bonds, or portions
thereof within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption.

(c) The County, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed.

-12-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 4.03. Partial Redemption.

(a) A portion of a single Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof If
such a Bond is to be partially redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000
portion of the Bond as though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption.

(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Order, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange Bond
or Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bond so
surrendered, such exchange being without charge.

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the County in writing of the
principal amount to be redeemed of any Bond as to which only a portion thereof is to be
redeemed.

Section 4.04. Notice ofRedemption to Owners.

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Bonds by
sending notice by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the business day next preceding the
date of mailing such notice.

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at
which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed.

(c) The County reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem
Bonds under Section 4.02 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events. Such notice
may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized
securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying
Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption
date or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the
scheduled redemption date if the County delivers a certificate of the County to the Paying
Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and
such notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are
not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt
notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any
Bonds subject to conditional redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain
Outstanding, and the rescission shall not constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a
conditional redemption, the failure of the County to make moneys and/or authorized securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of
Default.

(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

-13-
36243 lv. 1 TRA720113002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 4.05. Payment Upon Redemption.

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the County shall deposit with the Paying
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar
from the County and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the principal of;
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Bond called for redemption to the Paying
Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay
the principal of; redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of
redemption from the money set aside for such purpose.

Section 4.06. Effect of Redemption.

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.04 of this Order,
and subject, in the case of an optional redemption under Section 4.02, to any conditions or rights
reserved by the County under Section 4.04(c), the Bonds or portions thereof called for
redemption shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption and, unless the
County defaults in its obligation to make provision for the payment of the principal thereof;
redemption premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon, such Bonds or portions thereof shall
cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not such Bonds are
presented and surrendered fOr payment on such date.

If the County shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption
date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear interest at the
rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same by the County.

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.

The County is hereby declared to be the issuer-registrar with respect to the Bonds as
defined and provided for in Section 1203.021, Texas Government Code, and the County
Treasurer is hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds on behalf of the
County.

-14-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 5.02. Qualifications.

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized
under the laws of the State of Texas, or any other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to
serve as and perform the duties and services ofpaying agent and registrar for the Bonds.

Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.

(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the County will maintain a
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Order.

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the
County will promptly appoint a replacement.

Section 5.04. Termination.

The County, upon not less than sixty (60) days notice, reserves the right to terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to
be terminated written notice of such termination.

Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners.

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the County
will cause notice of the change to he sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class,
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying Agent/Registrar is
deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Order and that it will perform the duties and
functions of Paying Agent/Registrar prescribed herein

Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor.

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar.

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section 6.01. Form Generally.

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the
Assignment form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form set forth in

-15-
36243 lv. I TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



this Article, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are
permitted or required by this Order, and (ii) may have such letters, numbers, or other marks of
identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities
Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such legends and
endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon as, consistently
herewith, may be determined by the County or by the officers executing such Bonds, as
evidenced by their execution thereof

(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds maybe set forth on the reverse side thereof;
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds.

(c) The definitive Bonds, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed,
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or
produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as
evidenced by their execution thereof

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds.

The form of the Bond, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be substantially as
follows:

(a) Form of Bond.

REGISTERED REGISTERED

No. $

United States of America
State ofTexas

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
UNLIMITED TAX ROAD BOND

SERIES 2010

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER:

% March 1, _____ May 1, 2010

Travis County, Texas (the “County”), for value received, hereby promises to pay to

-16-
362431v.1 TRA72O!13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of

_______________DOLLARS

unless the Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal
hereof shall have been paid or provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from
the later of the Bond Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which
interest has been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been paid or
provided for, at the per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-
day year of twelve 30-day months, such interest to be paid semiannually on March 1 and
September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2011.

The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at
the office in Austin, Texas, of the County Treasurer of Travis County, Texas, as Paying
Agent/Registrar, or, with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the designated
payment/transfer office of such successor. Interest on this Bond is payable by check dated as of
the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered
owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by
such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expense of
such other banking arrangement. At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal
amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on
file with the Paying Agent/Registrar. For the purpose of the payment of interest on this Bond,
the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of
business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the fifteenth day of the month next preceding such
interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of interest on a
scheduled interest payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest
payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and
when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the County. Notice of the
Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special
Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five
Business Days (as hereinafter defmed) prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail,
first class, postage prepaid, to the address of each registered owner of a Bond appearing on the
books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last Business Day next
preceding the date of mailing such notice.

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are
required or authorized by law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the
next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking
institutions in the City of Austin, Texas, are required or authorized to close (a “Business Day”),
and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date
payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on
which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

-17-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



This Bond is one of a series of fully registered bonds specified in the title hereof issued in
the aggregate principal amount of $3,555,000 (herein referred to as the “Bonds”), issued
pursuant to a certain order of the County (the “Order”) for the purpose of providing funds for
road construction and improvements as described in the Order and to pay the costs of issuing the
Bonds.

The County has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after March 1,
2021 in whole or in part before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on March 1, 2020 or on
any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for redemption
plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If less than all of the Bonds are to be
redeemed, the County shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lots the Bonds, or portions
thereof within such maturity and in such principal amounts, for redemption.

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the
registered owner of each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part. Any notice so mailed
shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner
receives such notice. Notice having been so given and subject, in the case of an optional
redemption, to any rights or conditions reserved by the county in the notice, the Bonds called for
redemption shall become due and payable on the specified redemption date, and notwithstanding
that any Bond or portion thereof has not been surrendered for payment, interest on such Bond or
portion thereof shall cease to accrue.

In the Order, the County reserves the right, in the case of an optional redemption, to give
notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds conditioned upon the occurrence of
subsequent events. Such notice may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit
of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the
redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law,
no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice at
any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if the County delivers a certificate of the
County to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the
redemption notice, and such notice and redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or
authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice of
redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional redemption and such
redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the rescission of such redemption
shall not constitute an Event of Default. Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, the
failure of the County to make moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole
on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an Event of Default.

As provided in the Order, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this Bond is
transferable upon surrender of this Bond for transfer at the office of the Paying Agent/Registrar
with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying
Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same stated maturity,
of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same aggregate
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees.

-18-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Neither the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within
45 calendar days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not
be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

The County, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in
whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered
on the Record Date) and for all other purposes, whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither
the County nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be affected by notice to the contrary.

It is hereby certified and recited that the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it is
a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent
to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have happened
in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem taxes upon all
taxable property in the County have been levied for and pledged to the payment of the debt
service requirements of the Bonds, without legal limit as to rate or amount.

In witness whereof the County has caused this Bond to be executed by the manual or
facsimile signature of the County Judge, countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of
the County Clerk, and registered by the manual or facsimile signature of the County Treasurer
and the official seal of the Commissioners Court of the County has been duly impressed or
placed in facsimile on this Bond.

County Judge

County Clerk
REGI STERED:

County Treasurer

[SEAL]

(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.

The following Comptroller’s Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive
Bonds if such certificate on the Initial Bond is fully executed.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS REGISTER NO. __________

OF THE STATE OF TEXAS

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required

-19-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the
State ofTexas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation ofTravis County, Texas, and that this
Bond has this day been registered by me.

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, ______________________________

Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State ofTexas

ESEALI

(c) Form of Certificate ofPaying Agent/Registrar.

The following Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial Bond
if the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate appears thereon.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of
Bonds was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred
to in the within-mentioned Order.

COUNTY TREASURER OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

Dated: By: ____________________
Authorized Signatory

-20-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(d) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto
(print or typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):

(Social Security or other identifying number: _____________) the within Bond and all rights
hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney to
transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof with full power of substitution
in the premises.

Date: ________________________ _______________________________________________________

NOTICE: The signature on this Assignment must
correspond with the name of the registered owner as it
appears on the face of the within Bond in every particular
and must be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

Signature Guaranteed:

Authorized Signatory

-21-
362431v.1 TRA72O!13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of this
Section, except for the following alterations:

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings “INTEREST
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown
Below” and the reference to “CUSIP NUMBER” shall be deleted;

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Bond, the words “on the Maturity Date
specified above, the sum of _________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and the following
will be inserted: “on March 1 in each of the years, in the principal installments, and
bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the following schedule:

Principal Interest
Years Installments Rates”

(Information to be inserted from
schedule in Section 3.02 of this Order)

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1.

Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration.

The County may secure identification numbers through the CUSIP Service Bureau
Division of Standard & Poor’s Corporation, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, New
York, New York, and may authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Bonds. It is
expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall
be of no significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the County nor the
attorneys approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers
incorrectly printed on the Bonds.

Section 6.04. Legal Opinion.

The approving legal opinion of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., Bond Counsel, may be attached
to or printed on the reverse side of each Bond.

Section 6.05. Statement of Insurance.

A statement relating to municipal bond insurance obtained for the Bonds, if any, may be
printed on or attached to each Bond.

-22-
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS, DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS

Section 7.01. Sale ofBonds, Official Statement.

(a) The Bonds are hereby officially sold and awarded to and shall be delivered to the
Underwriters at the price and on the terms specified in the Purchase Contract. The form, terms
and provisions of the Purchase Contract are hereby approved and the County Judge is hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver such Purchase Contract. It is hereby officially
found, determined and declared that the terms of this sale are the most advantageous reasonably
obtainable. The Bonds shall be initially registered in the name of the Representative or its
designee.

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds and
any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, and the fmal Official Statement (the “Official
Statement”) presented to and considered at this meeting, are hereby in all respects approved and
adopted and the Official Statement is hereby deemed fmal as of its date within the meaning and
for the purposes of paragraph (b)(l) of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. The County agrees to deliver appropriate numbers of executed copies thereof to the
Representative. The Official Statement as thus approved, executed and delivered, with such
appropriate variations as shall be approved by the County Judge, may be used by the
Underwriters in the public offering and sale thereof The County Clerk is hereby authorized and
directed to include and maintain a copy of the Official Statement and any addenda, supplement
or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this meeting. The use and
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement in the preliminary public offering of the Bonds
by the Underwriters are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

(c) All officers of the County are authorized to execute such documents, certificates
and receipts, and to make such elections with respect to the tax-exempt status of Bonds, as they
may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in accordance with the
terms of and to carry out the terms and purposes of this Order. The County Judge is hereby
authorized to approve the payment of all costs of issuance relating to the Bonds, and, to the
extent practicable, such costs of issuance shall be payable by wire transfer from the proceeds of
the bonds on the Closing Date upon the submission of invoices therefor to the County Treasurer.

(d) Bond Counsel is hereby authorized to make nonsubstantive changes to the terms
of this Order if necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes hereof or in connection with the
approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the Attorney General of Texas.

-23-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds.

(a) The County Judge is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond and all
necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, and
approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by, the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds
shall be made to the Underwriters under and subject to the general supervision and direction of
the County Judge, against receipt by the County of all amounts due to the County under the
terms of sale.

Section 7.03. Deposit of Proceeds: Transfer of Funds.

(a) All amounts received on the Closing Date as accrued interest on the Bonds from
the Bond Date to the Closing Date shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

(b) Amounts received as premium on the Bonds shall be applied to pay costs of
issuance ofthe Bonds and, after such application, any remaining amount shall be deposited to the
Interest and Sinking Fund.

(c) The remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited to a special account of
thc County and shall be used solely for the purposes for which the Bonds are being issued, as
herein provided. To the extent any of such sum is not used for such purposes, such excess shall
be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE VIII

INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01. Investments.

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Order, at the option of the
County, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law as in
effect on the date of the investment.

(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is
so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the
proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from
the Interest and Sinking Fund.

Section 8.02. Investment Income.

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund
shall be credited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

-24-
362431 v.1 TRA72O/1 3002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(b) Interest and income derived from the investment of funds deposited pursuant to
Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the fund or account where deposited until the
accomplishment of the purposes for which the Bonds are issued; thereafter, to the extent such
interest and income are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds.

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such principal of and interest on the Bonds as
will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date, maturity date or date of prior
redemption. Such transfer of funds shall be made in such manner as will cause immediately
available funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar not later than the close of
business on the Business Day next preceding the date ofpayment for the Bonds.

Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants.

(a) The County will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants,
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Order and in each Bond; the County
will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each Bond on the dates and
at the places and in the manner prescribed in such Bond; and the County will, at the times and in
the manner prescribed by this Order, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts of money
specified by this Order.

(b) The County is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the
Bonds; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly and
effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and
enforceable obligations of the County in accordance with their terms.

ARTICLE X

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION

Section 10.01. General Tax Covenants.

The County intends that the interest on the Bonds will be excludable from gross income
for purposes of federal income taxation pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the
Code and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Regulations”). The County
covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any action within its
control, that if taken or omitted, respectively, would (i) cause the interest on the Bonds to be
includable in the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the holders thereof for
purposes of federal income taxation or (ii) result in the violation or failure to satisfy any
provision of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the applicable Regulations that

-25--
362431vA TRA72O!13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



are applicable to the Bonds. In particular, the County covenants and agrees to comply with each
requirement of this Article X, provided, however, that the County will not be required to comply
with any particular requirement of this Article X if the County has received an opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel (“Counsel’s Opinion”) that (i) such noncompliance will not
adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on
the Bonds or (ii) that compliance with some other requirement set forth in this Article X will
satisfy the applicable requirements of the Code, in which case compliance with such other
requirement specified in such Counsel’s Opinion shall constitute compliance with the
corresponding requirement specified in this Article X.

Section 10.02. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.

The County covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds,
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate the use of
property fmanced, directly or indirectly, with such proceeds, and take such other and further
action as may be required so that the bonds will not be “private activity bonds” within the
meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations. Moreover, the County will certify,
through an authorized officer, employee or agent, that, based upon all facts and estimates known
or reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Bonds are delivered, the proceeds of the
Bonds will not be used in a manner that would cause the Bonds to be “private activity bonds”
within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.03. No Federal Guaranty.

The County covenants and agrees that it has not taken and will not take any action, and
has not knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action, that, if taken or
omitted, respectively, would cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of
section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations, except as permitted by section 149(b)(3) of the
Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.04. Bonds are not Hedge Bonds.

The County covenants and agrees that it has not taken and will not take any action, and
has not knowingly omitted and will not knowingly omit to take any action, that, if taken or
omitted, respectively, would cause the Bonds to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning of section
149(g) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.05. No-Arbitrage Covenant.

The County covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate investments
of proceeds of the Bonds, and take such other and further action as may be required so that the
Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code and the
Regulations. Moreover, the County will certify, through an authorized officer, employee or
agent, that, based upon all facts and estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence
on the date the Bonds are delivered, the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used in a manner that
would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) ofthe Code
and the Regulations.

-26-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 10.06. Arbitrage Rebate.

If the County does not qualify for an exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of
the Code, the County will take all necessary steps to comply with the requirement that certain
amounts earned by the County on the investment of the “gross proceeds” of the Bonds (within
the meaning of section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code) be rebated to the federal government.
Specifically, the County will (i) maintain records regarding the investment of the gross proceeds
of the Bonds as may be required to calculate the amount earned on the investment of the gross
proceeds of the Bonds separately from records of amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts
of the County allocable to other bond issue of the County or moneys which do not represent
gross proceeds of any bonds of the County, (ii) calculate at such times as are required by the
Regulations, the amount earned from the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds which is
required to be rebated to the federal government, and (iii) pay, not less often than every fifth
anniversary date of the delivery of the Bonds or on such other dates as may be permitted under
the Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated to the federal government. Further, the
County will not indirectly pay any amount otherwise payable to the federal government pursuant
to the foregoing requirements to any person other than the federal government by entering into
any investment arrangement with respect to the gross proceeds of the Bonds that might result in a
reduction in the amount required to be paid to the federal government because such arrangement
results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the arrangement had been at
arm’s length and had the yield on the issue not been relevant to either party.

Section 10.07. Information Repor~j~g.

The County covenants and agrees to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the
Treasury, not later than the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar
quarter in which the Bonds are issued, an information statement concerning the Bonds, all under
and in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code and the Regulations.

Section 10.08. Record Retention.

The County will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the use and
expenditure of the proceeds of the Bonds until six years after the last Bond is redeemed, or such
shorter period as authorized by subsequent guidance issued by the Department of Treasury, if
applicable. All records will be kept in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout
the retention period. For this purpose, it is acceptable that such records are kept either as
hardcopy books and records or in an electronic storage and retrieval system, provided that such
electronic system includes reasonable controls and quality assurance programs that assure the
ability of the County to retrieve and reproduce such books and records in the event of an
examination of the Bonds by the Internal Revenue Service.

Section 10.09. Registration.

The Bonds will be issued in registered form.

-27-
362431v.1 TRA720113002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Section 10.10. Continuing Obligation.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the County’s obligations under the
covenants and provisions of this Article X shall survive the defeasance and discharge of the
Bonds.

ARTICLE XI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 11.01. Events of Default.

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Order is hereby
declared to be an Event of Default:

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the
Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant,
agreement or obligation of the County, which default materially and adversely affects the
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to, their prospect or ability to be repaid in
accordance with this Order, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) days
after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the County.

Section 11.02. Remedies for Default.

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, any Owner or an authorized
representative thereof including but not limited to, a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed
against the County for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under
this Order, by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law, in any
court of competent jurisdiction, for any relief permitted by law, including the specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that maybe unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of
such remedies.

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the
equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding.

Section 11.03. Remedies Not Exclusive.

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the right to
accelerate the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall not be available as a remedy under this Order.

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

-28-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ARTICLE XII

DISCHARGE

Section 12.01. Discharge.

The Bonds may be refunded, discharged or defeased in any manner permitted by
applicable law.

ARTICLE XIII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 13.01. Annual Reports.

(a) The County shall provide annually to the MSRB within six (6) months afler the
end of each Fiscal Year, financial information and operating data with respect to the County of
the general type included in the fmal Official Statement, being the information described in
Exhibit A hereto. Any fmancial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance
with the accounting principles described in Exhibit A hereto, and (ii) audited, if the County
commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during
which they must be provided. If the audit of such fmancial statements is not complete within
such period, then the County shall provide notice that audited fmancial statements are not
available and shall provide unaudited financial statements for the applicable Fiscal Year to the
MSRB. The County shall provide such audited fmancial statements as required to the MSRB
when and if audited financial statements become available.

(b) If the County changes its Fiscal Year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and
of the date of the new Fiscal Year end) prior to the next date by which the County otherwise
would be required to provide fmancial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this
Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific
reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the
SEC.

Section 13.02. Material Event Notices.

(a) The County shall notify the MSRB in a timely manner, of any of the following
events with respect to the Bonds, if such event is material within the meaning of the federal
securities laws:

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(ii) nonpayment related defaults;

-29-
362431v.1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting fmancial
difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax exempt status of the
Bonds;

(vii) modifications to rights of Owners;

(viii) bond calls;

(ix) defeasances;

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds;
and

(xi) rating changes.

(b) The County shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the
County to provide fmancial information or operating data in accordance with Section 1 3M1 of
this Order by the time required by such Section.

Section 13.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.

(a) The County shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the County remains an “obligated person” with
respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the County in any event will
give notice of any bond calls and any defeasances that cause the County to be no longer an
“obligated person.”

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The County undertakes
to provide only the frnancial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the
County’s fmancial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information
provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein. The
County does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE COUNTY BE LIABLE TO THE
OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM

-30-
362431v.I TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



ANY BREACH BY THE COUNTY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON
ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

(c) No default by the County in observing or performing its obligations under this
Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Order for purposes of any other
provisions of this Order.

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise
limit the duties of the County under federal and state securities laws.

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the County from time to time
to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in
law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the County, but only if(i)
the provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase
or sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into
account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as
such changed circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Order that authorizes
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or
individual person that is unaffiliated with the County (such as nationally recognized bond
counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners
and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The provisions of this Article may also be amended from
time to time or repealed by the County if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provisions of
the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction determines that such provisions are invalid, but only if
and to the extent that reservation of the County’s right to do so would not prevent underwriters
of the initial public offering of the Bonds from lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in such
offering. If the County so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall include with any
amended fmancial information or operating data next provided in accordance with Section 13.01
an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any
change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided.

PASSED AND APPROVED this May 4, 2010.

COMMISSIONERS COURT
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

-31-
36243 lv. I TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is referred to in Article XIII of this Order.

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data

The fmancial information and operating data with respect to the County to be provided
annually in accordance with such Article are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below:

1. The portions of the financial statements of the County appended to the Official
Statement as Appendix C, but for the most recently concluded fiscal year.

2. The quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the
County of the general type included in the main text of the Official Statement
under the captions “OFFICIAL STATEMENT SUMMARY—Financial
Highlights of Travis County (Unaudited),” “CONSOLIDATED DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS,” “COUNTY DEBT—Bonded Indebtedness,” “COUNTY
DEBT—Debt Ratios,” “TAX DATA” and “ANALYSIS OF TAX DATA—
Historical Analysis of Tax Base.”

Accounting Principles

The accounting principles referred to in such Article are the accounting principles
described in the notes to the fmancial statements referred to in Paragraph 1 above, as such
principles may be changed from time to time to comply with State law.

A-i
36243 lv. 1 TRA72O/13002

Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm

VelasqM
Typewritten Text



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm



Updated 04-29-10 at 3:53pm


	Item 01
	Item 02
	Item 03
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 15
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26 BATs
	Item 27 Grants
	Item 28 Bond Sale $11,145,000
	Item 29 Bond Sale $108,250,000
	Item 30 Bond Sale $14,200,000
	Item 31 Bond Sale $3,555,000
	Item 32
	Item 34
	Item 38
	Item C3
	Housing Finance Corp  Item 1
	Housing Finance Corp Item 2
	Health Facilities Devel. Corp. Item 1



